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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1.800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov

June 19,2020.

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu ;
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTIDN

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter Into a Retroactive amendment to an existing contract with Harbor Homes. Inc. (\/C#155358),
Nashua, NH to continue providing a community Transitional Housing Program for adults who have
severe mental Illness or severe and persistent mental Illness, by increasing the price linnitation by
$126,000 from $3,150,000 to $3,276,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2020
to October 3T, 2020 effective July 1. 2020 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General
Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year (2021), upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, If needed and Justified.

05-95-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVC, HNS: BEHAVIORAL DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,050,000 $0 $1,050,000

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,050,000 $0 $1,050,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,050,00'0 $0 $1,050,000

2021 102-500731
Contrbcls for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $126,000 $126,000

Subtotal $3,150,000 $125,000 $3,276,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because the Department posted a Request for Applications for
the required services and did not receive any applications for this service area. This caused the
Department to change Its strategic approach to ensure the required services would be in place. This
abrupt change led to additional negotiations which delayed the execution of the amendment.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The purpose of this request is to continue operating a fourteen (14) bed Transitional Housing
Program for adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental illness and are
eligible for community mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New
Hampshire Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities. This request represents one (1) contract to
support fourteen (14) beds located at the Contractor's Nashua location.

Approximately fourteen (14) individuals will be served from July 1, 2020 to October 31. 2020.

The program serves the clinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult men and
women with mental illness. The services Include: psychiatric services; medication management;
clinical sen/ices; medical services; targeted case management; specialized and co-occurring
treatment services; vocational and day treatment services; and support for community
connectedness and family involvement.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:
• Quarterly reports outlining number of beds occupied, programmatic services provided

to each individual, each individual's progress towards independent living, and incoming
cases. These reports shall be reviewed during quarterly meetings scheduled with the
Department.

•  Monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements that are submitted to the
Department for ongoing evaluation of the program's fiscal integrity.

•  Continued engagement in financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal integrity
is maintained and programming is meeting the needs of individuals served.

As referenced in Exhibit 0-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3 of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for four
(4) months of the one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the fourteen (14) bed
Transitional Housing Program y/ouid be disrupted and a gap would leave individuals currently sen/ed
and those in need of services without safe housing and supports.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted

lop A. Shibinette
tmmissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruicea' Mission ia to join communities and fomiiiea
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

state of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 03 to the Transitional Housing & Community Residences Contract

This 3"^ Amendment to (he Transitional. Housing & Community Residences contract (hereinafter referred to as
'Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor'), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeastern Btvd, Nashua, NH, 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract') approved by the Govemor and Executive Council on
November 8, 2017, (Item #216). as amended on June 19. 2019, (Item #19), and September 16, 2019, (Late Item
F), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract
as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from
the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify the
scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained In the
Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31.2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,276,000.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection
5.1., by replacing II in Its entirety with the following:

5.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor agrees
to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement, and Cash Flow
Statement for the Contractor. All statements shall be reflective of the entire Partnership for
Successful Living organization and shall be submitted on the same day the reports are submitted to
the Board, but no later than the fourth Wednesday of the month. The Contractor shall be evaluated
on the following:

5.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

5.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by the
unrestricted cash on hand.

5.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments divided by total
operating expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal
payments on debt divided by days In the reporting period. The short-term
Investments as used above must mature within three (3) months and should not
Include common stock. Any amount of cash from a line of credit should be broken
out separately.

5.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and cash
equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with
no variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio;

5.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets available to cover

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment ##3 Contractor Inlllals

RFA-2018-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03 Page 1 of4 Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

the cost of current liabilities.

5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

5.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum current ratio of

1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the cost of Its
current portion of its lortg-term debt.

5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depredation/Amortization Expense plus Interest
Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and Interest) over the next
twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements identifying
current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum standard of
1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an Indication of the Contractor's ability to cover Its
liabilities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

5.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum ratio of 0.30:1,
with a 20% variance allowed.

5.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

5.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and amount outstanding
for each line.

5.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

5.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any Instances of non-compliance with any loan
covenant or agreement.

4. Add Exhibit A, Amendment ff1, Scope of Services. Section 5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection
5.7., which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5.7. The Contractor shall create an Audit Sub-Committee of the Board for the purpose
of procuring audit services through an open bid process for State Fiscal Year 2021.

5. Add Exhibit A. Amendment ffl, Scope of Services, Section 5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection
5.8., which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5.8. Program-level Profit and Loss Statement for the Transitional Housing & Community Residences
program shall be submitted at the time of invoice. The program-level profit and loss shall include all
revenue sources and all related expenditures for that program, and shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis.

6. Add Exhibit B-S, Amendment #3, Budget, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendments Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to July 1, 2020, upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

•ao
•7

me: Katia S.Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

Harbor Homes. Inc.

Date
1

Name;

Title: ̂

Harbor Homes. Inc.

RFA-2018-bBH-03-TRANS-01 -AOS

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 4



TiTT-.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/26/20

Date Name:
Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #3
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Transttionfll Housing Community Residences ExMbtt B4. Amendment «3

Now HaiRpthlro Department of Health and Human Services

Conti actor Name HartMr Home*, inc.

Budget Request for Transitional Housing 1; Community Resldtncas

Budget Period: 7^12020 to lOai/2020

1

1

1

i

1

{

JS?®Din6CI^8tMniSkSdlrodtBSiS3EltHtoF@5S?

1. Total Saiarv/Wages $ 281,083.48 $63,974.60 $ 345,058.08 $ 206,098.00 $46,907.90 $ 253,005.90 $ 74,985.48 $17,066.69 $ 92,052.17

2. Emplovee Benefits $  72,955.47 $ 16,604.66 $ 89.560.13 $ 53,493.00 $12,175.01 $ 65,668.01 $ 19,462.47 $ 4,429.66 $ 23.892.13

3. Consultants $ $ $ $ $

4. Eouipment: $ $ $ $ $

Rental %  1,400.00 $ $  1,400.00 $  1,400.00 $  1,400.00 $

Repair and Maintenance s $ $ $ $

Purchase/Depredation $ $ $ $

S. Supplies: $ $ $ $ $

Educational $ $ $ $ $

Lab $ S s $ $ .

Phanndcy $ $ $ $ $

Medical $ $ $ $ $

Office $  880.00 $ . $  880.00 $  500.00 $  500.00 $  380.00 $  380.00

Furniture / Technology $ $ $ $ $

6. Travel $ $ $ $ $

7. Occupancy $  9,993.00 s $  9,993.00 $  6,527.00 $  6,527.00 $  3,466.00 $  3.466.00

8. Current Expenses $ s $ $ $

Telei^one S $ $ $ $

Postage $ s $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ s $ $ $

Insurance $  1,566.00 s $  1,566.00 S  1.000.00 $  1.000.00 $  566.00 $  566.00

Board Expenses S s $ $ S

9. Software 5 s $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communications 5 s $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $ s S $ $

12. Sutycontracts/Aqreements $  14,000.00 s $ 14,000.00 $  9,500.00 $  9.500.00 $  4.500.00 $  4.500.00

13. other (speatic (elatls martdatory): $ $ $ $ $

$ s $ $ s

Client Assistance/Food S  4,511.79 $ $  4,511.79 $  3,368.09 $  3,368.09 $  1,143.70 $  1.143.70

s s $ $ $

$ $ s $ $

$ $ $ $ s

i$?i386,389;74^ ';$80,S79:26v r;$.466,969.00i ;$ 281,886.09? ^$:S9^2.91:;:$i$40<969,00r ,^$,104;503;65,;;;$;2l;496;35 2$}126;000.00!

I I - i>i II , « ■ - — —
nafDOr nomes, nc*

RFA-2018-DBfU»-TRANS4)1-A03

Ejd)llMt B-$, Amendment #3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrciar)' of State of the State of New l-lampshlrc, do hereby ccrtilV that HARBOR HOMBS. INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Fcbruar>' 15, 1980. I further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secrelar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number: 0004909130

%

u.

IN TI-STIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the State of New l-lampshire,

this 6th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccrctar>' of State



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5EAE366F-E7DC-4EFD-B6E8-F97DB5DFC9E2

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Joel Jaffe. Secretary ' hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Harbor Homes. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 19. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Peter Kelleher. President & CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

\  • .

is duly authorized on behalf of Harbor Homes. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,.
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ( by:

Dated: June 19. 2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Joel Jaffe

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrt)DnrYYY)

6/26/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAME*^^ Kimberlv Gutekunst
F..V 603-882-2766 fwc. Noi;

Ai^RPss' kQutekunsttSleatonbenjbe.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A: Easlem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURED MARHO

Harbor Homes, Inc.
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER B: Selective Insurance Group Inc. 14376

INSURER c: Selective Insurance Company of America's Flood 12572

INSURER D; AIX Specialtv Insurance Co.

INSURER E: Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 91561987 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

lADDL
TYPE OF INSURANCE ifjeo

SUBA
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
fMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
fMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

C X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

E 1 X [ OCCUR
Y S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE lU KENieD
PREMISES fEa occurrence! S 1.000,000

X Prolestional MED EXP (Any one [>erson] $20,000

X Abuse PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LtMrr APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE S 3.000,000

POLICY 1 1 X 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG S 3.000,000

Prof (non-FTCA) S $1,000,000

C AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

X SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X X
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Per an-identl
s

$

C X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE S 10,000,000

DED 1 RETENTIONS s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y 1 N
ANYPFIOPRIETORff'ARrNER/EXECUTIVE | 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

030000111752-02 11/26/2019 11/26/2020
y  1 PER 1 1 OTH-

1 STATUTE 1 1 ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMfT $ 1,000.000

0
E
8

Professional Uablliiy
Management Liability
Crime

L1VA966006
PHSD1457150
S 2268207

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

Professional fGap")
040
Employee Dishonesty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schadula. may ba atiachad 1/ mora apaca la raqulrad)

Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. - FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes II. Inc.
Harbor Homes III, Inc.
Harbor Homes. IV. Inc.
Harbor HOmes Claremont
Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080
Southern New Hampshire HiV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord Nh 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOO #:

/KCORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of i

AGENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. Inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes. Inc.

77 Northeastern Boulevard

Nashua NH 03062POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE;

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE.
Welcoming Light. Ihc, -FID# 020481648
HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point, LLC
SARC Housing Needs Board, Inc

ACORD 101 (2008/01) ©2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC »■.

ACORCf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page i of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes, Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062POUCY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS AOpmONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Mall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point, LLC
SARC Housing Needs Board. Inc

ACORD 101 (2008/01) <S> 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua. NH 03062
www.harborhomes.org

Harbor
OMESma

Phone: 603^82-3616

603-881-8436

Fax: 603-595-7414

A Beacon for the-Homeless for Over 30 Years

l=r

Mission Statement

To create and provide t/uality residential and supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental
illness and homelessness.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful Living
A coltoborotion of six offiliated nof-for-profit orgonizotions providing southern New Honpshire's most vulnerable
community members with access to housing, health care, education, employment ond supportive services.
www.nhpartnefship.org

Harbor Homes • HeotthyotHome • Keystone Holt • Miltord Regionol Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/aIDS Tosk Force • Welcoming Light



PARTNERSHIP
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
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To the Board of Directors of Manchester, nh
Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Ellsworth, me

Partnership for Successful Living

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. and

Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the

consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated

statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the

related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence.about the amounts and

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the

auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess

ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair



presentation of the consolidated financial statennents in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership
for Successful Living as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful
Living's fiscal year 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified

audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated
December 20, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the

audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements as a whole. The supplementary information on pages 32 through 35 is presented for

purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial

statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and

relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional

procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying

accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the

consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the

information is fairly stated in all material /espects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

October 21, 2019 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership

for Successful Living's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance

with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion

on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful

Living's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part

of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering

Harbor Homes Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2019



HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

}

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30,2019

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2018)

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Patient receivables, net

Investments

Inventory

Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIAeiLITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of mortgages payable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:

Construction loan payable (See Note 11)

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Mortgages payable, tax credits

Mortgages payable, net of current portion

Mortgages payable, deferred

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets'

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2019

$  2,255,449 $

1,193,792

2,981,834

645,963

203,533

116,413

34,084

7,431,068

34,363,395

78,177

34,441,572

2018

480,242

1,096,661

2,060,419

1,301,048

192,731

123,078

46,155

5,300,334

30,968,341

41,800

31,010,141

S  41,872,640 S 36,310,475

S  1,068,271 $ 1,285,423

560,466

2,116,306

1,938,246

5,683,289

3,235,875

586,125

528,793

15,002,097

9,890,996

29,243,886

34,927,175

6,705,159

240,306

6,945,465

496,608

865,390

1,546,020

4,193,441

635,015

158,237

15,783,030

8,571,209

25,147,491

29,340,932

6,851,238

118,305

6,969,543

$  41,872,640 $ 36,310,475

Tlie accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2018)

Without With

Donor Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support;

Grants S  17,714.758 5  • 5 17,714,758 S 19,525,644

Contributions 475,502 230,542 706,044 686,681

Fundraising events, net 33,846 33,846 48,954

Net assets released from restriction 108,541 (108,541) • •

Total Support 18.332,647 122,001 18,454,648 20,251,279

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net 7,473,032 7,473,032 5,686,860

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 5,404,995 5,404,995 3,664,163

Department of Housing and

Urban Development programs 3.691,769 3,691,769 3,429,882

Veterans Administration programs 2,416,766 2,416,766 2,213,701

Rent and service charges, net 916,499 916,499 867,249

Outside rent 347,725 347,725 555,551

Contracted services 624,952 624,952 594,521

Fees for services 149,466 149,466 344,456

Management fees, net 23,450 23,450 39,124

Miscellaneous 9,834 9,834 137,951

Investment income (loss) 12,540 12,540 40,632

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 689,174 689,174 ..

Total Revenue 21,760,202 21,760,202 17,574,090

Total Support and Revenue 40,092,849 122,001 40,214,850 37,835,369

EXPENSES

Program 34,127,481 -
34,127,481 32,969,483

Administration 4,247,544
-

4,247,544 3,721,183

Fundraising 438,954 - 438,954 609,660

Total Expenses 38,813,979 - 38,813,979 37,300,326

Change In net assets before depreciation 1,278,870 122,001 1,400,871 535,043

Depreciation and amortization (1,474,760) . (1,474,760) (1,456,284)

Change in net assets (195,890) 122,001 (73,889) (921,241)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated 6,901,049 118,305 7,019,354 7,890,784

Net Assets, End of Year S  6,705,159 5  240,306 5 6,945,465 ,5 6,969,543

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2018)

2019 2018

Proeram Administration FundraKlnB Total Total

Personnel expenses:

Salaries and wages S  14,580,235 5  2,624,999 S  332,428 5  17,537,662 S  17,227,312

Employee benefits 1,988,794 426,756 36,876 2,452,426 2,157,822

Payroll taxes 1,168,946 205,004 26,071 1,400,021 1,363,849

Retirement contributions 332,050 178,788 6,320 517,158 453,707

Client services:

Rental assistance 6,041,859 6,041,859 6,475,207

Insurance assistance 996,870 996,870 923,931

Food and nutrition services 246,634 3,187 249,821 243,993

Counseling and support services 11,300 623 11,923 60,585

Medical assistance 30,557 • 30,557 20,715

Other client assistance 350,613 350,613 460,317

Professional fees for services:

Contracted services 2,242,986 4,852 2,247,838 1,569,473

Professional fees 133,784 12,524 146,308 177,854

Legal fees 9,641 123,112 132,753 111,633

Accounting fees • 125,510 125,510 106,809

Advertising and promotion 46,289 7,722 8,777 62,788 98,402

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 266,896 5,721 400 273,017 100,167

Grants and donations 471,083 16 471,099 •  518,917

Information technology 324,434 151,374 3,910 479,718 304,160

Insurance 155,580 5,707 161,287 163,508

Interest expense 841,250 75,932 1,854 919,036 932,866

Miscellaneous 104,750 43,254 340 148,344 228,820

Occupancy 1,127,657 124,434 3,195 1,255,286 1,934,075

Office expenses 424,741 110,078 18,197 553,016 584,834

Operational supplies 1,927,479 8,201 1,935,680 806,486

Staff expenses 35,967 3,604 47 39,618 38,334

Travel 267,086 6,146 539 273,771 236,550

Total Expenses 34,127,481 4,247,544 438,954 38,813,979 37,300,326

Depreciation and amortization 1,405,152 69,608 . 1:474,760 1,456,284

Total Functional Expenses 5  35,532,633 5  4,317,152 S' 438,954 5  40,288,739 5  38,756,610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of tax credit liability

Unrealized gain on investments

(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets

Inclusion of new entity in consolidated statements

(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts receivable

Patient receivables

Promises to give

Inventory

Other assets

Increase (Decrease) In:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Borrowings from lines of credit, net

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Payments on short-term borrowings

Payments on capital leases

Payments on long-term borrowings

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Change

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non-cash financing activities - debt financed fixed assets

2019

(73,889)

1,474,750

(21,044)

(10,802)

(689,174)

49,811

(921,415)

655,085

6,665

(24,306)

1,250,916

343,336

2,039,943

(438,091)

1,309,000

870,909

(217,152)

400,000

(400,000)

(821,362)

(1,038,514)

1.872;338

1,576,903

2018

5  (921,241)

1,456.284

(21,043)

724,546

(221,443)

8,000

(55,801)

30,615

(424.085)

593.622

1.169.454

(963.370)

300,812

(662,558)

190,488

(18,304)

(471,269)

(299,085)

207,811

1.369.092

3.449.241 S 1.576.903

5 919,036 5 932.866

$  4,947,262 $ 1,107,713

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization

Harbor Homes, Inc. is the largest entity as part of a collaboration of independent

nonprofit organizations, sharing a common volunteer Board of Directors, President/CEO,
and management team, that creates an innovative network to help New Hampshire

families and individuals solve many of life's most challenging issues. Known collectively

as the "Partnership for Successful Living", the collaboration is an efficient and Innovative

approach to providing services to over 5,000 New Hampshire community members each

year. This holistic approach recognizes that individuality, dignity, good health and

wellness, self-respect, and a safe place to live are key to a person's ability to contribute

to society.

While each nonprofit organization in the collaboration is a separate legal entity within

its own 501(c)(3) public charity status, mission, budget, and staff, they share back-end

resources whenever it is efficient to do so, and collaborate on service delivery when it

leads to better client outcomes. Additionally, whenever expertise In a particular area is

needed by one organization, if another has access to that, it is shared. This reduces the
overall administrative costs of each organization, and ensures that more of every

philanthropic dollar received goes directly to client care. 88% of total annual expenses

are for providing care and services.

Most importantly, by sharing resources and working as one, the collaboration is able to
coordinate and better deliver a comprehensive array of interventions designed to

-  empower individuals and families and ultimately build a stronger community. Outcomes

are enhanced through this model.

The members of the collaboration, and organizations included In these consolidated

financial statements, include the following related entities. All inter-entity transactions

have been eliminated. Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated financial statements

are hereinafter referred to as the "Organization".

Harbor Homes, Inc. - housing and healthcare

Consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.



Harbor Homes, Inc. - housing and healthcare

Has provided supports for New Hampshire's most vulnerable citizens since 1982. It

has grown from a single group home for individuals who were de-Institutionalized,
into a full continuum of housing, healthcare, and supportive services for
communities facing low-incomes, homelessness, and disability. Housing programs

provide housing for 2,000 individuals annually, and its Federally Qualified Health
Center for the Homeless provides affordable healthcare to more than 3,000. In

Greater Nashua over the past decade, Harbor Homes has effectively ended

homelessness for veterans and for persons living with HIV/AIDS, and has
decreased chronic and unsheltered homelessness substantially. Harbor Homes is

on the front lines of Nashua's opioid crisis; its extensive services have reduced

overdose deaths markedly.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - housing project management

A single-member New Hampshire Limited Liability Company that developed and

manages Boulder Point, LLC, a permanent supportive housing facility in
Plymouth, New Hampshire for up to 30 low income/horheless veteran

households. The project completed construction in July 2019. Harbor Homes,

Inc. is the sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC. The

entity does not directly serve clients.

Boulder Point, LLC - housing project development

A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company, whose purpose is to acquire, own,

develop, construct and/or rehabilitate, manage, and operate a new veterans

housing project in Plymouth, New Hampshire; Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a

0.01% investor member and the manager member. The entity does not directly

serve clients.

Welcoming Light, Inc., Harbor Homes II, Inc., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH

Ownership, Inc. - housing programs and ownership

These four nonprofits provide residential services to the elderly and/or low-income
individuals experiencing a chronic behavioral issue or disability, and were created by
Harbor Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors in response to federal regulations.

Combined, these entities serve approximately 35 individuals annually.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism d/b/a Keystone Hall - substance misuse
treatment

Keystone Hall is Greater Nashua's only comprehensive substance use disorder

treatment center. Every year, it catalyzes change in 800 individuals, including those



experiencing homelessness, those without adequate insurance, and pregnant and
parenting women. No one Is denied treatment due to an inability to pay; most
clients pay nothing for services. While in residential treatment clients- have all basic

needs met, including food, transportation, clothing, and integrated healthcare
through Partnership for Successful Living affiliates. Substance use disorder
treatment services are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally competent,
and Include residential {with a specific program for pregnant and parenting women
and their children), outpatient, intensive outpatient, and drug court services.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - In-home health care

A Medicare-certified home health agency, Healthy at Home helps clients address
physical and behavioral health challenges to live full, happy lives at home by
providing consistent, compassionate care and daily-living assistance. Health at Home
works hard to serve clients, regardless of financial barriers. Many of its 250 clients
are among the hardest to serve, as their insurance may not fully cover Incurred

expenses. Ultimately, services keep clients in their own homes, and out of hospitals,
institutions, or nursing homes. Staff provide skilled nursing, physical therapy,
occupational therapy, speech therapy, homemaking services, respite care, and
Alzheimer's care and dementia care.

SARC (Salem Association for Retarded Citizens) Housing Needs Board, Inc. -
housing programs and ownership

SARC operates a permanent supportive housing facility {Woodview Commons) in

Salem, New Hampshire for individuals with developmental or behavioral health

Issues. Harbor Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors took over responsibility for this
entity in fiscal year 2019. SARC serves 8 individuals annually.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. (the Task Force) - HIV/AIDS
services

A leader in HIV/AIDS services in New Hampshire that provides quality, holistic
services to those with HIV/AIDS. All 200 clients are low-income, and they may face
homelessness, mental illness, and substance use disorder. Outcomes are exemplary.
Whereas viral suppression rate among individuals with HIV/AIDS is 45% nationally,
more than 90% of the Task Force's clients are routinely virally suppressed. In
partnership with its Partnership for Successful Living affiliates, the Task Force
ensures that no Individual with HIV or AIDS lives In homelessness in Greater Nashua.

The Task Force operates in Greater Nashua and Keene, and is the State of New

Hampshire's sole contractor among AIDS Service Organizations for supportive
services, subcontracting to other New Hampshire AIDS Service Organizations
statewide. To counter the public health risks of the opioid crisis, the Task Force

initiated the Syringe Services program of Nashua Area in 2017.

10



Milford Regional Counseling Services - affordable counseling

Milford Regional Counseling is in process of fully integrating with Harbor Homes, Inc.,

but offers affordable counseling to those without insurance or sufficient income for

treatment. It serves approximately 200 individuals and families each year, and a third

of clients pay a reduced rate for care. Specifically, Milford Regional Counseling

provides individuals, couples, and families with counseling and psychotherapy via talk,

expressive play, and relational therapy. It specializes in serving veterans, those living
with HIV/AIDS, the homeless, and individuals dually-diagnosed with mental illness and

substance use disorder issues.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-

Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.

The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,

deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of

consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return.

ASU 2016-14 has been implemented in fiscal year 2019 and the presentation in these

consolidated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized

comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not

Include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such

information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information

was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months

or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,

are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services

and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based on historical

experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent

collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.

11



Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the Organization's

Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts
result from the provision for bad debts. Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted
from the allowance for doubtful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful

accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net

collections, business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health

care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party

coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment balances due for
which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the Organization analyzes

contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful collections and a

provision for doubtful collections, if necessary. For receivables associated with self-pay
patients, the Organization records a significant provision for doubtful collections In the
period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients
are unable to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all

reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance

for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and Is stated at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair

values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change In

net assets in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser

of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise

disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss

is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs

that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

12



The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be

recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and

eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment in fiscal year 2019.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence

of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein
are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general

operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain

grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in

nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events

specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,

where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while

permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets in
accordance with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations or a Board

approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a

restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the

stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-
reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in

which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as increases
in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor
to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets

with donor restrictions. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have

an implied restriction to be used in the year payment is due and, therefore, are reported
as net assets with donor restrictions until payment is due unless the contribution is

clearly intended to support activities of the current year. Conditional promises, such as
matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.
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Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash or

investments.' Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its

estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset and its

estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated supplies

are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses when the donated

Items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial number of

volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of time and serylces In
the Organization's program operations and In its fundraising campaigns. However, the

majority of the contributed services do not meet the criteria for recognition in financial
statements. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed

services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonflnancial assets or (b) the services

would have been purchased If not provided by contribution, require specialized skills,

and are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from

patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered. Self-pay revenue is

recorded at published charges with charitable allowances deducted to arrive at net self-

pay revenue. All other patient services revenue Is recorded at published charges with

contractual allowances ̂deducted to arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates

are subject to revisions under the provisions of reimbursement regulations.

Adjustments for such revisions are recognized In the fiscal year incurred. Included in

third-party receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care '

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity

care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Since the

Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity

care, these amounts are reported as deductions from revenue.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue Is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-

reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service Is provided for

performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to Independent

audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant Guidance, and
review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures

under the terms of the grant or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior
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experience, the Organization's management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if
any, would not materially affect the financial position of the Organization.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated Statement

of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.

Change in Net Assets Before Depreciation

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the Organization's
change in net assets, the change in net assets before depreciation has been provided in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the exception of

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have been recognized by the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal

Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section 501(c)(3),

qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be
private foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990), is
required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt purpose is subject to

income tax. In fiscal year 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. and Milford Regional Counseling
Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business income tax'and filed an Exempt

Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member. New Hampshire Limited Liability

Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC
has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has elected to be

treated as a partnership.
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Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and. the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions

believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits.
To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk

associated with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection

rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from
governmental agencies and entities supportive, of the Organization's mission.
Investments are monitored regularly by the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.

Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These Include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices

that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.
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Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are

developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they

generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1 inputs are
not available for many of the assets and liabilities that the Organization is required to

measure at fair value (for example, unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind

contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets and

unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 5.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 10.

•  Recurring measurement of loans mortgages payable - Notes 11 -14.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables, inventory,
other assets, accounts payable and, accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate

fair value.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting

Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The ASU's

core principle is that an organization will recognize revenue when it transfers promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This

standard also includes expanded disclosure requirements that result in ah entity

providing users of financial statements with comprehensive information about the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity's contracts with customers. This standard will be effective for the Organization for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in the process of
evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with

lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and lease

liability on the balance sheet at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be
classified as either finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for
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the pattern of expense recognition In the income statement. This ASU will be effective

for the Organization for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The Organization Is
currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the

consolidated financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurerr)ent of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured
at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.

Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly-

recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected
credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The Organization is currently In

the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated

financial statements.

Contributions Received and Contributions Made

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The purpose of this
amendment, due to diversity In practice, is to clarify the definition of an exchange
transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether contributions are unconditional

or conditional. This standard will be effective for the Organization for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reclassified for

comparative purposes to conform to the presentation In the current year consolidated

financial statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Finahcial assets as year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Receivables'

Investments

Total financial assets

2019 2018

2,255,449

1,193,792

3,627,797

203,533

7,280,571

$  480,242

1,096,661

3,361,467

192,731

5,131,101

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions

Less: net assets with purpose restrictions to be met

in less than a year

Restricted cash

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next twelve months $

240,306

(240,306)

1,193,792

1,193,792

6,086,779

118,305

(118,305)

1,096,661

1,096,661

$  4,034,440

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its
available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next twelve months, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and
anticipates sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-

. restricted resources. As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has

several revolving credit lines available to meet cash flow needs.

4. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash at June 30, 2019 consists of escrow and reserve accounts which are held

for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows

Reserve for replacements

Residual receipt deposits

Security deposits

Total

$  471,769

619,194 ♦
43,224 *
59,605

$  1,193,792

'Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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5. Investments

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2019:

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

Equities $ 26,530 $ 26,530 $

Other investments 177,003 - 177,003

Total S 203,533 $ 26,530 $ 177,003

6. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 consist of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net

Grants $ 1,798,715 $ $ 1,798,715

Medicaid/Medicare 731,267 (55,043) 676,224

Other 268,506 (2,870) 265,636

Residents and patients 244,127 (48,787) 195,340

Insurance 44,553 (3,062) 41,491

Contributions 3,000 - 3,000

Security deposits 1,428 - 1,428

Total $ 3,091,596 S  (109,762) s 2,981,834

7. Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center,

consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Receivable Allowance Net

Medlcaid/Medicare $ 233,671 S (28,884) $ 204,787

Other 561,134 (119,958) 441,176

Total $ 794,805 $' (148,842) $ 645,963
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8. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of June 30, 2019 is
presented below:

Land $ 4,327,743

Land improvements 54,944

Buildings 27,337,257

Building improvements 7,171,172

Software 1,075,408

Vehicles 404,192

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 759,036

Medical and dental equipment 236,976

Leasehold Improvements 7,542

Construction in progress 6,048,375

Subtotal 47,422,645

Less: accumulated depreciation (13,059,250)

Total $ 34,363,395

Depreciation expense totaled $1,471,904 for the year ended December 31, 2019.

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities at June 30, 2019 include the following:

Current LonR-Term Total

Accrued interest on debt $ 115,429 $ - $ 115,429

Compensated absences 224,386 452,714 677,100

Deferred compensation plan - 44,400 44,400

Deferred revenue 198,357 - 198,357

Other 101,849 27,280 129,129

Payroll and related liabilities 799,943 - 799,943

Retalnage on construction project 498,282 - 498,282

Security deposits - 61,731 61,731

Total $ 1,938,246 $ 586,125 $ 2,524,371
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10. Lines of Credit

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc.

$1,000,000 of credit available from TO Bank, N. A. due January 31, 2020, secured by

all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly

interest payments to ID Bank, N. A. at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%
adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$423,170 at an interest rate of 6.50%. The Organization was not in compliance with
certain debt covenant requirements in fiscal year 2019, however TO Bank has

granted a waiver.

Harbor Homes, Inc.

$500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank, N. A. due January 31, 2020, secured

by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly

interest payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%

adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$361,863 at an interest rate of 6.50%. Debt covenant requirements have been met

in fiscal year 2019.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

$750,000 line of credit available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on
)

demand, and secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a

minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate

plus 1.00% {6.50% at June 30, 2019) to Merrimack County Savings Bank. As of
June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of $84,302. Debt covenant
requirements have been met in fiscal year 2019.

Healthy at Home, Inc.

$250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A., due January 31, 2020, secured by

all business assets. The interest rate is the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%

{6.50% at June 30, 2019). The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $198,936
at June 30, 2019. Debt requirements have been met in fiscal year 2019.

Lines of credit are categorized In the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

11. Construction Loan Payable

At June 30, 2019, Boulder Point, LLC had a construction loan payable totaling

$3,235,875. This temporary loan relates to the Boulder Point project and will be
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converted to permanent debt in October 2019 with two mortgages from Enterprise

Bank totaling $1,130,000, the balance from Low Income Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding, as
well as various other grants and donations. The construction loan is secured by real

property and Is categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

12. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor Homes, Inc. to

the Community Development Finance Authority through the Community Development

Investment Program, payable through the sale of tax credits to donor organizations. At
June 30, 2019, these tax credits totaled $428,793.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income Housing Tax
Credits (LIHTC).

Mortgages payable, tax credits are secured by real property, are amortized over various

years, are categorized In the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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13. Mortgages Payable

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Frpfluencv Rate Maturity Prooertv/Securitv

3,572,442. S  19,635 Monthly 4.00K 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

3,363,000 (l){2j Interest only 4.00H 02/28/20 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard In Nashua, NH

1,129,465 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

1,125,000 (1) - Interest only 6.00% 02/28/20 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard In Nashua, NH

1,095,236 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

1,021,468 7,768 •Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH

613,088 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH

563,773 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua, NH

564,112 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH

431,962 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street In Nashua, NH

344,145 5,276 Monthly 9.25% (3) 12/01/26 Allds Street in Nashua, NH

309,370 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03/29/21 14 Maple Street in Nashua, NH

238,895 3,369 Monthly 9.28% (3) 01/01/28 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH

238,106 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04/06/42 99 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH

208,754 1,731 Monthly 7.00% (3) 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH

173,934 3,184 Monthly 9.25% (3) 05/01/25 North Main Street In Nashua, NH

114,599 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

111,236 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

102,377 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 11/10/29 24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH

99,028 2,543 Monthly 9.25% (3) 04/01/23 Salem, NH property

87,039 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua, NH

78,535 2,385 Monthly 9.25% (3) 08/01/22 3 Winter Street in Nashua, NH

43,366 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH

$  15,628,930 Subtotal

(66,367) Debt issuance costs

(560,466) Payments due in the next fiscal year

S  15,002,097 Mortgages payable, net of current portion

(1) To be converted to term loan at maturity.

(2) Principal payments of S3,000 per month have been required and paid since March, 2019.

(3) HUD issued and backed.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the mortgages payable:

Year Amount

2020 $ 560,466

2021 627,553

2022 669,446

2023 602,749

2024 605,075

Thereafter 12,563,641

Total $ 15,628,930

Mortgages payable are categorized In the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

14. Mortgages Payable, Deferred

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding, secured by real property, total
ing $9,890,996 at June 30, 2019. These loans are interest free, and are not required to
be repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan agreements or,
for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that program. The deferred loans
are subordinate to any non-deferred loan on the related property.
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Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

City of Manchester:

Somerville Street property 300,000

300,000

580,000

491,000

80,000

65,000

1,216,000

436,400

Total City of Manchester

City of Nashua:

Factory Street property

Spring Street property

Strawberry Bank condominiums

High Street fire system

Total City of Nashua

Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Strawberry Bank condominiums

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):

Boulder Point property

Factory Street property

Somerville Street property

Spring Street property

Amherst Street property

Total FHLB

NHHFA:

Boulder Point property

Amherst Street property

Factory Street property

Spring Street property

Somerville Street property

Total NHHFA

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred S

(1) Will be automatically forgiven at the end of the term.

(2) Non-recourse.

Deferred mortgages payable are secured by real property and are categorized In the fair

value hierarchy as Level 2.

436,400

500,000

400,000

400,000

398,74.7

385,000

2,083,747 (1)

1,822,500

1,500,000

982,349

550,000

1,000,000

5,854,849 (2)

9,890,996

26



15. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to expenditure for the following specified
purposes at June 30, 2019:

Purpose Amount

Capital improvements $  25,000

Client services 18,122

Dental 12,500

Housing 125,000

Miscellaneous 32,700

Special events 26,984

Total $  240,306

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted

purpose or by the passage of time.

16. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC), Net

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services provided
through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-party payor, and
managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual rates for services rendered.
For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Organization
recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for services provided or on the

basis of discounted rates if negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity

care services are computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family
size. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Organization's

uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the
Organization records a provision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in the
period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified

as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies, which define charity

services as those costs for which no payment is anticipated. The Organization uses

federally established poverty guidelines to assess the level of discount provided to the
patient. The Organization is required to provide a full discount to patients with annual
incomes at or below 100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If
the patient is unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All
patients are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on household

size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients with incomes

over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.
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Patient services revenue (FQHC}, net of provision for bad debts and contr^actual allow
ances and discounts, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charges Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid S  3,796,423 S  (737,829) S - S  3,058,594 $  1,505,498

Medicare 2,358,692 (814,259) • 1,544,433 1,024,352

Third-party 1,245,677 (478,688) - 766,989 1,069,007

Sliding fee/free care 644,211 (518,635) 125,576 2,960

Self-pay 188,259 - (10,390) 177,869 303,800

Subtotal

Provision for bad debts

Total

S  8,233,262 S (2,030,776) S (529,025) 5,673,461 3,905,617

(268,466) (241,454)

5  5,404,995 S 3,664,163

17. Client Rental Assistance

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents on behalf of the
consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6. million is comprised of leases held in
the Organization's name, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

18. Functionalized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are

attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, those

expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The

majority of expenses are direct costs that are charged to the applicable cost center,

program, grant, and/or function. Costs that are not directly related to a cost center,
program, grant, and/or function, or allocated as noted below, are accumulated into an
indirect cost pool and charged using direct salaries, wages, and benefits as the allocation

base. Certain individual cost elements are charged on a direct allocation basis, as

follows:

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits - Except for certain key members of management,

employees charge their time directly to specific grants, contracts, or other activities.

Charges are supported by labor distribution reports and timesheet records, which

reflect the actual activities under each. Fringe benefits include unemployment

insurance, workers' compensation, PICA, health insurance, dental insurance, short-term

and long-term disability, and matching retirement contributions. Benefits are also

directly charged, using a methodology similar to that used for salaries and wages.
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Occupancy Costs - Occupancy costs are allocated as follows:

•  Interest on debt-financed property is allocated based on the purpose/use of the

property.

•  Rent Is allocated based on square footage.

•  Utilities are charged based on the purpose/use of the property.

•  Depreciation is allocated based on the purpose/use of the property.

19. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent supportive housing
development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for homeless veterans, and five
two-bedroom apartments for low-income families located on Boulder Point Drive in

Plymouth, New Hampshire.. The New Hampshire Community Development Finance
Authority has awarded Harbor Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project.
Harbor Homes, Inc. is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive
a developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed, the
29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable, permanent
supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor Homes, Inc. and White

River junction VA Medical Center will also provide essential supportive services and case
management on-site.

20. Deferred Compensation Plan

In fiscal year 2019, the Organization offered a 401(k) retirement plan to qualifying
employees. Upon meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of
their wages to the 401(k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the employee
contribution based on years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the
Organization for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $463,822.

The Organization also maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain directors (the
SA Plan). The deferred compensation liability under the SA Plan was $44,400 as of
June 30, 2019 and was recorded as a long-term liability. This liability is offset by a
corresponding long-term asset.
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21. Concentration of Risk

The Organization received revenue in fiscal year 2019 as follows:

Grants 44%

Patient services revenues (other), net 19%

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 13%

Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%

Department of Veterans Affairs 6%

All other support and revenue

Total 100%

22. Contingencies

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and

local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or
unasserted at this time. Government activity continues to increase with respect to

investigations and allegations concerning possible violations by healthcare providers of
fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could result in the imposition of

significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient service
previously billed. Management is not aware of any material incidents of noncompli-
ance; however, the possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if
any, are not presently determinable.

23. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, State of
Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in this update require that

the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain the change during the fiscal year of
restricted cash as part of the total of cash and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted
cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to the same such

amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,255,449

Restricted Cash 1,193,792

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 3,449;241
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24. Prior Period Restatement

Beginning net assets for fiscal year 2019 have been restated by $49,811 to Include the
assets, liabilities, and net assets of SARC Housing Needs Board, Inc. which is now

included in these consolidated financial statements. On April 1, 2019 Harbor Homes, Inc.

and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living's Board of Directors took over

responsibility for this organization.

25. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 21, 2019, which is the date

the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Events subsequent to year end, include the following:

•  Upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project, additional Low

Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding of approximately $2.6 million will be
provided to Boulder Point, LLC.
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rARTMRSHV KM SUCOSSfUl IMNS

CaoKildjUfit Suitnicni ei Fkundal PnitJon

(With Comparadw Touls as ol Nine 30. 7018)

Greater Nashua SAAC HOusin( Southern NH MUlordftefional

Harbor Boulder Harbcr Harbor HH Coundion Healthy at Welcocrdni Heeds HfV/AlOS Ceurselnc 2019 2018

Homes' Point. UC Homes II. be. Homesltl be 0» Alcohobm Home, be. Lifhl. Inc Board. Inc. Tbk forte, be. Sernces.lx. Subtotal flrnirsalions Total I2|j

ASSTTS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equiralenis S  Ut.931 S  S09.$U S  1427 S  S02 S 4416 s  6ss46a s 4S,97] s  tss S  36.911 S  116.630 S  20.S20 S 2,2SS.449 s  s 24SS.449 S 480.242

Aesbiaed cash 412J14 471.769 BOKS ajei is.in 49.663 73426 117.2S7 1.193.792 1,193.792 1436461

Accounts recerratale. net 2.1SS.S19 1442 601 477404 1S2.495 6.410 407 180406 2.4S0 2481434 2481434 2460.419

Pattest reeerraMes. net 64S.963 64S.961 64S.963 14014a

Due hem relaicd orprdtattens l.lS£.S3t 36,242 1.192473 (1.192473)

brvestments 203J33 203433 203433 192,731

Imreitiorv 116.413 116.413 116.413 123478

2J?7 17.872 446S 9.C00 34494 34.084 46.1SS

Total Current Assets S.S2S.601 9S1.6<7 34.22S 24,971 19.6SS U70.199 203,331 80,291 1S447S 306.436 22.970 .  8,623,941 (1,192473) 7.431.068 6,300,334

Noncvrrent Assets;

Prepertr and equipment, net 21.902.eS0 6,063.2SI 29S.S36 238,000 297.4S$ S.39S.096 7,737 188,741 38467 6.032 34,433496 (70400) 34463.39S 30.968.341

ktvesimem in Boutder Peini 441,011 441418 (441418)

Prepaid bnd lease 2tS.OOO Z8S400 (28S400)

Other assets 77^77 600 78.177 78.117 41400

Tool Nonosrcnt Aiuo

ToulAucu

UAKUTKS ANO NCT ASSm

Currtnt UtMUn:

Unetofcred.t

Currew potian a< mgrt{ic<^ piY<Me

Dim le orianbaltont

Accounts MY)b!*

Accnied cjiociuts ane other liaMliin

Total Girrent UablitMs

Loni-Term UaMdts:

Constniciion ban oayoWe {See Note tl)

Accnied opemes and ether KabWn

Marttatcs payaUe. u> credits

Mart(a(n payaUe. net e( current pertign

■utortfafes parable, deferred
Total loni-Term LbMliles

Total liabiliies

Net Assets:

Without donoi resthctioM

With donor restrfctiens

Total Net Assets

Total LiabBties and Net Assets

mjoo

77,9«6^ i 7JW.S68 $

WT.aSS S495J»9t T.737 ltt,7ai MJ67

$  J57.110 $_6,tty« $ 211M S 769flJ7 i 133.447 $

{7«.0It|

_31W^

785433 $  $ S 6 6 84402 6 198,936 6 6 5 6 $ 1.063.771 6 6 1468.271 6 1.286,423

328.279 32449 19.128 134.686 23,344 22.280 660.466 660.466 496.608

661.198 12.172 171476 7.494 13.660 146.886 229,767 18.888 11.166 21.687 1.192473 (1.192471)
1.212.324 720,140 3.S00 $.730 466 14.377 68,048 7,661 9.133 84,937 2.116406 2.116.306 866.390

1402.422 498,782 2.963 1442 22 120,168 64,127 3474 16.316 14,020 2.271446 (2B640C) 1.938.2a 1.646420

4439.2S6 1.73aS94 210483 34.194 14.138 363.42] 466.996 263,836 66.637 110.113 21.687 7.161.162 (1.477473) 6481.289 4.193.441

343S47S 1.236476 3436475

4S4463 4S3,190 3418 2413 1431 64.437 16.109 L02S 3466 7.497 1.027.143 (441418) 686.126 636416

428,793 loano 628.793 628.793 168,337

10,760471 311496 219.767 3.a2.72$ 160490 76.7a 16.002497 16402497 16.783430

S.167496 2.3224C0 616.400 1486.000 9.890.996 9490.996 &671409

16441.423 6.1I1.S6S 314414 222.280 617.633 5.422.162 16.109 161418 79403 7.497 29.684904 (441418) 29443436 76.147.491

21.230479 7.342.1S9 626.202 266.474 531,771 6.776486 U3.10S 416.464 146,440 117.610 21487 36.8a466 (1.918491) 34.927,176 79.340,937

6,476461 (12.191) (196.441) 6,497 (214461) 889.710 (272,037) (146.422) 47.002 196.468 1.383 6,776,159 (70400) 6.70S.1S9 6461,238

240406 240406 ' 740406 118406

6.716.167 (12.191) (196.441) 6.497 (214461) -  889.710 (272417) (146.422) 47402 196.468 1.383 7416.a6 (704001 6346.a6 6.969443

274464a 6 7.329,968 6 329.761 6 262471 $ 317.110 6 6466496 6 211468 6 269432 6 191,442 6 313468 6 22,970 6 43461431 i (1388491) 6 41472440 6 16410,476

'Harbor Nometcoraittiol Harbor Homes, kic. and HHntrmcuth.UC-See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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CenseSdatMi lutement dl AoWiilet
F«rthc T«*r k0K IQ, 2019

fWth CoflVd'Mfwt TeuH for iho Toor CndoO June JO. 20tt)

SUPfORT AND ROtMUC

iuWt:

Cfoms

Conv^utigm

Fundfvbinc not

To(jl5(«0on

Revenue:

P»:ieAt MTVtcet fwenun (etfierl. net

Pattern servtcei reveevei (FQHCI. net

Oepartsvttm of HewuAf oAd

Urbvi Ocvttopment prgf rarm

Vetery^ AdnMnHUaiiOn pro|ra<n»

Rent and servke charrm. net

OUwde rent

Contracted «ervke«

fees tor terncei

Mana^emenf fees

UiKcRantous

Imesuneni ineo«ne (tauf

Gate (km) OA dHooiot of Hsod eueu

Total Revenue

Total Support and Revenue

DCHN$£S

Freyam

AdmMuration

fundraliini

Total Lipenses

OTHCR irfCOMT

Recovpmcnt of pr«r wrtteoff

Total Other Ingsme

0»n|e If* net assets before deyeoetion

Depredation and amortisation

Ounfe in net assets

Net Assets (Oeftdtl Re$WiinR of Year.«restated

Net Assets {Oeflcltl tnd ol Tear

Narter

Homes*

JJI2«320

S.404.m

J.ZlT.ai

t416.;6«

»2.077

49ua

nt.137

•  41.su

12.173

SSl.U?

JU4&.7M

27.002.147

2^7i.SS3

)0.27S.SO4

700.000

200.000

1.070.262

1.1ST.S1S

cn.n3j

6J0S.42O

BouUer

Point, Ltf

JSO

"js^

Grealar Haahua SAKHoullt^ 5ouIhrm HH MHord bcflonal

Harbor Harbor HH Ceund on HoaWiT Welcsmini Haoda HIV/AI05 Cotftttofttf 2019 2016

HBrT>«« Irw HrpH-nl» hv OwwiWo It* at Hotr» a* UrM b* board. Ir* T»«» »<*f» It* Vrv*M It* 5ub4Blal flM-atlotH ISSM Tom

S $ 5  1355.175 5 $ $ 5  1.51U17 $  $ 17,714.75* 5  5 17.714.758 5 15325.644

10351 455 2.656 26372 6313 706,044 706344 ■6*63*1
6X1 (13001 416 6.706 (500) 11346 11346

1356371 (541) 1.U6 1.565395 6311 16,454.646 163543tt 20,261.275

2.762.721 1357.565 7.471332 7,471312 5366360

5.404.555 5304.995 1.6X.I6I

126,662 102.252 25,077 75.185 22.551 221.957 3.755.207 (101.4161 3.691.769 3,4293*2
2.416.766 2.416.766 2.211.701

10.025 22.266 (11.2671 20,914 6.6*7 916.495 916.499 *67.245
4,175 15.750 511.177 (161.452) 147.725 555351 .

740.555 117.157 I.6SS 26.715 656.460 (31.526) 624.952 554.521
170 20.400 63311 214.733 (65.2621 149.466 144.456

21,450 66.586 (41.516) 23.450 19.124

75 165 1302 2X7 (25) 81 11 9.614 9.614 137,551
10 10 6 151 16 11 101 12.540 12.540 40.U2

106.017 6*5.174 619.124
170124$ 112.410 47316 1301320 1.526.746 121.560 11.451 251.222 2113*4 22.162.421 (407.2211 21.760.202 17,574350
170J4S U2.4M 47.516 5305.451 1.526.205 126.696 11.451 2.216322 219357 40,622371 (407.2211 40314350 32.635,369

iia»>6 50.524 14379 1392J16 1.271,655 125316 12351 2.142.145 77,451 14.a2.176 (154.a»7) $4,127,461 33565.4*3

ISM* la.sii 14.*5a 604.472 165.051 31,427 11.514 I01.19S 31320 4.259,666 (52X41 4347.544 X72I.U3
12352 11.775 6.225 7406 545 418.554 416 954 605.660

129,«»4 105.475 45.173 4.406,500 1.674.565 166366 11.607 2.250,951 105,522 35.221,200 (407.221) 163(1,575 37.100.326

-

(2003001
(200,0001 , , , .

aani 27.555 (1357) 556,551 <146.1601 (40.172) (2.156) (14,625) (90325) I.4C0.671 1,400371 535.043

25.121 21.259 14.149 225356 ijn 24.445 651 501 1.474.760 1.474.760 I.4S6l264

1S,62( 1.656 (16.206) 171.257 (1513371 164.617) (2309) (35.112) (90325) (21365) (713*5) (521.241)

nil£69l 4X1 ri5145« 513411 ru6.ioo( (613051 45J1I 210350 91.70* 7365354 (700001 7.015354 7350.784

5  6457 5  1214.661) S  «t5.7IO 5  (272.0171 5  (146.422) $  47302 S  155.45* i  1361 i 7315.465 $  (200001 $ 6X5.465 5 6.969.543

*HartMir ilemet censhtt of Harbor Hemes, Inc. and HH Phmouth. ILC • See Noce I.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Financial Position - Harbor Homes, Inc.

June 30,2019

Harbor Homes, inc.

Harbor

Homes

Program

Harbor

Homes I

Harbor

Homes VI

Total

Harbor

Homes. Inc.

HH

Plymouth. LLC

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Total Liabilities and Net Assets S  26,995,090 S 147,942 S

Harbor

Homes*

Cash and cash equivalents $ 814,790 5 498 $ 13,643 S 828,931 $ 5 828,931

Restricted cash 290,316 57,248 64,650 412,214 - 412,214

Accounts receivable, net 2,157,629 517 1,373 2,159,519 • 2,159,519

Patient receivables, net 645,963 - 645,963 • 645,963

Due from related organizations 715,903 715,903 440,728 1,156,631

Investments 203,533 203,533 203,533

Inventory 116,413 • 116,413 • 116,413

Other assets 2,397 - 2,397 2,397

Total Current Assets 4,946,944 58,263 79,666 5,084,873 440,728 5,525,601

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net 21,530,551 89,679 282,420 21,902,650 • 21,902,650

Investment in Boulder Point 441,018 • 441,018 - 441,018

Other assets 77,577 - 77,577 - 77,577

Total Noncurrent Assets 22,049,146 89,679 282,420 22,421,245 22,421,245

Total Assets !  $ 26,996,090 S 147,942 S 362,086 s 27.506,118 5 440,728 27,946,846

LIABILiTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit S 785,033 S S s 785,033 5 S -  785,033

Current portion of mortgages payable 299,566 22,304 6,409 328,279 328,279

Due to related organizations 9,734 110,736 120,470 440,728 561,198

Accounts payable 1,209,508 1,054 1,762 1,212,324 1,212,324

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,500,513 604 1,305 1,502,422 1,502,422

Total Current Liabilities 3,794,620 33,696 120,212 3,948,528 440,728 4,389,256

Long-Term Liabilities:

Construction loan payable (See Note 11) •

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 480,788 2,188 1,587 484,563 484,563

Mortgages payable, tax credits 428,793 428,793 •
428,793

Mortgages payable, net of current portion 10,502,395 56,231 202,345 10,760,971
-

10,760,971

Mortgages payable, deferred 5,167,096 . 5,167,096 - 5,167,096

Total Long-Term Liabilities - 16,579,072 58,419 203,932 16.841,423 16,841,423

Total Uabilities 20,373,692 92,115 324,144 20,789,951 440,728 21,230,679

Net Assets: ,

Without donor restrictions 6,382,092 55,827 37,942 6,475,861 6,475,861

With donor restrictions 240,306 - 240,306 240,306

Total Net Assets 6,622,398 55,827 37,942 6,716,167 6,716,167

362,086 S 27,506,118 S 440,728 $ 27.946,846

'Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statemeni of Activities - Harbor Homes, inc.

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Harbor Homes, inc.

Hartwr Total

Homes Harbor Harbor Harbor HH Harbor

Proeram Homes i Homes VI Homes Inc. • Plvmouth IIC Homes*

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Suppon:

Grants S  13,824,062 S 5 S  13,824,062 S 5 13,824,062

Contributions 633,201 5,000 638,201 638,201

Fundralsing events, net 21,6S9 21,659 21,659

Total Support 14,478,922 5,000 14,483,922 14,483,922

Revenue;

Patient services revenues (other), net 3,312,320 3,312,320 3,312,320

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 5,404,995 5,404,995 5,404,995

Department of Housing and

Urban Development programs 3,045,809 94,488 77,184 3,217,481 3,217,481

Veterans Administration programs 2,416,766 2,416,766 2,416,766

Rent and service charges, net 752,999 28,740 20,338 802,077 802,077

Outside rent 491,248 491,248 491,248

Contracted services 243,345 243,345 243,345

Fees lor services 131,132 131,132 131,132

Management fees 43,536 43,536 43,536

Miscellaneous 5,396 238 5,634 5,634

Investment income (loss) 12,109 25 39 12,173 12,173

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 581,137 581,137 581,137

Total Revenue 16,440,792 123,253 97,799 16.661.844 16,661,844

Total Support and Revenue 30,919,714 123,253 102,799 31.145.766 31,145,766

EXPENSES

Program 26,867,345 69,009 65,793 27,002,147 27,002,147

Administration 2,844,901 18,897 13,054 2,876,852 2,876,852

Fundralsing 396,505 396,505 396,505

Total Expenses 30,108,751 87,906 78,847 30,275,504 30,275,504

OTHER INCOME

Recoupment of prior write-off • Milford Regional 200,000 200,000 200,000

Total Other Income 200,000 200,000 200,000

Change in net assets before depreciation 1,010,963 35,347 23,952 1,070,262 1,070,262

Depreciation and amortization 1,139,644 6,464 11,407 1,157,515 1,157,515

Change in net assets (128,681) 28,883 12,545 (87,253) (87,253)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 6,751,079 26,944 25,397 6,803,420 6,803,420

Net Assets, End of Year 5  6,622,393 S 55,827 S 37,942 5  6,716,167 5 S 6,716,167

'Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC • See Note 1-

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Harbor Homes, Inc; Healthy at Home, Inc; Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism;
Southern NH HlWAIDs Task Force

(CURRENT BOARD MEMBER CHARACTERISTICS & AFFILIATIONS)

NAME POSITION OCCUPATION RESIDENCE CATEGORY

Thomas 1. Arnold Director Retired - Former City Solicitor,
Manchester, NH

Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Jack Balcom Director Retired BAE Systems
Current Tax Preparer, H&R Block

Merrimack. NH Civic Leader

Vijay Bhatt Director Information Technology-
Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

Burlington. MA Business Leader

Richard Carvalho Director Food Service -!■ Franchise Owner,
Dunkin Domits

Nashua. NH Business Leader

Vincent
Chamberlain

Director Business - FAA Center, Nashua Brookline, NH Business Leader

Philip Duhaime Director Retired - Food Service Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Jared Freilich Treasurer Business- VP Bank of America,
Merrill Lynch

Hampstead, NH Business Leader

Laurie Goguen Asst.

Secretary
Business — Linahan Limousine,
Customer Service

Nashua, NH Civic Leader/Consumer

Joel JafFe Secretary • Retired - Business, Hewlett
Packard

Litchfield, NH Civic Leader

Lanna Martin Director Business - BAE Systems Merrintack, NH Business Leader

Edward
McDonough

Director Non-Profit Agency Director -
• Gate House Sober Community

Nashua, NH Civic Leader

Richard Plante Vice Chair Retired - Military Manchester, NH Civic Leader

Daniel Sallet Chair Business - BAE Systems,
VP Finance/Electronic Systems

Ayer, MA Business Leader

Trent Smith Director Retired - Business, HR Milford, NH Civic Leader

Revised 03/24/20



Ana Pancine, MBA

Nashua, NH

Summar\'

Results-driven finance executive possessing progressive experience managing finance and
accounting functions. Experienced with financial operations, accounting, reporting, asset,
liability and balance sheet management, forecasting, controls, operational efficiencies, and
financial analysis. Versatile leader promoting accountability and integrity, dedicated to more
efficient operations through innovation and technology, implements system and management
strategies to increase transparency, efficiency, and accurate deliverables. Decisive and motivated
change agent actively seeking opportunities to lead positive change with integrity in an
innovative environment.

Professional Experience

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH November 2007 - Present

Acting Chief Financial Officer March, 2020-Present

Chief Revenue Officer August 2018 — March, 2020

•  Supervise and manage the Business/Finance Office team composed of 15 staff members,
performing duties such as A/R, A/P, Staff Accountant, Senior Staff Accountant,
Credentialing, Medicare/Medicaid/private/self-pay billing.

•  Manage the overall strategy and optimization of revenue cycle operations, systems,

policies and procedures to apply an improvement to charges, claims, payments,

collections and A/R, denials, and reporting of results and analysis.

•  Solicited and successfully developed budget proposals for grant applications securing
governmental funds to support operations and maintaining consistent service delivery.

•  Responsible for reviewing and negotiating financial terms for federal and state contracts.

•  Accountable for driving better integration and alignment between all revenue-related

functions. Including creating revenue model development, analysis and changes to maximize
revenue.

• Monitor the effectiveness of collection efforts and ensure that insurance billings are current
within the established period specified in the department policy. Manage all other revenue

pipelines of each revenue stream to determine in advance the level of risk to obtaining
desired goals and what adjustments should ultimately be implemented.

• Monitor timeliness and effectiveness of billing department activities, ensuring that

outstanding patient accounts and accounts receivables are no more than the agreed-upon limit
and that bad debt is within the budgeted target.

• Manage program revenue by reviewing and tracking all contracts on a monthly basis, and

ensure all funds are fully invoiced/ billed accordingly to flinders by contract/grant deadline.

• Work closely with the CFO and other C_suite and e.xecutive leaders to continually improve

the alignment of each functional group to support the business development organizational



Ana Pancine, MBA

Nashua, NH

Structure, legal, finance, compensation, hiring and selection criteria, and rewards and
recognition.

• Assist the CFO in managing and implementing financial performance measures that support
the PSL's strategic directions.

• Work closely with each PSL program manager to develop a goal to meet budget .
responsibilities to ensure ongoing financial viability for programs.

• Work closely with the Compliance Officer or designee to prepare and revise the fiscal

operations procedures manual and ensure implementation of these.

• Work closely with the Grants and Strategy department to develop new lines of business and

grow existing lines of business. This includes the development of new budgets, forecasting,
and trend analysis.

•  Internal and external reports for State & Federal projects.

•  Provide support to CFO on all special projects; serve as back up for this position.

•  Prepare complex financial statements, internal/annual reports for planning and oversight of
each program within an organization

Various November 2007—August 2018

Assist with budget development for 92 cost centers and 8 affiliated agencies with annual

expenses and revenue over $40m

Prepare operational and variance analysis for financial presentations based on GAAP,
organization. State and Federal guidelines.

Maintain accurate accounts including cash, inventory, prepaid, fixed assets, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and line of credit transactions.

Chair of the Greater Nashua Continuum Care (GNCOC) and GNCOC Board of Directors,

composed of representatives from the Federal, State, and City Governments, housing
program directors, local hospital staff, social services agencies, financial institutions, private
sector, and religious institutions.

Established a Safety Committee for the PSL agencies which results in a reduction of $50K in

WC premiums within one year.

Developed Safety policies and procedures for and guidance of staff on requirements

established by insurance companies and funders.

Created and established the financial policies and procedure manual for the organization

Knowledge of planning techniques, testing and sampling methods involved in conducting

audits.

Extensive experience with Financial Statements audits, reviews, compilations, and audits for

Governmental organizations (A-133).

Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management comments on A-
133 audits.

Prepare all budgets for the Development Department to be submitted for competitive State,

Federal and Local grant applications.



Ana Pancine. MBA

Nashua, NH

•  Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy for new and renewed contracts

•  Prepare, review and update all Finance/Accounting policies and procedures to ensure
compliance with new Federal regulations.

Hewlett-Packard Various locations August 2001 — November 2007

Business Analyst February 2004 - November 2007

Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team contracts on a monthly basis.

Responsible for revenue recognition for two US districts, Latin America and Canada.

Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the department, which
included financial reports, risk reports, contract metric reports.

Responsible for all billing for Latin America and prepared currency translation reporting.

Managed ten cost centers with annual expenses of$9m and revenue of$18m.
Variance reporting monthly for +/-I % of forecasted to report to senior management.

Maintained global reporting of 200 employees with emphasis on geographic alignment,

individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utilization and resource mapping

Main contact for all customers and service providers located in the Latin America territory.

Provided Financial Support for account closing.

Jualitj' Controller/ System Support Admin June 2003 — February 2004
Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.

Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting, geography reports

Maintain all employee-related spreadsheets updated.

Managed quality review reports ensuring policies and procedures are being followed.

Mentored new hires and provided support for team members with problem-solving.

*er Event Administrator August 2001-June 2003
Responsible for billing revenue.

Maintenance of contracts, including service charges and billing.

Data Entr>'

Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.

Assistance and ser\'ice provided for all customer located in the Latin
America/Caribbean/Europe territory

Education

Southern NH University' 2015 -2017
MBA, graduated with Honors
Major: Finance

Hesser College 2001-2005



Ana Pancine, MBA

Nashua, NH

BS, Magna Com Laude (CPA: 3.9/4.0)
Majors: Finance
Minor: Accounting

Other Skills

Trained Medical Interpreter: Portuguese & Spanish 2010
Trained Translator: Portuguese

Skilled USCIS interpreter

Computer: Windows, Microsoft Office. SIFT — Financial Database, Fundware/F9
Finance related: PEARS/CHAMP/WFM, NCAS/SAP, ABILA - MIP

Language: Fluent Portuguese, Proficient Spanish



Graciela Silvia Sironich-Kalkan MD.

Present Mailing Address

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

Telephone 603-821-7788

Medical Education

Universldad de Buenos Aires

Ciudad Autonorha de Buenos Aires

Argentina

MD, 12/21/1979

School Awards & Membership In Honorary/ Professional Societies

ASAM: member of the American Society of Addiction Medicine, February 2016 active

Cardiology Argentine Society: 1982---1986 associated member

Azcuenaga 980, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Intensive Care Argentine Society: 1985—1992 associated member 1992—1997Board's Member

Cnel. Niceto Vega 4617, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Argentine Association of Enteral and Parenteral Nutrition: 1983—1997, Founder and Board's

Member

Lavalle 3643 3F Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Blologlc's Security Committee Navy Hospital: 1985—1997 Board's Member 1986—1997

Patricias Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Certifications / LIcensure

NPI: 1760751531

State of New Hampshire Full License 2/1/2012 to 6/30/2018 # 15553
DEA Registration: FS 2954851

DATA 2000 8 Hour Waiver Qualifying Buprenorphine Training and DEA registration

State of New Hampshire Temporary License Date 11/02/2011 to 5/12/2012 #T0566

State of Massachusetts Limited License #222359 Exp. Date 06/30/2005

DEA Registration#AS4148501E136, Exp. Date 06/2005

ACLS Certification Exp. Date March 2015

BLS Certification

U.S.M.L.E/ E.C.F.M.G: 08/27/2001



Argentina:

Pan—American & Iberic Federation of Intensive Care Medicine. Degree of Certification in Critical

Care Medicine. Diploma of Accreditation, Lisbon, Portugal 1995.

National Academy of Medicine, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. Certification of
Professional Physicians as Critical Care Specialist. 1993.

Certificate of Specialist Argentine Society of Critical Care, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires,
Argentina. 1993

Specialist in Critical Care, Ministry of Health and Social Security, Federal District, Ciudad
Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. 1991.

National License: #58049 October Activel980—March 1997 Book 17, Page 18

Province of Buenos Aires School 2"^^ District: #28446 08/1980 Book XI pagel92
Avellaneda, Province of Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Work Experience:

Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center

45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060
Medical Director, March 2014 to present

Worked on integration of PCP, Behavioral Health adult andpediatrics and implementing
Policies for MAT.

Established under my direction the policies for Pediatric attention. Policies for HepatitisC
treatment and successful implementation.

Opening of the Dental Clinic In 2015 as part of the integration plan.
Coordinate the monthly QA/QI Committee for HCHWC until

2019

PCMH 2""^ Level in 2015 PCMH 3rd Level October 31 2016
HCHWC in 2017 was award with the top 30 percent FQHC

byHRSA.

2019 In charge of the operation of the clinic.
Working in PCMH accreditation begin on 2019 and
continue

In the year 2018 begin to provide EIS for HIV and
prevention treatment for the risk population.
The clinic began to provide Women's Health in 2018
In August 2019 clinic began to provide pre and postnatal
care.

In the year 2020 the clinic will begin to provide colposcopy.
Established and coordinate the MAT Program September 2014 to the present.

The program serves all population who is in need of SUD treatment.
The program is integrated at this time with Keystone Hall inpatient and outpatient services
In November 2016 open Respite for patients from Safe Station for withdraw assisted treatment

for sub and for patients that need lower level of care cannot be discharge home because



homelessness. The program closed in 2019.

Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center

45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060

General Practice, August 2012 to present.

The Doctor's office:

765 South Main St, Suite 103, Manchester, NH 03102

General Practice, November 2011 to December 2017

Practice Closed.

American Red Cross Massachusetts Bay Chapter:

139 Main St Cambridge, MA 02142a 1530

Health and Safety: Part Time Instructor in English and Spanish in CPR/AED Adults, Children,

Infants and First Aid. 06/2011-12/2012



The Doctor's Office:

765 South Main St. Suite 103, Manchester, NH 03102

First Line Therapy Lifestyle Educator, Coach. 05/2011-12/2017.

Caritas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center.

736 Cambridge Street, Brighton, MA.02135

Department of Internal Medicine: Observer 03/2003-12/2003

Laurence General Hospital,

1 General Street, Lawrence, MA. 01842

Observer, shadowing an Attending Neurologist 11/2002- 03/2003

Hewlett Packard, Medical Division

3000 Minuteman Rd, Andover MA. 01810

Medical Consultant for Latin America Field Operations 09/1997-12/1999

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.
Patricias Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Chief Surgical Care Unit

Clinic and administrative management of the Unit. Instructor for medical students and
residents. 01/92-03/97

Colegiales Clinic

Conde 851, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina

Critical Care Coordinator.

Contributed of the management of the Unit. Coordinator of Critical Care actualization courses.

07/1991-061993

Clinica Modelo Los Cedros.

San Justo, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina

Chief, Intensive Care Unit

Clinic and administrative Management of the Unit. 07/1990-06/1991

Nephrologic Medical Center peste.

Ciudadela, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Attending Physician, Hemodialysis Unit. 02/1987-08/1988

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.

Patricias Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Attending Physician, Critical Care Unit. 07/1984-01/1992

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.

Patricias Argentinas.351, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.



On call Physician, Coronary Care Unit. 01/84-071984

Bazterrica Clinic

Juncal 3002, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

On call Physician, Critical Care Unit.09/1980-12/1987

Residencies/Fellowships

Caritas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center

736 Cambridge St, Brighton, MA, 02135 United States of America.

General Surgery. 07/2004-06/2005

Marvin Lopez M.D. FACS, FRCSC.

Hackford Alan M.D.

University of Salvador

Post Graduate School of medicine

Tucuman 1845/59, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Universitary Extension Critical Care 05/1983-12/1984

Professor Eduardo Abbate MD, Course Director, Professor Luis J Gonzalez Montaner MD, Dean

of School of Medicine

Carlos Durand Hospital

Cardiology Division

Diaz Velez 5044, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina

Cardiology-Internal Medicine. 03/1982-06/1984
Alberto Demartini MD., Professor German Strigler MD.

Ignacio Pirovano Hospital

Monroe 3555, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Internal Medicine. 03/1981-02/1982

Professor Navarret MD. Professor Cottone MD. 03 / 1981 — 02 /1982

City of Buenos Aires Municipality

City of Buenos Aires Hospitals

Critical Care Units

Annual Course of theory and practice in Critical Care.
Professor Francisco Maglio MD. Claudio Goldini MD., Roberto Menendez MD., Professor
Roberto Padron MD. 03/1980-02/1981

Publications/ Presentations/Poster Sessions



Graciela Silvia Sironich, Biochemistry Faculty, UBA. Nutrition Department and Mater Dei,

Nutrition In acute pancreatitis. Publication Date: 09 / 1999, Volume: 1, Pages: 235; 242.

Bazaluzzo J M; Sironich Graciela; Catalano H.; Quiroga J. La Prensa Medica Argentina,

Nutritional Evaluation by anthropometric method. Publication Date: 11 / 1992, Volume: N/A.

Sironich Graciela; Catalano H.; Milei L.; Lancestremere M. Magazine XXIV Annual Meeting of

the Argentine Society of Clinical Investigation. Sodium and plasmatic osmolarlty variations in

neurosurgical patients. Publication Date: 11 / 1989 , Volume: 1 /1989, Pages: N/A.

Volunteer Experience

American Red Cross Nashua Gateway Chapter

28 Concord Street, Nashua, NH 03064

Health and safety: CPR/AED for Adults, Children, Infants and First Aid Instructor. 04-2011-

present. -

American Cancer Society

Collaborated with 2009 Annual Fund

2009 Supporter, NH.

Spanish Hospital,

Belgrano 2975, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. 01209

Oncology Department, Voluntary Physician 01/1980-07/1980

Spanish Hospital,

Belgrano 2975, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. 01209

Emergency Room Volunteer. 03/1079-03/1980

Evita General Hospital,

Rio de Janeiro 1910, Lanus, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Emergency Room Volunteer. 09/1974-12/1974

Dr Jose Estevez Psychiatric Hospital,

Garibaldi 1400, Temperley, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Volunteer. 08/1972-07/1973

Hobbles & Interests

Travel



Reading fiction, nonfiction and history

Theater

Cooking

Language Fluency (other than English)

Spanish

Other Accomplishments.

New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Latino Affairs. Member of the Board. 05/ 2010-

present. Secretary 11/2010-present

FLT Lifestyle Educator Certification. March 2011

American Red Cross Gateway Chapter: CPR/AED for Professional Rescuers and Healthcare

providers Instructor Certification 04/08/2011

American Red Cross Gateway Chapter: CPR/AED for Adults, Child, Infant; First Aid Lay responder
Certification. 03/21/2011

Fundamentals of Instructor Training Certification 03/21/2011
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Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA

PROFILE

•  12 years experience in Public Accounting • Training experience

•  Management experience • Knowledge of multiple computer programs
•  Diversified industr}' exposure • fixcellent client rapport

•  Counselor and mentor • Tax preparation experience

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

June 2009 — Present Chief Finnncial Officer Harbor Homes, Inc. and related

Partnership for Successful Living endtics

•  Directly responsible for developing and managing budgets in excess of S'+4M, planning, cash
management. Controller, grants and contracts falling under the business/accounting
office

•  Reviews and analv/ies the monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports

•  Analyzes results of cash flows, budget expenditures and grant rcstricdons
•  Assists the President/CEO with financial planning
•  Coordinates financing for bonds, long tenn commercial loans
•  Financial oversight of capital improvement projects
•  Responsible for the annual financial and single audits of die Organizadon and all related enddes
•  Reviews Federal 990 rax returns and state returns

Jan. 2007 - Oct. 2008 Audit Manager Ernst "^'oung LLP, Manchester, NH

Managed audits of private coqDorations with revenues up to §200 million

Assisted as manager of audits for public corporations with revenues up to §400 million

Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial statements, lOQ quarterly filings and lOK annual
filings

Analyzed and reviewed internal control under Sccdon 404 of the Sarbancs Oxlcy Act

Prepared management comments in conjuncdon with material weakness or significant
deficiencies

Jun. 1997—Jan. 2007 Audit Supervisor Mclanson Heath & Company, P.C., Nashua, NH

Supcr\'ise/train various teams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedures

Audit sciwices include balance sheet reconciliadon including inventor)' control

Preparation and presentation of financial statements

Preparation of management comment letters for intcmal quality improvement

Assist clients with all aspects of accounting

Preparation of budgets and cash forecasting

Consuldng serxdccs to clients including maximizadon of profits

Extensive corporate tax preparation experience



1993 — 1997 Accounting/Office Manager I-Ianimar i-Iarclwarc Company, Nashua, NH

■ Managemenr of a five-person sraff

■ Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliation

■ Responsible for inventor)' management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external auditors

■ Prepared monthly internal financial statements

■ Responsible for payroll including quarterlies and year-end reporting

EDUCATION

1988-1991 RiNner College, Nashua, NI-1 — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hampshire Societ)' of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the American Insdture of Cerdfied Public Accountants

SOFTWARE RXPRRTRNCE

Excel, Word, PoweqDoinl, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, Quickbooks,
Peachtree, Abila Accounting Software, T-Value, various auditing software programs



PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

Telephone: (603) 882-3616

Fax: (603) 595-7414.
E-mail: p.kelleher@nhpailnership.oru

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force

2002-Present President & CEO, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc./ Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH
1997-Present President & CEO, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH

1995-Present President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Ser^'ices, Inc., Mllford, NH
1995-Prcsent President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
1982-Prescnt President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as chief executive officer of six nonprofit corporations (Partnership for Successful
Living) creating and providing residential and supportive services, mental health care, primary/preventive
health care, substance use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and

workforce development, professional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homeless, living with disabilities, and/or are underserved/members of vulnerable populations.^ Responsible
for initiation, development, and oversight of more than 80 programs comprising a $22,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development resulting in more than $15,000,000 in grants annually; oversight of 350+
management and direct care professionals.

2003-2006 Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid serx'ice and mental health

organizations.

1980 - 1982 Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

1979 - 1980 . Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Walthani, MA

Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 individuals with

mental and/or developmental disabilities. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time stafTof 20
residential coordinators. Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs.
Provided emergency consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group
homes and one sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management,
quality assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

1978 - 1979 Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department.

1977- 1979

1976

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center II, a unit of

Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA

Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Paticnt Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

1971 - 1976 Program Counsclor/Supcr>'isor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wcllcslcy College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975 - 1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-SomerN'ille Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971 - 1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psycholog)'

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker-Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers - NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts

1994 Slate of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW

PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977 Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatiy, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975 -1976 Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Ser\'ice Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 - 1984 Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1990-1991 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1978 -1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

High School Valedictorian Award

National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
NAMl NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change

Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007

The Walter J. Dunfey Corporate Fund Award for Excellence in Non Profit Management 2009
NH Magazine Business Excellence Award 2010

Nashua Telegraph Humanitarian of the Year Award 2015
Lionel W. Johnson Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015

MEMBERSHIPS

Member of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committee on Homeless Veterans

Board Member, Community Health Access Network (CHAN)
National Association of Social Workers •

Former member of the National Healthcare for the Homeless Board of Directors

Former Chair, Governor's State Interagency Council on Homelessness/Nevv Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care

Former Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH



Vanessa Talasazan

Education

2009-2012 M.S. Community Economic Development (pending thesis submission) Southern NH University
-Outstanding Student Award, 4.0 CPA

1999 - 2007 B.A in English with afocus in Communications University ofNew Hampshire

1999 — Current Licensed New Hampshire Real Estate Agent Continuing Education Ongoing

Career History

April 2008-Current Partnershipfor Successful Living Affiliates Nashua, NH

Vice President of Development and Grant Compliance

Background on Agencies/Emplovers: A unique partnership amongst 6 non-profit organizations with a
combined annual operating budget of $14 million that share the same CEO, Board of Directors, and
back-end administration: Harbor Homes, Inc.; Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Greater Nashua

Council on Alcoholism (Keystone Hall); Welcoming Light; Healthy at Home, and Milford Regional
Counseling Services. Together, the agencies serve over 7,000 individuals and families annually. Named
NH's most innovative nonprofit organization by The NH Center for Nonprofits.

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of intercompany management team; lead all grant writing, efforts;
supervise a team of development staff and interns; identify, write, and submit federal, state, corporate,
and foundation grant requests; new program development and strategic planning; create and implement
evaluations, outcome measurements, and data analysis tools to ensure grant eompliance; create corrective
action plans to remedy identified compliance issues; expertise in the creation and execution of events,
capital campaigns, and individual and corporate giving activities; liaison with board of directors and
major donors.

Achievements: More than $75 million in grant funding obtained since 2008, including:

-US Department of Veteran Affairs
-US Department of Housing & Urban Development
-US Department of Labor
-US Department of Health Resources Services Administration
-US Department of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
-Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston

-NH Community Development Finance Authority
-NH Housing Finance Authority
-NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
-NH Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
-NH Department of Justice
-NH Charitable Foundation

•  Research and identify new government, state, and private funding prospects for specific
projects and programs.

•  Generate proposals and documents in response to solicitations/requests.

•  Compile, write, and edit compelling grant applications and supporting materials,
grant reports, marketing material, press releases, letters. Memorandum of
Agreements (MOAs) / Letters of Support, and fund-raising documents

•  Generate revenues for agency programs and services through timely submission
of well-researched, well-written and well-documented proposals.



Manage the process of supplying progress reports when required by a grant-
making organization that has funded a project or program.

Act as liaison with program staff, funding agencies, and organizations

Member of Housing Development Project Management Team: plan and
implement the construction of low-income housing developments including
emergency, transitional, and permanent supportive initiatives, for low-income,
homeless and chronically homeless individuals with disabilities such as mental
illness, substance use disorders, and/or HIV/AIDS. Special subpopulations also
include homeless veterans, the developmentally disabled, and the elderly.

Establish and cultivate relationships with individual donors and corporations to
support the agencies' missions.

Website, direct mail, annual campaign, newsletters, social media creation, and
coordination

Grant reporting and compliance

Strategic planning and program design/ development



Harbor Homes, Inc.

September 12, 2019

Transitional Housing & Community Residence Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $164,31 1 1% $1,643

Patricia Robitaille Chief Financial Officer $150,000 1% $1,500

Ana Pancine Chief Revenue Officer $1 15,000 1% $1,150

Vanessa Talasazan Chief Strategy Officer $1 15,000 1% $1,150

Kathryn Bvrne Program Manager $68,000 100% $68,000

Cracielia Sironich-

Kalkin

Medical Director $208,000 1 1% $22,066



JetTrty A. Meyers
Commissioner

K*lj» S- Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHrRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DtVISION FOR BEUA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 ExL 9544

Fflx:603-27M332 TDD Access: I-800-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 12, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health to
exercise a renewal option vto an existing agreement with Harbor Homes lnc.(Vendor #155358), 45 High
Street, Nashua, NH 03060, to continue providing a community residential program for adults who have
severe mental illness or severe' and persistent mental illness by increasing the price limitation by
$700,000 from $2,450,000 to $3,150,000 and by extending the completion date from October 31. 2019
to June 30. 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on November 8,
2017 (Item #218) and subsequently amended on June 19, 2019 (Item #19).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances betweeri State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-4117- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
.  Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc ,
$1,050,000 $0 $0

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90072003 $1,050,000 $0 $0

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90072003 $350,000 $700,000 $1,050,000

Total: $2,450,000 $700,000 $3,150,000



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable! Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue operating fourteen (14) Transitional Housing beds for
adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental illness and are eligible for
community mental health services and no-vlonger meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities'. These services were implemented to improve the State's
mental health system pursuant to House Bill 517, Section 186 (III) (2017).

Approximately forty two (42) individuals will be served from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

The original agreement included language in the Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 3, that allows the
Department to renew the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding,
satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council. The Department Is requesting to renew services for eight (8) months at this time.

-Approval of this request will allow the Contractor to continue providing a transitional housing
program for adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent illness and are eligible for
community mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities. The fourteen (14) t>eds will provide a transitional housing
program for adults in order to support and promote rehabilitation that will facilitate a transition to
independent living in the community. -n

The program serves the clinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adults with mental
illness. The services include; psychiatric services, medication management, clinical services, medical
services, targeted case management, specialized and co-occurring treatment services, vocational and
day treatment services, and support for community connectedness and family involvement.

The Contractor will provide quarterly data reports on the number of individuals admitted and
discharged during the contract period, any waitlist times, where individuals were discharged, and what
services were in place upon discharge. Reports will also include detail about residential treatment and
support plans as well as ongoing discharge planning for each resident.

The Agreement includes requirements for the Contractor to submit ongoing financial reports.
Financial reports will include program-level and organization-level profit and loss statements, cash
equivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending. The Department will review these reports and discuss
any concerns with the Contractor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close monitoring of
fiscal integrity.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the fourteen (14) bed
community residence program would not be available to individuals in need of housirig who are
transitioning from NH Hospital or a Designated Receiving Facility to the community which, in tum, makes
those beds available to individuals who are waiting in hospital emergency rooms for services across the
State.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hanorabie CourK:))

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the General Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner"

The Dcporiment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Transitional Housing & Community Residences Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the Transitional Housing & Community Residences contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter refened to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeastem Blvd.
Nashua. NH 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 8, 2017 (Item #21B) and as amended on June 19, 2019 (item #19) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General
Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend (he term of the agreement and increase the price limitation, and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #2 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,150,000.

3. Revise Section 5 Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity only, of Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of
Services, by replacing it In its entirety with the following:

5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

5.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement (total
organization and program-level), and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor.
Program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related
expenditures for that program. The program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall
include a budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Outside of the program-
level Profit and Loss Statement and budget to actual analysis, all other statements shall
be reflective of the entire Partnership for Successful Living organization and shall be
submitted on the same day the reports are submitted to the Board, but no later than the
fourth Wednesday of the month. Additionally, the contractor will provide interim profit
and loss statements for every program area, reported as of the 20^ of the month, by the
last day of every month. The Contractor will be evaluated on the following:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment U2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

5.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by
the unrestricted cash on hand.

5.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short*term investments
divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within three (3) months
and should not include common stock. Any amount of cash from a
line of credit should be broken out separately.

5.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash
and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty
(30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

5.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio Illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the
cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Coritractor shall maintain a minimum

standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its liabilities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by
total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

5.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

Hart>or Homes, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

5.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

5.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and
amount outstanding for each line.

5.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

5.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-compliance with
any loan covenant or agreement.

5.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

5.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

5.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months, or

5.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe, then

5.3. The Department may:

5.3.1. Require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to explain the
reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

5.3.2. Require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive corrective action plan
within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 5.2.1 and/or 5.2.2 have
not been met.

5.3.3. Terminate the contract.

5.3.3.1. If a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall update
the corrective action plan at least every thirty (30) calendar days
until compliance is achieved.

5.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe
agreed upon by both parties.

5.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-
four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to
have a material financial impact.on and/or materially impact or impair the ability of
the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

5.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all
other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and
Include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated
by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement.

5.6. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within five
business days when any Executive Management, Board Officers, or Program
Managers for DHHS contracts submits a resignation or leaves for any other reason.

Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #2, Budget.

Hartwr Homes. Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

This amendment shall be upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

\9
Date Name; Katja Fox

Title: Director

Harbor Homes. Inc.

Ill kill.
Date Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of .. County of_ before the

undersigned omcer, personally appeared the person identified dirfctly above.'or satisfactorily proven to
be the person yAtiose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

icw Justice of the PeaceNotary

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

i  \ I
5 ! bwi«9I \ 1

Hartx)r Homes, Inc.

RFA-2018-DBH-03-TRANS-A02

Amendmenl #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: /
Title: UX fiHornt-y

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #2
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES jrivVifs?

DIVtSIONFOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH fer*

VS?'--

I29PLEASANTSTREET.CONCORD.NH 03J0I

603-271-9544 1-S00452-3345 E«c 9544

Fai:603-271-4332 TDDAcccss: 1400-735-2964 www.dl)hs.nb.go%^, ..

June 3, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division for Behavioral Health to
exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Hartjor Homes lrK.(Vendor #155358). 45 High
Street, Nashua. NH 03080, to provide a community residential program for adults who have severe
mental illness or severe and persistent illness by Increasing the price limitation by $350,000 from
$2,100,000 to $2,450,000 and by exterxling the completion date from June 30.2019 to October 31,2019,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on November 8,
2017 (Item #21B)

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-4117- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfWIAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
- Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
$1.050;000 $0 $0

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90072003 $1,050,000 $0 $0

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90072003 $0 $350,000 $350,000

Total; $2,100,000 $350,000 $2,450,000



His Excellency, Governor Cnhstopher T. Sununu
and Ihe Honorable CouncB
Page 2 o( 3

EXPLANATION ^

The purpose of this request is to continue operating fourteen (14) Transitional Housing beds for
adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent Illness and are eligible for community
mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire Hospital or
Designated Receiving Facilities. These services were implemented to improve the Slate's mental health'
system pursuant to House Bill 517, Section 186 (III) (2017).

Approximately fourteen (14) individuals will be served from July 1, 2019 through October 31,
2019.

The origir^l agreement included lar^uage In the Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 3. that allows the
Department to renew the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availat>ility of furxting,
satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor arxl
Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for four (4) months of the
two (2) years at this time. ,

Approval of this request will allow the Contractor to continue providing a transitional housing
program for adults vrho have severe mentaj illness or severe and persistent illness .and are eligible for
community mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities. The fourteen (14) beds will provide a transitional housing
program for adults in order to support and promote rehabilitation that will facilitate a transition to
independent living in the community. ,

The program serves the clinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult men and.
women with mental illness. The program services include; psychiatric sen/ices, medication management,
clinical services, medical services, targeted case management, specialized and co-occurring treatment
services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community connectedness and family
involvement. ,

The Contractor will provide quarterly data reports on the number of individuals admitted and
discharged during the contract-period, any waitlist times, where individuals were discharged, and what
services were in place upon discharge. Reports will also include detail about residential treatment and
support ptans as well as ongoing discharge planning for each resident.

The Department will meet with the Contractor on a quarterly basis to review the reports arxl
discuss ongoing case and programmatic concerns. Monthly financial reports are submitted that include
revenue and expense by cost and program category, a Capital Expenditure Report, an Interim Balance
Sheet, and a Profit and Loss statement. Ongoing improvements around data submission will continue to
lead to improved oversight of contracts and ensure quality care for individuals.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, fourteen (14) t>ed
community residence program vrauld not be available to individuals in need of housing who are
transitioning from NH Hospital or a Designated Receiving Facility to the community which, in turn, makes
those beds available to Individuals who are waiting In hospital emergency rooms for services across the
State.



His Excellency, Oovenxx Christopher T. Sununu
and Ihe Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

In the event that the General Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Res ully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Cdmmissloner

The Ocporlmcni 9f Heolih and Human Serstitn' Miuion it to join convituniiiet oudfomilia
i/i prooiding opporiuniliu for eiltxeM to och(<ue health and iiidepandenec.



New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Transhlonal Housing & Community Rosidoncos

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

.Amendment to the

Transitional Housing & Community Residences

This I** Amendment to the Transitional Housing & Community Residences contract (hereinafter referred
to as 'Amendment #1 *) is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the 'State' or 'Department') and Hart>or Homes, (hereinafter referred
to as the Contractor), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeestem Boulevard.
Nashua. NH, 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on Novemt>er 8, 2017, (Item 0218), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services t>ased upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
arid

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worlt. payment
schedules and terms and cortditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the
contract upon written agreement '5f'lhe parties arid approval from' the Governor and Executive Council;
and _ _ .

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, and
modify (he scope of services to support continued delivery of these services;

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and pnor amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment ̂1 remain in full force and effect: and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

October 31. 2019.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$2,450,000.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan 0. White. Director.

4.^ Fonn P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number, to read;

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A. Amendment 01.
Scope of Services.

6. Add Exhibit B-5. Amendment 01. Budget.

7. Delete Exhibit K In Its entirety and replace with Exhibit K ~ Amendment 01.

Kartor Homes. Inc. Amertdmenfl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Residences

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

Harbor Homes, Inc.

#5^ ■ Na

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State .. County of 'before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the personj^ntified directl^bove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledgBd that sThe executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Sigrlaiurg of NotaryWblic^or Bustice of the Peace

Name and Title oiNotary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

«2}a

%

HartCK Hom«3. Inc

RFA.201 d-08HOTRANS

A/nendm«fi91

Poee 2 o( 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing & Community Rosidonces

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTice. is approved as to fomi, substarKO, end execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
/

Ola
Dale Name:

ntle:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the Slate
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dote of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Hattor Homes, Inc. A/nenOm«ni#1
RFA-20ieOeHO3-TRANS P«b»3oI3



Now Hampshiro Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Bods and Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify ServiM priorities
and expenditure requirements urxJer this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall obtain the licenses and certifications to operate the facility
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative Rules H6P-614 a.nd/or He*M*1002.

1.4. The Contractor shall be an enrolled Medicaid provider through the Department's
Medicaid program.

1.5. In (he event the Department incorporates Medicaid eligible Transitional Housing
services into its agreements with the Managed Care contractors, the Department will
notify (he Contractor and provide the Contractor sixty (60) days to enroll as a provider
of such services with the Managed Care contractors.

1.6; The Contractor shall provide fourteen (14) transitional housing beds through this
contract in accordance with Exhibit A. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall
ensure:

1.6.1. A minimum of four (4) transitional housing beds are ready for client
occupancy rK) later than forty-five (45) days from the contract effective date.

1.6.2. The remaining ten (10) transitional housing beds are ready for client
occupancy no later than ninety (90) days from the contract effective date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall develop and operate transitional housing beds with wrap-around
services and supports for individuals who have been referred from New Hampshire
Hospital (NHH) or Designated Receiving Facllilics (DRFs) and who:

2.1.1. Have a severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental illness
(SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental health services at a
community mental health center (as defined in Administrative Rule He-M
401): '

2.1.2. Require extensive support and rehabilitation to successfully transition from
NHH or a DRF before moving to less restrictive alternatives In the
community of their choice, and

2.1.3. Have been determined to no longer meet the level of care provided by NHH
or a DRF.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide community residential services as defined in New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 1002, which at a minimum Include:

RFP-2018-OBH-03-TRANS-01 Exhibil A. Amendment 01 Contractor InHiaJs
Harbor Homes. Inc.

Page i of 11 Date S



N6w Hampshiro Dopartmont of Haalth end Human Sorvicos
Transitional Housing Beds end Servlcos

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

2.2.1. Assistance and Instructiontolmprove and niaintain Individual skills In basic
daily living, personal developrT>ent. and community activities by providing
therapeutic behavioral services that Include but are not limited to;

2.2.1.1. Personal decision making;

2.2.1.2. Personal care, household management, budgeting, shopping,
and other funcliohal skills;

2.2.1.3. Household chores and responsibilities;

2.2.1.4. Having relationships with person both with and without
disabilities;

2.2.1.5. Accessing a wide range, of Integrated community activities
including recreational, cultural, and other opportunities;

2.2.1.6. Participating In religious services and practices of the
consumer's choosing; and

2.2.1.7. Choosing and wearing clothing that is neat, clean, in good repair,
and appropriate to the season and activity.

2.2.2. Individual service plans for consumers that are developed in accordance
-with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 401 and He-M 408.

2.2.3. Illness Management and Recovery Services provided on an individual and
group basis, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M
426. which leach strategies for:

2.2.3.1. Recovery;

2.2.3.2. Practical facts about mental Illness;

2.2.3.3. ■ The stress-vulnerability model end treatment strategies;

2.2.3.4. Building social supports;

2.2.3.5. Reducing relapses;

2.2.3.6. Using medication effectively;

2.2.3.7. Coping with stress;

2.2.3.8. Coping with problems and symptoms;

2.2.3.9. Getting your needs met in the mental health system; and

2.2.3.10. Assessir^ for Drug and Alcohol use.

2.2.4. Psychotherapeutic Services In accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules Ke-M 426. which Includes sex offender treatment.

2.2.5. Targeted Case Management (TCM) Services In accordance with New
Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 426 In order to:

2.2.5.1. Ensure continuity of care by assisting consumers gain access to
needed medical, social, educational, and other services on a
one-to-one basis to help them transition back to their homes and
communities; and

RFP-201d-OBH-03-TRANS-01 ExNbil A. Amendm«nt 01 Contrector tnlliab.
Hartw Hofnes. Inc.
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Now Hempshiro Dopartment of HoaKh and Human Sorvlcos
Transitional Housing Bods and Sorvlcos

Exhibit A, Amondment 01

2.2.5.2. Assist consumers with completing applications for all appropriate
sources of financial, medical, and housing assistance including,
but not limited to:

2.2.5.2.1. Medicaid.

2.2.5.2.2. Medicare.

'  2.2.5.2.3. Social Security Disability Income.
2.2.5.2.4. Public Housing subsidies.

2.2.5.2.5. Section 6 5ut>sidies.

2.2.6. An Adutt Needs and Strengths Assessment.(ANSA) for each consumer, as
well as enter results into the Department's data collection system:

2.2.6.1. Upon admission to the program.

2.2.6.2. Ninety (90) days after admission as part of the individual service
plan review.

2.2.6.3. Every 6 months after admission.

2.2.6.4. Annually after the first year from the date of the'initial
. assessment.

2.2.7. Evidence Based Supported Employment Services in accordance wrlth New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 426 to consumers who ask to seek
competitive employment.

2.2.8. Psychiatric Evaluation and Management Services in accordance with New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 426, which shall be provided by a
qualified psychiatrist. Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN) or
Physician's Assistant <PA). for the purposes of assessment and treatment
of consumers in the program.

2.2.9. Medical Services provided by Registered Nurses (RN) will be delivered on
site Monday through Friday during the hours of 8:00 am to 10:00 pm and on
Saturdays and Sundays during the hours of 8:00 am to 4:30 pirn, subject to
the following requirements or as otherwise indicated:

2.2.9.1. Transitional Housing Services RNs and behavioral health staff
shall provide input into the annual review of individual's health
history, health status, and supports identified or needed to
maintain physical, mental and social we.ll-being as provided by a
primary care provider of the indhridual's choosing, and with the
individuars consent.

2.2.9.2. Instruction in and assistance with in takirvg prescribed
medications independently, in accordance with Exhibit A-1.
Administration of Medications in the Transitional Housing
Program.

2.2.9.3. Residential staff trained by the Nurse Trainer to provide services
in Section 2.2.9.2, above.

RFP-2018-D8K-0S-TRANS-O1 ExhiWl A. Amendmenl 01 Conlractof Initlats
Harbor Homes. Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth end Human Services
Transltlortal Houair^g Beds and Services

Exhibit A. AmerKlment 01

2.2.9.4. All RN'level medicdl servic6S, within the hours specified in
Section 2.2.9. The Contractor shall have an adequate number
of nurses to noalArave) between sites to respond to client needs'
in a timely manner.

2.2.9.5. Non*RN level staff including, but not limited to. support staff.
Licensed Nursing Assistants, and other providers, to provide
non-RN level medical services under the supervision of RNs or
other qualified medical providers.

2.2.9.6. Primary care clinical staff and home health care staH that provide
per diem coverage in the event that additional nursing staff is
needed during the atx>ve referenced hours, as well as 24/7
coverage through orvca!) coverage.

2.2.10. Qualified staff on site. 24 hours a day. 7 days per v^k for all transitional
housing residents. Staff shall be trained by a Nurse Trainer.

2.2.11. Medical Servtces/MediCdtions shall be administered In accordance with
Exhibit A-1. Medication Administration in the Transitional Housing Program.

2.2.12. Emergency Services available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7)
days per week for tx)lh medical and psychiatnc needs. Services shall
' include, but not t>e limited to:

2.2.12.1. An on-call clinician for evenings, weekends and holidays to
provide crisis intervention, coordinate Involuntary Emergency
Admission petitions in accordance with Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA)135-C:28 Emergency Treatment and
revocation of conditional discharges In accordance with RSA
135-0:51. Ill) when required.

2.2.12.2. A Registered Nurse available or on-call to:

2.2.12.2.1. Provide education problem solving and support
regarding medications.

2.2.12.2.2. Respond to health related concerns.

2.2.12.3. A nurse available on-call the remainder of each day. weekends
and holidays to:

2.2.12.3.1. Provide education, problem solving and support
regarding medications.

2.2.12.3.2. Respond to health related concerns.

2.2.13. Specialized Treatments, such as sex offender services and/or Risk
Assessment evaluations, for consumers who have co-occurring disorders,
are in need of sex offervJer treatment, or have other court mandated
treatments.

2.2.14. Wellness Management that Includes, but is not limited to. access to services
and activities such as the "Healthy Choices-Healthy Changes' designed to
improve physical health, and provide smokir^ cessation programs.

RFP-2016-06H-03-TRANS-01 Exhibit A. Amendmenl 01 ConlractM InHisIS.
Harbor Homes, Inc.
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N«w Hampshiro Dopartmont of Hoalth and Human Services
Transitional Housing Beds and Servicos

Exhibit A, Amendment

2.3. The Contractor shall accept consumer referrals from the New Hampshire Hospital
(NHH). Designated Receiving Facilities (DRFs), and the Community Mental Health
Centers (Mft>6n approved by the Department).

2.4. The Contractor shall prioritize consumers referred by New Hampshire Hospital and
Designated Receiving Facilities by having a referral, admissions, and evaluation
process approved by the Department that:

2.4.1. Places cunent inpatient Ir^dividuals at New Hampshire Hospital ahead of
any and ail community based referrals.

2.4.2. includes a written referral protocol that ir>cludes a review / evaluation of the
Individual current situation, assessment of need and disposition.

2.4.3. Responds to all referrats. in writing within fourteen (14) business days of
receipt, as to the consuntefs disposition, (acceptance or denial) into the
Transitional Housing Program Services, including any contingencies placed
on the acceptance or. If the referral is denied, the reason for denial. An
unreasonable denial, as determined by the Departrhenl. shall constitute an
event of default. ^

2.4.4. ' Establishes*an admission process that:

2.4.4.1. Ensures successful entry of accepted referrals into the program.

2.4.4.2. Includes a communications plan (hat outlir>es the reasons, both
verbally and in writing, that referrals were unsuccessful.

2.5. The Contractor shall have a discharge process for consumers who are discharged
from (he Transitional Housing Program Services that:

2.5.1. Ensures participalion In discharge planning meetings with community
mental health centers. New Hampshire Hospital, and other providers.

2.5.2. Includes a written discharge plan that details an evaluation of (he
consumers' current situation, disposition and transition plan for moving back
In to the community.

2.5.3. Retains the individuars bed, in the event that an indtviduafs cortditional
discharge Is revoked, which would result in a temporary readmlssion to
NHH.

2.5.4. Demonstrates developrnenl and implementation of a collaborative
relationship with the community mental health program to develop the terms
of conditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-0:50 and He-M 609, and to
develop treatment plans designed to return each consumer to the
community.

2.5.5. In the event the Contractor is unable to successfully provide the
documentation applicable to 2.5.4. within thirty (30) days, the Contractor
shall notify and seek technical assistance from the Department to develop
an appropriate remedy within ninety (90) days.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide the written processes for referrals, adrnissions,
evaluations end discharges outlined in Section 2.4 and Section 2.5 to the Department
no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

RFP-2016-DBH-03-TRANS-01 Exhibit A. Amendmenj tfl CofMrector Wlials
HertOf Hornes, inc.

PdfleSofll Date hJ30/f/



New Hampshire Oepaitmont of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Beds and Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

2.7. The Contractor shall assist the Pre-Admission Screening and Annual Resident
Review (PASARR) Office of the Department In meeting the requirements of the
PASARR provisions of the Omnibus Budget Reconcilietlon Act of 1987 by providing
the information necessary to determine the existence of mental illness or mental
retardation by conducting Individual evaluations and examinations needed to
determine If a person t)eing screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and
has active treatment needs.

2.8. The Contractor shall designate a staff member to perform the responsibilities of a
complaint manager in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M
204.

2.9. The Contractor shall submit a plan to the Department, within thirty (30) days of the
contract effective date that details how consumers will be transition^ back into the
community. The tran^ion plan shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.1. Procedures for moving existing-program participants into more integrated
community settings and where possible.

2.9.2. A person-centered plan developed in collaboration with the individual that
Incorporates the Indivkjuafs needs, and safety, of themselves and the public
in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401.

2.9.3. A plan to collaborate with the individual's local community mental health
program ar>d peer support agencies to provide other services and supports
in the community.

2.9.4. Involvement of the Individuars family to support Integration into the
community, with the Individual's consent.

2.9.5. Processes to identify any barriers to placement In the community, with
emphasis on the interventions necessary to promote more opportunities for
community integration.

2.10. The Contractor shall develop individualized service plans to ensure Individuals have
access to services that promote the values of recovery end resiliency by utilizing a
$lreng1h-t>ased approach and person-centered service planning, In accordance wHh
He-M 401.

2.11. The Contractor shall utilize individual service plans to assist individuals with
identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers, family members,
neighbors, landlords, employers, and others in order to create a network of support
that builds reslliancy as well as strength-based recovery and wellness skills.

'I

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals have access to a local primary care physician
(PCP). within thirty (30) days from the effedrve date of the contract. The Contractor
shall:

2.12.1. Coordinate care for each individual receiving services.

2.12.2. Obtain written consent from program participants to exchange health
information at regular Intervals with the PCP.

2.13. The Contractor shall assess the legs! commitment status of individual residing In the
program and. If deemed appropriate, provide:

2.13.1. The conllnuaiion of the oommitment via the proper legal process.
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2.13.2. Coordination of care with the legal system when indicated Including, but not
limited to. the NH Department of Corrections, and the NH Attorney General's
Office.

2.14. The Contractor shall'remain compliant with all state and federal taws, rules and
regulations pertaining to the licensure and operation of a community residential
program.

2.15. The Contractor shall perform, or cooperate in the performance of. quality
Improvement and/or utilization review activities determined to be necessary end
appropriate by the Department, within tinrveframes specified by the Department, In
order to insure the efficient and effective administration of the Medtcaid program. This
shall Include, but Is not limited to:

2.15.1. Maintaining detailed consumer records as required by New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 408. (In the event that a Transitional Housing
Program Services consumer l)ecomes an inpatient at NHH. the Contractor
shall be deemed in compliance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 408, rf the consumer's inpatient status is noted In the record.)

2.15.2. Submitling data needed to comply with federal reporting requirements to the
Department.

'2.16. The Contractor shall Collect contributions for clothing, food end housing from each
consumer. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Collect a maximum of 30% of income from each consumer which shall be
applied tov^rd the consumer's cost of clothing, food, and housing.

2.16.2. Submit the written method, process and procedure for calculating,
collecting, accounting for and maintaining records of each consumer's
contribution collected as specified in Section 2.16.1, above to the
Department for approval no later than ten (10) days from the contract
effective date.

2.17. The Contractor shall submit an Emergency Plan to the Department for approval no
later than ten (10) days from the contract effective date that ensures consumers'
safety in the event of a rxatural. intentional or accidental incident or threat.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain staffing levels that ensure consumer, staff and
community safety and include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. One Medical Director wfio:

3.1.1.1. Possesses a valid license to practice medicine In New
Hampshire and meet the requirements of R5A.135-C: 2. XIII.

3.1.1.2. Is board eligibia or board certified In psychiatry according to the
regulations of the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology,
Inc.. or its successor organization at the time of hiring.

3.1.1.3. Maintains board eligibility or certification in Section 3.1.1.2,
above, throughout his/her tenure as medical director.
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3.1.2. One Administrator or Director who Is responsible for the day-to-day
management, supervision, and operation of the residence.

3.1.3. One Register^ Nurse, licensed in accordance with RSA 32^6. who is
responsible for (he overall delivery and supervision of nursing services.'

3.1.4. One Nurse Trainer to provide supervision to any staff member who is
authorized to administer medications.

3.1.5. A sufficient number of personnel to provide nursing services, consisting of
registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, and other staff. (Nurses shall
be registered as required by RSA 326-B.)

3.1.6. A sufficient number of direct care personnel to meet the 24-hour scheduled
and unscheduled needs of the consumers in accordance with the

.  consumers' Individual service plans, which shall Include but not be limited

. to. one (1) direct care staff member per residence per shift when a consumer
is occupying the residence.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinical staff working within Transitional Housing Program
Senrices are certified in the administration of the Adult Needs and Strengths
A'ssessment'fANSA) using either:

3.2.1. The State wet>-based training and certification program; or

3.2.2. In-person attendance at a State sponsored training.

3.3. The Contractor shall maintain employee files ensuring credentials for each staff is
available upon Department request.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a staffing contingency plan to the Department for
approval no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date, which shall
include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. The process for replacing personnel in the event of loss of personnel,
including but not limited to time frames for obtaining qualified replacements.

3.4.2. The plan to allocate additional resources to the contract in the event any
• performance standard is not met.

3.4.3. Capabilities to provide, In a timely manner, replacements/additions with
comparable experience; and

3.4.4. f«^ethod of bringing replacements/additions up-to-date regarding this
Agreement.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall meet with the Department at least quarterty. or as requested by
the Department, to review the progress of consumers tov^rd Independent living.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterty (January through March. April through June.
July through September, and October through December) reports to the Department
by the 15th of month following the end of the quarter. Quarterty reports shall
contain information that includes, but is not limited to:

4.2.1. The number of people referred and admitted to Transitional Housing
Program Services;
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4.2.2. The number of people discharged from the Transitional Housing Program
Services; and

4.2.3. The number of people transilioned into the community.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit monthly Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements
to the Department for review of fiscal integrity. Ttie Contractor shall ensure the Profit
and Loss Statements:

4.3.1. Include a budget column that allows for a budget^o-ectual analysis '

4.3.2. Are sutxnitted within thirty (30) days after the last day of the previous month.

4.3.3. Based on the accrual method of accounting.

4.3.4. Include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not
generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this contract.

S. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

5.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal int^rity. the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and Loss Statement,
and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Prograrn-leyel Profit and Loss
Statement shall Include all revenue sources and all related expenditures. The Profit
and Loss Statement shall include a. budget column allowing for budget to actual
analysis. Statements shall be submined within thirty (30) calendar days after each
month end. The Contractor will be evaluated on the following:

5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

5.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered
by the unrestricted cash on hand.

5.1.1.2. Formula; Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments
divided by total operating expenditures. less
depreciation/amortization and In-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within three (3) months

. and should not include common stock.

5.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shell have enough cash
and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of
thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition; A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current tiabilities.

5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

5.1.2.3.' Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current raiioof 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover
the cost of Its current portion of its long-term debt.
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5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income lo the year to date deb!
.service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net income plus Depreciation/Amortization.Expense
plus interest Expense divided by year to date debt service
(principal and Interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
Identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal
arKf interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its liabilities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net essets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by
total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's. Monthly Financial Statements.

5.1.4.5. Performance Standard; The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

5.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

5.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

5.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months, then

5.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department staff
lo explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

5.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that
5.2.1 and/or 5.2.2 have not been met.

5.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

5.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional Information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department.
The Contractor shall provide requested information In a
timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

5.3. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to
have a material financial impact on and/or materially Impact or impair the atjility of the
Contractor lo perform under this Agreement with the Department.
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5.4. The monthly Balance Sheet. Prorit & Loss Statement. Cash Flow Statement, and all
other financial reports shall t>e. based on the accrual method of accounting and
include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated
by or resulting from funds prosrided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports ere
due" within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

6. DeUverabtes

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of four (4) transitional housing beds and
related services descrit)ed in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, are ready for client
occupancy no later than forty-five (45) days from the contract effective date.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure the remaining ten (10) transitional housing beds end
related, services described In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, are ready for client
occupancy no later than ninety (90) days from the contract effective date.'

6.3. The Contractor shall enter data from the Adult Needs and Strengths Assessments
(ANSAs) In Section 2.2.6 into the Department's data collection system within ftve (5)
days of completing each assessment.

6.4. The . Contractor shall provide written processes for referrals, admissions and
evaluations arnj discharges outlined in Section 2.4 and Section 2.5 to the Department
no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor shall provide 8 general community transition plan, as specified in
Section 2.9, that details how consumers will t)e transltloned back Into the community
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

6.6. The Contractor shall ensure all consumers receiving services have access to a local
primary care physician, as specified in Section 2.12, within thirty (30) days from the
contrad effective date.

6.7. The Contractor shall submit the written method, process and procedure for
calculating, collecting, accounting for and maintaining records of each consumer's
contribution collected, as speclf«d in Section 2.16.1. to.the Department no later than
ten (10) days from the contract effective date.

6.8. The Contractor shall submit the staffing contingency plan in Section 3.4 to the
Department r>o later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.
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OHMS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foliowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach' means the ioss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for en other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identiflabie
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security tncidenf shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NiST Publication 800-61, Computer Securtty Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. . .. .. .

3. ; 'Confidential Information' or. 'Confidential Data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personaily Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and ail information owned or managed by.
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, discbsure. protection, end disposition is governed by
state or federal law. or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial
Information (PFi), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End Usef means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knoNvledge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouUng of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modlficdtion or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
r>ot designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Informatiori
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be- considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or "PT) means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indivrdual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 35S-C;19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shail mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health ■
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information* (or "PHr) has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standait) that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization thai Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conftdentia! Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not timlted to all its directors.'officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any ConfKlential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound t>y additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHt In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

.5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are rK>t irxliceted in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of QHHS for .the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

n. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a mett^xt of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may orVy employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information. .

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must t:>e used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hostir^g services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

'8. Open VVireless Networks. End User may not trarismit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private netvrark (VPN) when
remotely trartsmittir>g via an open wireless r>etwori(.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile ddvice($) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sut>folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data wilt be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Cohfidential Data via wireless devices, ell
.  . data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

.  III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duratlori of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
dertvative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by (aw or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor'agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

.  . States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH. systems,
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Ks End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ell electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location arid 'xlentified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and compty with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. snti-spdm. anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aQgresslve Intaisicn-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contracted agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
.Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vuinerebility of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sutxontractor systems), the Contractor vnil maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronjc media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry.-accepted standards for secure .deletion and media
sanitlzation. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,

■degaussing) as described in NiST Special Publication 600-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitiiation. National Institute of Standards and Technology. Lf. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destructbn. and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. .

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination 'of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy alj hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified.' wilhin thirty (30) days of the termination • of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Oepartntent
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

VS Usi update 1009/18 ExMHlK-AmcndmeniH Cpnwctef IrtfJate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit

OHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Oepadment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arvJ procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 6ystem(s). Agreements vrill be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

0. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. "

9. The Contractor will work vrith the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, arid vulnerabilities that may
occur over tt>e life of the Contractor er>gagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departmenls-discretlon with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
Of Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. UM updBl# ICWWtB ExMilIK-Amcndmcrtl'l ContTOCtOfl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K • Amendment # I

DHHS Information Security Requirernents

■the breach, .Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services,-mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Infoimatlon, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5S2a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to estatiiish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect (he confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or apce'ss to it. The safeguards must provide a. level and
scope of security that is not less lhan the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources^rocurement at https://www.nh.QOv/doft/vendor/lrKJex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networfc.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that ail £r>d Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
0. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

VS.L«lopd«l«1V09/16 exMllUK-Amendmmtll OWOCtor InUals
OHHS InrormaUon
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Exhibit

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidentiai information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technotogically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty , hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys',
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. it>cluding any
derivative files containing personally Identifl8t>l6 information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at ait -times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances C>?nfidenlial Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the drcumstances involved.

.  . i. -understaaci that their user credentials (user name and password) must not.be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or'indirectly through
a third party appiicaiibn.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight end compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor cornpliance vrith this
Contract. Including the, privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable taws and Federal regutatbns until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordartce with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.3(X) - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in Ihis Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5 KXtelo irwans EiWl K • A«nendn*m Conrtctof\fAW$
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determir>e whether Breach notir»cstion is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents end/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPriv8cyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov *
B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

VS.Laslupdat® ItfOS/lS EtMbil Contractor irtiUJt.
OHHS Informslton
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR behavioral HEALTH

l29PLeASANTSTReET.CONCORO.NH MJOl

60J<271.9544 14004520345 Ck. 9544

F»i: 603.271^32 TOD Acccis: 1400.735.2964

wMrw.()tihi.nh.sov

r

October 31. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Councii

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health to enter into an agreement with Harbor Homes. Inc. (Vendor U 155358) for the
provision of transitional housing beds and services for adults who have severe mental illness
or severe and persistent illness and who no longer meet the level of care provided by New
Hampshire Hospital or a Designated Receiving ! Facility, in an amount not to exceed
$2,100,000 effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval through June
30,2019. 100% General Funds.

2) Contingent upon approval of Requested Action 1). authorize the Department of Health
and Human Services to provide Harbor Homes. Inc. with an advance payment in an amount
not to exceed $80,300 effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 with the ability to adjust
amounts vrithin the budgets and encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office vrithout Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.
05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Harbor Homes, Inc. Vendor #155358

State Fiscal

Year Class / Account Class Title Budget Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $1,050,000

'2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $1,050,000

Contract Total: $2,100,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this agreement is for the Ccnirador to develop and operate fourteen
(14) transitional housing beds with wrap-around services and supports in the Nashua area.



Hi5 Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honor8)>ie Council
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During the 2017 legislative session, the New Hampshire General Court made
investments to Improve the State's mental health system. These improvements incliJde. but
are not limited to:

1) Establishing up to twenty (20) additional designated receiving facility beds for up
to two (2) years to serve individuals with severe mental illness who meet the
criteria for involuntary emergency admission;

t

2) Adding transitional and community residential beds with wrap-around services
and supports;

3) Adding a mobile crisis team and apartments in a geographic location that has
high rates of admissions to and discharges from New Hampshire Hospital;

4) Developing and implementing an integrated data management system to provide
real-time information at>out the availability of involuntary and voluntary inpatient
psychiatric beds in NH; and

5) Conducting an independent evaluation of the capacity of the current health
system in NH to respond to inpatient, acute psychiatric needs of patients,
including but not limited to those patients who require invol.untary emergency
admissions.

Pursuant to HB517. Section 190, this Contract partially meels the requirement of
adding transitional housing beds in two (2), above.

The Department solicited applications from applicants to provide transitional housing
and community residences. RFA-2018-OBH-03-TRANS was published on the Departrr>ent's
website from June 30. 2017 through August 4, 2017. The Department received three (3)
applications in response to the Request for Applications. The Department scored the
applications and the top two (2) scoring vendors were selected to provide services specified in
the Request for Applications. The summary score sheet is attached.

Based on the applications received, the Department decided to award the first 20 beds
mandated by HB517 in State Fiscal Year 2018 immediately. The Department intends to
reissue an RFA for the 20 additional beds mandated by HB517 in State Fiscal Year 2019 as
soon as the first 20 beds are under contract.. ^

Harbor Homes, Inc. will provide a minimum of fourteen (14) transitional housing beds
and related wrap-around sen/ices to adults who have severe mental illness or serve and
persistent illness and who no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital or a Designated Receiving Facility, as detailed in the attached agreement. Services
will be available for a minimum of four (4) beds no later than 45 days from the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval. The remaining ten (10) beds will be ready for
occupancy within ninety (90) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of this
agreement.

The attached agreement includes language that allows for up to two (2) years of
extensions for services, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance
of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council, as specified in Exhibit C-1,
Paragraph 3.



His Excenency. Goveow Christopher T. Sonunu
arwj the Honorable Council
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The Department plans to have a. final contract for the remaining 6 beds mandated by
HB517 for the December 6, 2017 Governor and Executive Council mating. At that time, the
Department vwli re-issue an RFA for the 20 additional beds mandated by HB517 to be
operational by July 1, 20.18 for Slate Fiscal Year 2019.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, fourteen (14)
transitional housing beds and se'rvices would not be available to individuals in need, of housing
who are transitionlng from NH Hospital or a Designated Receiving Facility to the community
which, in turn, makes those beds available to Individuals .wrho are waiting in hospital
emergency rooms for services.across the State.

Area served: Nashua.

Source of Furwls: 100% General

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by: J^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Th4 CkportMnt 0/ Htolth ond Human Stmicct'MUsion itiejoin cammunilia and fomilUi in providinc oppCrlunUte$ (at
citittnt lo nchivf. htoHh and iiidep<ndtiicc.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Transitional Housing and Community
Resldentiai Bods

RFA Name

Bidder Name

Peilowship H.O., Inc. & Riverbend C.M.H., Inc. •
Region 4

2. Harbor Homes. Inc. Region 6

NFi North • Region 4

NFI North • Region 3

5.
NFi North - Region 1

6. NFI North - Region 10

RFA.2018-08H-03.TRANS

RFA Number

Maximum

Points

Actual
Points

600 370

600 402

600 360

600 381

600 361

600 379

Reviewer Names

Michael Kdly, Prog Planning &
'' • Review Spdst. 88H
^hafoJ^HcSi^enlo^aychraS
Social Wflcr, NHH

. Margaret Clifrofd. Administretof IV.
^ OMBP



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMEfrfTOF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 KUzcn Of.. Concord, KH 03301

Fox: «aV27l l$l6 TDD Acccu; l-W0-7»>3964

HTWwj^KgOv/doit

D«nb Coalci

Cemnixtlonif

November 1,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Depanment of Health and Htiman Services
Stale of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

ConconJ, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner. Meyers:

, This letter reprcscnis formal ftotificatton that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agericy's request to enter into a contract with Harbor Homes. Inc. of Nashua, NH as
described below and referenced as DolT No. 201S-I04.

ITtis is a request to enter into a contract with Harbor Homes, Inc. to develop and operate
transitional housing beds with wrap-around services and supports for individuals who
have been referred from New Hampshire Hospital (NKH) or Designated Receiving

. Facilities. Individuab served will have a severe menlaJ illness (SM!) or severe and
persistent mental illness (SPMI) arsd meet eligibility for community mental health
services at a community.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed S2,100,000.00, and shall become effective
upon (he dale of Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30,2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany (he Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis G

DO/kaf

Dorr »2018.I04

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

•/nnovot/ve Uchnologlei Todoy Jot Wew HotnpsNre's Tomonow'



FORM NUMBER P07 (nnloo S/B/IS)

Subjea: TnnwiiKingl Homing and CommunitY Residencca fRFA|-29lfl-PBH-^)-'''RANS^U
Kotiet: This tgrccmeni ond ell oTiu aiuchmnu shell become public upon submission to Governor and

' Executive Council for apf^val. Any Inforrnation thai is private, confidcniial or proprietary must
be ckarly identified lo the agency and agr<^ to in writing prior to signing the contracL

agreement

. The Suie of New Hempshirc and the Comracior hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Ocpe/tmenl ofHcalth and Muman Services

1.2 Sute Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NN 0330I0857

1 j Contmctor Name
HarborHomcs. inc.

1.4 CoRincior Address

77 Northeastern Blvd.

Koshua, NH 03062

l.S ContracurPhone
Number

603-812-3616 EXT 1103

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922O1O-41170000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2019

14 Price-Limitation

S2.100.000

1.9 Contraoing Officer for Slate Agency
E.Maria Rcincmann, Esq., Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1.11 Corunctor 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgemenu State of .County of l\sV>0ifC>0^lri

On 10|3\1 ll . before the undersigned ofTiccr, personally ippenred the person idcniincd in
proven to be the pesson-wbose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed
iftdicaicd in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justiceofihe Peace

.0

01
or Justice of the Pend Title o1.13.2

r-
1.14 Slate Agency Signature

lo/'s'

ii)hli6 ■

t -Irt

.IS Namp and Title of State Agency Signatory .

1.16 Approval 6y the N.H.Ocpoftmcm of Administration, Division of PcnonrKti^pppfleab/e)

Director. On:By:

1.17 Approval b:^/f>^Aitomcy Gene^(Form. Substance ̂  Execution) 0/opplicable)

By. / 1/ I / !/ CA/Cj 10/v/j.oiy
1.18 Approval byt^i Covcrrw^d A:tccutive~Council appllcabit)

By: On:

Page I of4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOJySERVIceS TO
BE PERFORMED. The SuieofNew Hampshire, sciins
through (he agency idenUned in block I.I C^iote"), engages
conUVtor identiHcd in block IJ ("Contractor^) to perform,
and (he Cootrtctor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, idemifted and more particularly dacnbcd in the attached
EXHIBIT A which b incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

J. EFFECTIVE OATEX:OMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
comrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, i f.
tppIicsWe, this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics
. hcrcuiKkr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block l.lg, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agrccmem shall become efTeciive on ihe date the
Agreement is sigrted by the Sute Agency u shown in block
1.14 ("Effcoive Date").
i2 IftheContractorcommcncesihe Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Coniraaor prior
to the EfTeciive Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become cfTocirve, the State Shall have no liablHty to the
Coruraoor. including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Coniraaor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contmaof must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Norwithstoftdlng any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligaiions of the State hereumlcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of poymenis hereundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall Ihe State be liable for any
payments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In t)teevem of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have (he right to withhold
payment until such fundsbccome available, ifcver, and shall
have the right to terminete this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Sute
shall rwi be required to transfer funds from any other kcouni
to the Account identified in block 1.6 inlhc event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

3.1 The contita price, method of payment, and terms of
poyment are ktouified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 6 which is icKorporated herein by rererence.

5.2 The payment by the Sute of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Coniraaor for the Services. The Sute
shall have no liability to the Coniraaor other than the coniraa
price.

Pogc

5 J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 thrwgh RSA 80t7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
mode hercunder, exceed the Price LimitatJon set fonh in Nock
1.8.

d. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all sututes, laws, regulaiiotu.
and ortkn of federal, sute, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contraaor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opponuniiy
laws. This may include the requircmcrti to utilize auxiliary
aids ar>d services to ensure' thai persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing ar>d speech, on
communicate with, receive information from, and corwcy
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Coniraaor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agrcernenl, the Contractor shad
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
hai^icap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by nvmics of the
United States, (he Conuactor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Suics Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he State of New Hampshireor (he United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contraaor further agrees to
pamit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for (he purpose of
ascertaining compliance with alt rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform (he Services. The Contraaor
warrants that oil personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform (he Services, and shall be properly
licensed arwl otherwise authorized to do so under all amicable
laws.

7.2 Unless'^otherwise authorized in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ̂ all not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is o State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
proeurcmcni, adminidriiion or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shAll survive lerminuion of this
Agreement.
7J The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor. sMll be the Sute'srcprcsenUlive. Inlhc event

ofany dispute concerning the intcrpreiaiion of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decisiofl shall be final for ihe State.

8. EVEffT or OEFAULT/REMEDieS.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of ihc
Contractor shall constitute an event of dclkult hereundcr
("Event ofOcfault"):
8.1.1 failure to perfoon the Services saiisfaciorilx or on

■tcheduk;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any <^a covenartt, term or cortdliion
of this Agreement
U Upon (he occtorence of any Event of Default, the State
may l^e any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
-8J.1 ̂ ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in (he
abscrtce of a greater or loser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving Ihe.Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor'a written notice specifying the Event
of Default a^ suspending all payments to be made uodcr this
Agrccmcru and ordering that the ponion of (he contract price
wfiich would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from (he date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2J set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State sufTcn by reason of any
Event crDcfBuli; and/or
6.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies el taw or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESSATONFIDENTIALITV/
preservation.
9. i As used in (his Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtairKd during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement^ including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, (Mclorial reprodtxtions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he Slate or purchased with funds provided for ih&i purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
lemunation of this Agreement for any reason.
9J Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter9)>Aorothcrcxisttnglaw. Disclosureofdata
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10.'TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the ConinKtlng
Officer, not later than fiflecn (18) days after the date of
termination, a report CTermination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of terminaiion. The form, subject
matter, conieni, and nurribcr of copies of the Termination
Repon thai! be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBfr A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S relation TOTHE STATE, in
the pcrformarKe of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neiiha the Contractor nor any ofits
office^ employees, agents or members shall.have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefiii, worters' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontiucts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in (his Agraemcnl without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of (he Services shall be
Subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend.
^  indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and

employees, from artd against any artd all fosses sulTercd by the.
Stale, its offtcers artd employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the' State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claims to arise out of) (he acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
rcsoved to the State. This covatant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at lu sole expense, obtain and
mainttin in force, and shall require any subconuactor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liibitiiy insurance against all
claims of bodily injury.deathor property damage, in amounts
ofnotlcssthanSI.OOO.OOOpcroccurrence BndS2,(KX),(XI0
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than SOS of the whole replaeemcni value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ In the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contnctor shsl) lUmish to the ConirBctiflgOfTiccr
idaMifled in block 1.9. or his ot her fiiccessor, i ceilir»ca(e(s}
ofinsurtnce br sti insurttnce required under (his Agrcemeht.
Contrector shall also furnish lo the Contracting OfTtcer
identified In block l.9»or his or her successor, certificaicfs) of
ifuuraiKc for all ierwwa](s) of iftsurancc required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dateofcachofthe insurmcepolicies. IV certiricate<s) of
iruura/KC and any renewals thereof shall be attached artd are
incorporated herein by rtfeencc. Eachcertif1caie(s)or
iftsurancc shall oonialn a clause requlHng the Insurer to
provide the Contracting OfTicer identiricd in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
-notice of cafKcllation or modification of the polky.

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By sipting this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the roquirtntcnis of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A
fU^orktrs'Cemptnsaion''). ^
iy2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workat' Compensation in
connection with activities which tlK person proposes to
undert&kc'pvmuaniiothisAtreemeru. Contractor shall
fiimish the Conuading Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proofof Workers' Compcnution in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapicr 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) ihcTeof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated hacin by rtfercncc. The Slate shall not be
responsible for peymeni of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or beneHt for Contractor, or'
any subcontrsctoror employee of Contractor, which might
ar^ under eppliceble State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compmsaiion laws In connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

Id. waiver of BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights vriih regard to that Event of
Oefautt. or any subsequertt Event of Default. No express
fallure'to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Suie to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof uport any further or other Event of Default
on the port of the Contrector.

17. notice. Any notice by • party hereto to the other parry ■
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certifted mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the oddresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics herdo and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circunutanoes pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be consinicd in accordance with the.
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon artd
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in (his Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he parties to express (heir mutual
intent, and rto rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any perty.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
bcnefii any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
conjuued to confer any such benefii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings duovghout the Agreement
art for'reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explaitv modify, amplify or
aid in the inierprttaiion, construction or mcsning of thie ■
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In (he event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competeni jurisdiction to
be oonirvy to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreemem will remain in full force artd
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall'
be deemed en original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the panics, and superscdes-all prior
Agrcemcrus and understandings relating hereto.
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Now Hainpshiro Departmont of Haatth and Human Servlcos
Transitional Houslr)9 8ada and Gorvlcea

EiMblt A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English
proficiency to ensure meanir>gful access to their programs and/or services
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement
so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall obtain the licenses and certifications to operate the
faality pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative Rules HeP*814 and/or He-
M-1002.

1.4. Ttfe Ciontraclor shall be an enrolled Medlcald provider through the
Department's Medlcald program.

1.5. In the event the Department incorporates Medlcald eligible Transitiondl
Housing services into its agreements with ttie Managed Care contractors,
the Department v/ill notify the Contractor arvl provide the Contractor sixty
(60) days to enrol) as a provider of such services with the Managed Care
contractors.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide fourteen (14)'transitional housing beds In Slate
Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year 2019 through this contract In
accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.6.1. A minimum of four (4) transitional housing beds are ready for client
occupancy no later thani forty-five (45) days from the contract
effective date.

1.6.2. The remaining ten (10) transitional housing beds are ready for client
occupancy no later than nif»ly (90) days from the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall develop and operate transitional housing beds with
wrap-around services arxl supports for individuals who have been referred
from New Hampshire Hospital (NHH) or Designated Receiving Facilities
(DRFs) and who:

2.1.1. Have a severe mental illriess (SMI) or severe and persistent mental
illness (SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental health
services at a community mental health center (as defined in
Administrative Rule He-M 401);

2.1.2. Require extensive support and rehabilitation to su^ssfulty
RFP.2018-OBH-03-TRANS-01 ExWMA Contraclof Initials
Harbor Homes. Irx. i rv U11»'7
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Now Hampshlro Dopartment of Hoaltfi and Human Sorvlcea
Trenofttonal Houalng Bodo and SorvlcM

Exhibit A

transition from NHH or a DRF before moving to less restrictive
alternatives in the community of their choice, and

2.1.3. Have been determined to no longer meet the level of care provided
by NHH or a DRF.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide community residential services as defined In
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 1002, which at a minimum
include:

2.2.1. Assistance and instruction to improve and maintain individual skills
in basic daily living, personal development, and community activities
by providing therapeutic behavioral services that include but are nol
limited to:

2.2.1.1. Personal decision making;

2.2.1.2. Personal care, household management, budgeting,
shopping, and other functional skills;

2.2.1.3. Household chores and responsibilities;

2.2.1.4. Having relationships with person both with and without
disabilities;

2.2.1.5. Accessing a wide range of integrated community activities
including recreational, cultural, and other opportunities;

2.2.1.6. Participating in religious sconces and practices of the
consumer's choosing; and

2.2.1.7. Choosing and wearing clothing that is neat, clean. In good
repair, and appropriate to the season and activity.

2.2.2. Individual service plans for consumers that are developed in
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 401
and He-M 408.

2.2.3. Illness Management and Recovery Senrices provided on an
Individual and group basis, in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 426, which teach strategies for:

2.2.3.1. Recovery;

2.2.3.2. Practical facts about mental Illness;

2.2.3.3. The stress-vulnerability model and treatment strategies;

2.2.3.4. Building soda) supports;

2.2.3.5. Reducing relapses;

2.2.3.6. Using medication effectively;

2.2.3.7. Coping with stress;

2.2.3.8. Coping with problems and symptoms: /

RFP.20ie-DBH-Oi-TRANS-01 . ExhiWA Contractor Initiate — —
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Now Kampshiro Department of Hoatth and Human Services
Transitional Housing Beds and Services

Exhibit A

2.2.3.9. Getting your needs metjn the mental health system; ar^d

2.2.3.10. Assessing for Drug and Alcohol use.

■ 2.2.4. Psychotherapeutic Services in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules He-M 426, which includes sex offender
treatment

2.2.5. Targeted Case Management (TOM) Services In accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rules He>M 426 in order to:

2.2.5.1. Ensure continuity of care by assisting consumers gain
access to needed medical, social, educational, and other
services on a one-to-one basis to help them transition
back to their homes and communities; and

2.2.5.2. Assist consumers with completirrg applications for all
appropriate sources of financial, medical, and housing
assistance including, but not limited to;

2.2.5.2.1. Niedicaid.

2.2.5.2.2. Medicare.

2.2.5.2.3. Social Security Disability Income.

2.2.5.2.4. Public Housing subsidies.

2.2.5.2.5. Section 8 subsidies.

2.2.6. An Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA) for each
consumer, as well as enter results into the Department's data
collection system:

2.2.6.1. Upon admission to the program. ^

2.2.6.2. Ninety (90) days after admission as part of the individual
service plan review.

2.2.6.3. Every 6 months after admission.

2.2.6.4. Annually after the first year from the date of the initial
assessment.

2.2.7. Evidence Based Supported Employment Services In accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 426 to consumers who
ask to seek competitive employment.

2.2.8. Psychiatric Evaluation and Management Services In accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 426. which shall be
provided by a qualified psychiatrist. Advanced Practice Registered
Nurse (APRN) or Physician's Assistant (PA), for the purposes of
assessrrient and treatment of consumers in the program.

2.2.9. Medical Services provided by Registered Nurses (RN) will be
delivered on site Monday through Friday during the hours of 8:00 am

RFP.20tS-OBH-03-TRANS-01 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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to 10:00 pm and on Saturdays and Sundays during the hours of 8:00
am to 4:30 pm. subject to the following requirements or as othenmso
indicated:

2.2.9.1. Transitional Housing Services RNs and behavioral health
' staff shall provide input Into the annual review of

individual's health history, health status, and supports
Identified or needed to maintain physical, mental and
social well-being as provided by a primary care provider of
the Individual's'choosing, and wth , the individual's
consent.

2.2.9.2. Instmction In and assistance with In taking prescribed
medications independentty, In accordance with Exhibit A-
1. Administration of Medications In the Transitional
Housing Program.

2.2.9.3. Residential staff trained by the Nurse Trainer to provide
. services in Section 2.2.9.2. above.

2.2.9.4. All RN-level medical services, within the hours specified In
Section 2.2.9. The Contractor shall have an adequate
number of nurses to float/travel between sites to respond
to client needs in a timely manner.

2.2.9.5. Non-RN level staff including, .but not limited to. support
staff. License Nursing Assistants, and other providers, to
provide non-RN level medical services under the
supervision of RNs or other qualified medical providers.

2.2.9.6. Primary care clinical staff and home health care staff that
provide per diem coverage in the event that additional
nursing staff is needed during the above referenced
hours, as well as 24/7 coverage through on-call coverage.

2.2.10. Qualified staff on site. 24 hours a day, 7 days per week for all
transitional housing residents. Staff shall be trained by a Nurse
Trainer.

2.2.11. Medical Services/Medications shall be administered In accordance
with Exhibit A-l, Medication Administration In the Transitional
Housing Program.

2.2.12. Emergency Services available twenty-four.(24) hours per day. seven
(7) days per week for both medical and psychiatric needs. Senrices
shall include, but not be lirDited to:

2.2.12.1. An on-call clinician for evenings, weekends and holidays
to provide crisis intervention, coordinate Involuntary
Emergency Admission petitions in accordance with
Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA)135-C:26 Emergency

RFPi2018-DBH-03-TRANS-01 Exhibit A Contractor Initials >
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Treatment and revocation of conditional discharges in
accordance with RSA 135-C;51,1)1) when required.

2.2.12.2. A Registered Nurse available or on-call to;

2.2.12.2.1. Provide education problem solving and support
regarding medications.

2.2.12.2.2.Respond to health related concerns;

2.2.12.3. A nurse available on-call the remainder of each day.
v^ekends and holidays to:

2.2.12.3.1.Provide education, problem solving and
support regarding medications.

2.2.12.3.2. Respor>d to health related concems.

2.2.13. Specialized Treatments, such, as sex offender services and/or Risk
Assesshrienl evaluations, for consumers who have co-occurring
disorders, are In need of sex offender treatment, or have other court
mandated treatments.

2.2.14. Wellhess Management that includes, but is not limited to, access to
services and activities such as the 'Healthy Choices-Healthy
Changes' designed to improve physical health, and provide smoking
cessation programs.

2.3. The Contractor.shall accept consumer referrals from the New Hampshire
Hospital (NHH). Designated Receiving Facilities (DRFs). and the Community
Mental Health Centers (when approved by the Department).

2.4. The Contractor .shall prioritize consumers referred by New Hampshire
Hospital and Designated Receiving Facilities by having a referral.
admissions, and evaluation process approved by the Department that:

2.4.1. Places current inpatient individuals at New Hampshire Hospital
ahead of any and all community based referrals.

2.4.2. Includes a written referral protocol that includes a review / evaluation
of the individual current situation, assessment of need and
disposition.

2.4.3. Responds to all referrals. In writing within fourteen (14) business
days of receipt, as to the consumer's disposition, (acceptance or
denial) Into the Transitional Housing Program Services, including any
contingencies placed on the acceptance or. If the referral is denied.

' the reason for denial. An unreasonable denial, as determined by the
Department, shall constitute an event of default.

2.4.4. Establishes an admission process that

2.4.4.1. Ensures successful entry of accepted referrals Into the
program. ✓
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2.4.4.2. Includes a communications plan that outlines the reasons,
both verbally and in writing, that referrals were

•  unsuccessful.

2.5. The Contractor shall have a discharge process for consumers who are
discharged from the Transitional Housing Program Services that

2.5.1. Ensures participation In discharge planning meetings with community
mental health centers, New Hampshire Hospital, and other providers.

2.5.2. Includes a written discharge plan that details an evaluation of the
consumers' current situation, disposition and transition plan for
movihg back In tO;th.e community.

2.5.3. Retairts the indlviduars bed, in the event that an individuars
conditional discharge is revoked, whi^ would result in a temporary
readmission to NHH.

2.5.4. Demonstrates' development and implementation of a collaboratiye
-  relationship vrith the community mental health program to develop
the terms of cohditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-0:50 and
He-M 609, and to develop treatment plans designed to return each
consumer to the.community.

2.5.5. In the event the Contractor is unable to successfully provide the
documentation applicable to 2.5.4. within thirty (30) days, the
Contractor shall notify and seek technical assistance' from the
Department to develop an appropriate remedy within ninety (90).
days.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide the written processes for referrals, admissions,
evaluations and discharges outlined in Section 2.4 and Section 2.5 to the
Department no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

2.7. The Contractor shall assist the Pre-Admission Screening and Annual
Resident Review (PASARR) Office of the Department in meeting the
requirements of the PASARR provisions of the Omnibus . Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1987 by providing the information necessary to
determine the existence of men^l illness or mental retardation by corrducting
Individual evaluations and examinations needed to determine if a person
being screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and has active
treatment needs.

2.8. The Contractor shall designate a staff member to perform the responsibilities
of a complaint manager. In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rule He-r^ 204.

2.9. The Contractor shall submit a plan to the Department, within thirty (30) days
of the contract effective date that details how consumers will be transitioned'
back into the community. The transition plan shall include, but not be limited
to:

RFP.201B-D8H.03-TRANS-01 Exhibit A Contractor initials \'
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2.9.1. Procedures for moving existing program participants into more
integrated comrhunity settings and where possible.

2.9.2. A person-centered plan developed in coilaboration with the Individual
that Incorporates the individuars needs, and safety of themselves
and the public in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rule He-M 401.

2.9.3. A plan to collaborate with the individual's local community mental
health program and peer support agencies to provide other services
and supports in the community.

2.9.4. Involvement of the individual's family to support integration into the
community, with the Indiwdual's consent.

2.9.5. Processes to identify any barriers to placement in the community,
with emphasis on the interventions necessary to promote more
opportunities for community integration.

2.10. The Contractor shall develop individualized service plans to ensure
individuals have access to services that promote the values of recovery and
resiliency by utilizing a strength-based approach and person-centered
service planning. In accordance with He-M 401.

2.11. The Contractor shall utilize Individual service plans to assist individuals with
identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers, family
members, neighbors, landlords, employers, and others in order to aeate a
network of support that builds resiliency as well as strength-based recovery
and wellness skids.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure individuals have access to a local primary care
physician (PCP). within thirty (30) days from the effective date of the
contracl. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Coordinate care for each individual receiving services.

2.12.2. Obtain written consent from program participants to exchange health
information at regular Intervals with the PCP.

2.13. The Contractor shall assess the legal commitment status of Individual
residing in the program and. if deemed appropriate, provide:

2.13.1. The continuation of the commitment via the proper legal process.

2.13.2. Coordination of care with the legal system when indicated including,
but not limited to, the NH Department of Corrections, and the NH
AttomeyGenerars Office.

2.14. The Contractor shall remain compliant with all state and federal laws, rules
and regulations pertaining to the iicensure and operation of a community
residential program.

2.15. The Contractor shall perform, or cooperate in the performance of, quality
improvement and/or ulilization review activities determined to be necessary

RFP-2018-D8H-OS-TRANS-01 ExhibBA Contractor Initials .Attl
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and appropriate by the Department, within timeframes specified by the
Department, in order to insure the efficient and effective administration of the
Medicaid program. This shall Include, but is not limited to;

2.15.1. Waimaining detailed consumer records as required by New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 408. (In the event that a
Transitional Housing Program Services consumer becomes an
Inpatlent at NHH. the Contractor shall be deemed In compliance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He«M 408, if the consumer's
inpatlent status Is noted inlhe record.) ^

2.15.2. Submitting data needed to comply with federal reporting
requirements to the Department.

2.16. The Contractor shall collect contributions for clothing, food and housing from
each consumer. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Collect a maximum of 30% of Income from each consumer which
shall be applied toward the consumer's cost of clothing, food, and
housing.

2.16.2. Submit the vmtten method, process and procedure for calculating,
collecting, accounting for and maintaining records of each
consumers contribution collected as specified In Section 2.16.1,
above to the Department for approval no later than ten (10) days
from the contract effective date.

2.17. The Contractor shall submit an Emergency Plan to the Department for
approval no later than ten (10) days from the contract effective date
ensures consumers' safety in the event of a natural, intentional or accidental
incident or threat.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain staffing levels that ensure consumer, staff arxl
community safety and include, but are not limited to:.

3.1.1. One Medical Director who:

3.1.1.1. Possesses a valid license to practice medicine in New
Hampshire and meet the requirements of RSA 135-C: 2.
XKI.

3.1.1.2. Is board eligible or board certified in psychiatry according
to the regulations of the American Board of Psychiatry and
Neurology. Inc.. or its successor organization at the time
of hiring.

3.1.1.3. Maintains board eligibility or certification in Section
3.1.1.2, above, throughout his/her tenure as medical
director.

3.1.2. One Administrator or Director who is responsible for the day-t^ay
RFP-201S-DBH-03-TRANS-bl Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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fhanagement. supervision, and operation of the residence.

3.1.3. One Registered Nurse, licensed in accordance with RSA 326-0, who
is resportsible for the overal) delivery and supervision of nursing
services.

3.1.4. One Nurse Trainer to provide supervision to any staff member who Is
authorized to administer medications.

3.1.5. A sufficient number of personnel to provide nursing services,
consisting of registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, and other
staff. (Nurses shall be registered as required by RSA 326-B.)

3.1.6. A sufficient number of direct care personnel to meet the 24-hour
scheduled and unscheduled needs of the consumers in accordance
with the corisumers' individual service plans, which shall include t>ut
f>ot be limited to. one (1) direct care staff member per residence per
shift when a consumer is occupying the residence.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinical staff worltlng within Transitional Housing
Program Services are certified in the administration of the Adult Needs and
Strengths Assessment (ANSA) using either:

3.2.1. The State web-based training and certification program; or

3.2.2. In-person attendance at a State sponsored training.

3.3. The Contractor shall maintain employee files ensuring credentials for each
staff is available upon Department request.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a staffing contingency plan to the Department for
approval no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date, which
shall include, but Is not limited to:

3.4;1. The process for replacing personnel in the event of loss of personnel,
including but not limited to time frames for obtaining qualified
replacements.

3.4.2. The plan to allocate additional resources to the contract in the event
any performance standard is not met

3.4.3. Capabilities to provide, in a Umely manner, repiacements/aclditlons
with comparable experience; and

3.4.4. Method of bringing replacements/additions up-to-date regarding this
Agreement.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall meet with the Department at least quarterly, or as
requested by the Department, to review the progress of consumers toward
independent living.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly (January through March, April through
'Juf>e, July through September, and October through December) to
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me Department by the 15m of the monm following me end of the quarter.
Quarterty reports shall contain Information that Includes, but Is not limited to:

4.2.1. The number of people referred and admitted to Transitional Housing
Program Services;

4.2.2. The number of people discharged from me Transitional Housing
Program Services; and

4.2.3. The number of people transltloned Into the community.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit rnonmiy Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss
Statements to me Department for review of fiscal Integrity. The Contractor
shall ensure the Profit and Loss Statements;

4.3.1. Include a budget column that allows for a budgel-to-actual analysis

4.3.2. Are submitted vvilhin m.irty (30) days after the last day of the previous
monm.

4.3.3. Based on the accrual method of accounting.

4.3.4. Include me Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or
not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to mis
contract.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of four (4) transitional housing beds
and related sen/ices described in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, are ready for
client occupancy no later man forly-five (45) days from me contract effective
date.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure the remaining ten (10) transitional housing beds
and related services described In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, are ready (or
client occupancy no later man ninety (90) days from me contract effective
date.

5.3. The Contractor shall enter data from me Adult Needs and Strengms
Assessments (ANSAs) ir^ Action 2.2.6 into me Department's data collection
system within five (5) days of completing each assessment

6.4. The Contractor shall provide written processes for referrals, admissions and
evaluations and discharges outlined in Section 2.4 and Section 2.5 to the
Department no later man mirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a general community transition plan, as
specified in Section 2.9, mat details how consumers will be transltloned back
into me community to me Department no later than thirly (30) days from me
contract effective date.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure all consumers receiving services have at^ss to
a local primary care physician, as specified in Section 2.12. within mirty (30)
days from the contract effective date.

M'

Hart)orHomc4, Inc. _ . W\\'2»v\V*
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5.7. The Contractor shall submit the written method, process and procedure for
cateulating, collecting, accounting for and maintaining records of each
consumer's contribution collected, as specified in Section 2.16.1. to the
Depahment no later than ten (10) days from the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall submit the staffing contingency plan in Section 3.4 to
the Department no later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

RFP-20tS-O8H-03-TRANS-0l ExWbilA Cootrsctor Initials
Harbor Homes, inc.
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Exhibit A-1

Administration of Medications In the Transitional Housing Program

1. Purpose.

1.1. The' purpose of the rule is to ensure the safe administration of
medlcabons by providers to individuals who reside in oommunity
residences certified under He-M 1002.

2. Definitions.

2.1. ^AdmlnlstrBHon' means an act whereby a.,singie dose of a drug is
instilled into the body of. applied to the body of, or otherwise given to.
a person for immediate consumption or use.

2.2. 'Authorized provided means a person who is employed by. has a
contract with, or receives remuneration from a 'Community mental
health provider' to deliver services to an individual

2.3. 'Community mentat health program' CMHP means a program
operated by the state, city. town, county, or a community-based New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation for the purpose of planning,
establishing, and administering an array of community-based, mental
health services pursuant to He-M 403 and as defined in RSA 135-0:2,
1V.

2.4. 'Community mentei heatth provider' means a Medicaid provider of
community mental health services that has been previously approved
by ,the commissioner to provide specific mental health services
pursuant to He-M 426.

2.5. 'Community residence' means a residence, exclusive of any
independent living arrangement, that

2.5.1. Provides residential services in accordance with He-M 426
and He-M 1002 for at least one individual with a mental illness:

2.5.2. Provides services and supervision for individuals on-site 24
hours a day. 7 days a week or at all times that individuals are
In the residence, unless an individual's ISP states that he or
she may be left alone;

2.5.3. Serves .individuals .whose services are funded by the
department; arid

2.5.4. Is certified pursuant to He-M 1002.

2.6. "Compefenf rheans having the Integration of knowledge, judgment
and skills necessary to provide safe medication administration.

2.7. 'Controlied drug' means a drug which is included in schedules I, II.
Ill IV or V of part B'of the Controlled Substances Act 21 U..S.C.811-

«/ExhbH A-1 Contractor Initials:
AdministratJon of Medications in the Transitional Houslf>g Program
Page 1 of 15
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Administration of Medications in the Transitional Housing Program

812.

2.8. "Deficiency'' means a detenrtnation made by department staff, as a
result of a program review pursuant to He-M 1002.13, that a program
is not operating in compliance with a particular administrative rule
adopted by the department.

2.9. "Deoaftment" means the New Hampshire department of health and
human services.

2.10. "Director' means the director of the division of behavioral health or
hisorherdesignee.

2.11. "DMsion" means the division of behavioral health.

2.12. "Independent living arrangement" means a situation where an
Individual does not receive daily and ongoing services and
supervision but receives assistance, as needed, to maintain or
develop skills to live independently and prevent circumstances that
could necessitete a transfer to a more resliictive level of care.

2.13. "tndividuar means a person with a mental illness who receives
services from a community mental health program or community
mental health provider In a community residence.

2.14. "Guardian" means the parent of a child under the age of 18 whose
parental rights have not been terminated under RSA 170-C or a
person appointed to be guardian of the person under RSA464-A.

2.15. "Licensed person" means a registered nurse, a licensed practical
nurse, an advanced registered nurse practitioner, a physician, a
phamiacist, a physician assistant, or a dentist licensed In the state of
New Hampshire.

2.18. "Medical director" means the medical director of the division or his
orherdesignee. n

2.17. "Medication" means a drug prescribed for an individual by a
prescribing practitioner including drugs to be taken on a PRN basis
and over-the>counter drugs.

2.18. "Medication loa" means a written record of medications prescribed
for. and administered to, an individual.

2.19. "Medication occurrence" means any deviation in the admlnlstrabon
of a medication as prescribed or In related documentation witti"the
exception of a deviation caused by an individual's:

2.19.1. Refusal to take medication;

Exhibit A-1 Controctor initials: \ .
Adrrinlstratioo ol Medications in the TransKionaJ Housing Program . -\ - \\ I
Page 2 of 15 Date:
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Administration of Medications in the Transltionai Housing Program

2.19.2. Absence from a community residence; or

2.19.3. Attempting to use prescribed medication while under the
influence of alcohol or illegal drugs.

2.20. 'Modleatlon order" means directions provided by a prescribing
practitioner, either in writing or verbally, for a specific drug to be
administered to an individual.

2.21. "Mental Illness' means mental illness as defined in RSA 135-C;2.
namely "a substantial impairment of emotional processes, or of the
ability to exercise conscious control of orre's actions, or of the ability to
perceive extremely abnormal t>et>avior or extremely faulty
perceptions."

2.22. "Nurse Trainer" means a restored nurse wt^) has been designated
as a trainer

2.23. "PRN medication" means a drug ordered to be taken as needed for
a specific condition.

2.24. "Prescribing pracf/f/oner* means a licensed professional with
prescriptive authority, including the following:

2.24.1. Physician;

2.24.2. Advanced registered nurse practitioner (A.R.N.P.);

2.24.3. Dentist;

2.24.4. Physician's assistant;

2.24.5. Optometrist; and

2.24.6. Podiatrist.

2.25. "Provider^ means a person who is employed by. has a contract with,
or receives any form of remuneration from a community mental health
provider to deliver services to an Individual.

3. Medication Administration.

3.1. Administration of medications to individuals shall be performed by
authorized providers or licensed persor^s only.

3.2. .All individuals shall be initially assessed by a licensed physician,
A.R.N.P.. physician assistant or nurse trainer to determine the level
of support needed specilic to medication administration.

3.3. The assessment pursuant to (b) above shall include the individuafs:

3.3.1. Medication orders and medications prescribed;

Exhibit A-1 Contractor IniUals:
Administration of MedicaUons in the Transitional Housing Program
Page 3 of 15 Odle
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3.3.2. Health status and health history;

3.3.3. Ability to self-medicate

3.3.4. Ability to understand

3.4. If a guardian with authority regarding health care decisions has been
appointed for an individual, the "Community rhental health provider*
shall obtain the cor\sent of the guardian prior to the administration of
medications.

3.5. Authorized providers shall administer only those medications, for
v^ich there is a medication order.

3.6. Authorized providers shall maintain a copy of each individual's
medication orders in the individuafs record.

3.7. Authorized providers, shall administer PRN medication in accordance
with:

3.7.1. A medication order; and

3.7.2. A PRN protocol approved by the prescribir>g practitioner or the
nurse trainer that includes:

3.7.2.1. The specific condition(s) for which the medication is
given;

3.7.2.2. A maximum daily dosage; and

3.7.2.3. Any special instructions.

3.8. Authorized providers shall administer medications only to the
individuals to whom they are regularly assigned or about whorn they
have current knowledge relative to their medication regimes.

3.9. Information specific to each medication shall be obtained by the
authorized provider prior to administration of medications, including, at
a minimum:

3.9.1. The purpose and effect(s) of the medication;

3.9.2. Response time of the medication;

3.9.3. Possible side effects, adverse reactions, and symptoms of
overdose;

3.9.4. Possible medication Interactions; and

3.9.5. Special storage or administration procedures.

3.10. In the event of discovery of a medication occurrence, an authorized
provider shall: ..

Exhibc) A-l Contractor inrtlalsiU .
Adminbtration of MedtedUoos In ihc Trarui&mal Housing Program % ^ \ (
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3.10.1. Consult immediately with a licensed person concerning any
actions to t>e taken;

3.10.2. Document each medication occurrence within 8 hours of
discovery of the occurrence; and

3.10.3. Forward the documentation to the nurse trair>er within one
buslrwss day. .

3.11. In the event of medication refusal, the authorized provider shall;

3.11.1. Consult immediately with a licensed person concerning any
actions to be taken;

3.11.2. Document each medication occurrence pursuant within 8
hours of dtscovery of the refusal; and

3.11.3. Forward the documentation to the nurse trainer within one
business day.

3.12. In those cases where an individual has a history of medication refusal,
immediate consultation and documentation pursuant to 3.11 above
shall not be necessary If a protocol has been developed by the
individual's treatment team that includes the actions to be taken to
address the refusal and has been approved by the prescribing
pracbboner and. if applicable, guardian.

3.13. Copies of medication occurrence and medication refusal reports shall
t>e maintained In the quality improvement office at the 'Community
mental health provider'.

4. Self-Medication.

4.1. Individuals who wish to take their own medications, with their
guardians' approval, if applicable, shall be determined to be self-
medicating by a licensed physician. A.R.N.P.. physician assistant, or
nurse trainer if they demonstrate the ability to:

4.1.1. Identify each medication;

4.1.2. Indicate the purpose ol each medication;

4.1.3. Indicate the dosage, frequency, time and route of
administration for each medication;

4.1.4. Demonstrate an understanding of the potential consequences
of not taking the medication or of not taking the medication
properly;

4.1.5. indicate circumstances for which assistance should be sought
from licensed persons; and

Contractor InlUab: _JExhibit A-1 Contractor iniUab
Administrslio
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Administration of Medications In the Transitional Housing Program

4.1.6. Seek assistance, if needed, from licensed persons.

4.2. if individuals do not demonstrate the ability to self-medicate pursuant
to (a) above but wish to receive education regarding self-medication,
then:

4.2.1. The irKlividual service plan shall document the IrKfividual's
need for such education;

. 4.2.2. The education shall precede self-medication and include,
minimally, the components outlined in (a)(1)-(6) above; and

4.2.3. Until an ir>dividual demor\strates the capability to self-
medicate. the individual receiving education shall t>e directly
supervised by a licensed person or an authorized provider
when taking medications to prevent medication occurrences.

4.3. If an individual's physical or mental health declines such that his or
her ability to self-administer is affected, the Individual shairte re
assessed by a licensed physidan. A.R.N.P.. physidan assistant or
nurse trainer to determine his or her continued capability to self-
medicate.

4.4. Documentation by the nurse trainer and. if applicable, guardian
approval of self-medication ability shall be maintained in the
irtdividuaVs record at the community residence.

5. Training and Authorization of Providers.

5.1. Providers who request training to be authorized to administer
medications shall complete a training program that

5.1.1. Consists of a minimum of 8 hours of dassroom training,
exclusive of testing or nurse trainer competency evaluation;

5.1.2. Is conducted by a nurse trainer; and

5.1.3. Covers the following topics:

5.1.3.1. The role, responsibilities and performance of the
authorized provider in the medication administration
process;

5.1.3.2. Prindples of emergency response;

5.1.3.3. Effective health care coordination;

5.1.3.4. Rights regarding accepting or refusing medications;

5.1.3.5. Principles of infection control as they relate to
medication administration;

11/ExhDXtA-l ContTBCtor InKiab:.
AdmtnlstraUon of Metficallons In the Tronsltionar Housing Program
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5.1.3.6. Anatomy and physiology as they relate to
medication administration;

5.1.3.7. Common reactions to medications;

5.1.3.6. Categories of medications and their effects;

5.1.3.9. Effective management of poisoning or medication
overdose: ■

5.1.3.10. Storage and disposal of medications;

5.1.3.11. Communications with Individuals and if applicable,
their guardians, about their medications;

5.1.3.12. The 6 principles of medication administration
includirig;

5.1.3.12.1. The correct medication;

5.1.3.12.2. The correct dosage of the medication;

5.1.3.12.3. The medicabon to the correct

individual;

5.1.3.12.4. The medication at the correct time;

5.1.3.12.5. The medication to the individual by the
1  correct method; and

5.1.3.12.6. The accurate documentation:

5.1.3.13. Methods of administrabon. Including;

5.1.3.13.1. Oral;

5.1.3.13.2. Topical;

5.1.3.13.3. Inhalant;

5.1.3.13.4. Sublingual;

5.1.3.13.5. Transdermal;

5.1.3.13.6. Nasal;

5.1.3.13.7. Ocular;

5.1.3.13.6. Auricular.

5.1.3.13.9. Vaginal;

5.1.3.13.10. Rectal; and

5.1.3.13.11. When indicated

Individual:

Exhibit A> 1 Contractor Initials;.
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5.1.3.13.11.1. Subcutaneous;

5.1.3.13.11.2. Intramuscular, only If
eplnephrir>e via auto
Injector; ar>d

5.1.3.13.11.3. Enterai; and

5.1.3.14. Methods of documenting;

5.1.3.14.1. The administration of medications;

5.1.3.14.2. The use of controlled substar>ces; aruf

5.1.3.14.3. Medication occurrences.

5.2. To be authorized to administer medications, providers shall have:

5.2.1. Completed a minimum of 8 hours of classroom training as set
forth as set forth in 5.1 above;

5.2.2. Scored 80% or higher, on a written examination based on the
information conveyed to them in the training referenced in 5.1
above; and

5.2.3. Demonstrated Knowledge of the folloy^ng pertaining to each
individual's medication(s):

5.2.3.1. The name of the medication;

5.2.3.2. The reason tor Its use;

j  5.2.3.3. Any side effects or adverse reactions; and
5.2.3.4. Any special hstoictions such as giving certain fluids,

checking pulse rate or monitoring blood levels; and

5.2.4. Following direct observation by a nurse trainer, been found
appropriate, pursuant to Nur 4O4.O6(b)-(0. to be authorized to
administer medications.

5.3. Authorization pursuant to (b) above shall be valid for one year from
the. date of issuance.

5.4. Whenever a change in an individual's medication occurs or a new
individual begins to receive services, the nurse trair^r shall educate
the authorized provider according to 'Training and Authorization of
Providers' section above.

5.5. Re-authorization of an authorized provider shali:

5.5.1. Follow a nurse trainer's direct observation of the provider in
the administration of medication; ,v

Exhibtl A-1 Contractor Inftiata:
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5.5.2. Be performed in accordance with Nur 404.06(b)-(f), as
applicat^le; and

5.5.3. Be valid for a period of 12 months from the date of Issuance.

5.6. Documentation of authorization pursuant to 5.2.4 ar>d 5.5 atx)ve shall
be maintained by the nurse trainer for each authorized provider.

5.7. Authorization of providers to administer medication shall be rescinded
■pursuant to Nur 404.06(g)-(h). Authorization shall be reinstated
pursuant to "Training and Authorization of Provider" section above.

6. Documentation.

6.1. For each Individual for whom medications are administered, an
authorized provider shall maintain documentation of medication
administration that includes:

6.1.1. The name of the individual;

6.1.2. If applicable, the guardian's name and contact Information;
6.1.3. Emergency contacts;

6.1.4. Allergies. If applicable; and.
6.1.5. For each medication prescribed:

6.1.5.1. The name of the Individual;

6.1.5.2. The dosage;

6.1.5.3. the frequency of administmtion;
6.1.5.4. The route of administration;

6.1.5.5. The date and time of administration;

,6.1.5.6. The order date; and
6.1.5.7. Special considerations In taking the medication, if

applicable, as directed by the prescribing
practitioner or the pharmacist.

6.2. Documentation of medication administration shall be completed by the
authorized provider at the time medications are administered.

6.3. Each authorized provider who administers medications to an
individual shall enter his or her full signature, credentials and initials in
a section designated for such purpose in the indlviduai's current
medication log.

6.4. When a PRN medication is administered, documentation shall ^
Conuectof Iflltiah: W
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pursuant to 6.1 above and also include the reason for administration
and the medication's effectiveness.

6.5. When a controlled drug is prescrit)ed for an individual, the authorized
provider, shall maintain an Inventory that Inciudes:

6.5.1. The name of the individual;

6.5.2. The name of ttie preschbjr>g practitioner.

6.5.3. The name of the drug and strength;

6.5.4. The amount used;

6.5.5.^ Amount remaining;
6.5.6. The time and date administered;

6.5.7. The name and credentials of the person who administered the
medication;

6.5.8. Documentation of a daily count; and

6.5.9. If applicable, documentation of disposal In the presence of 2
people, at least one of whom Is a licensed person.

5.6. An authorized provider shall document:

6.6.1. (1) Each medication occurrence upon discovery; and

6.6.2. (2) An individual's refusal to take medications, except as noted
'Medication Administration" section paragraph 3.12.

6.7. Documentation required pursuant to 6.6 above shall, at a minimum,
include the following:

6.7.1. The Individual's r^me;

6.7.2. The dale and time of the occurrence or refusal;

6.7.3. The drug name, dosage, frequency, route of administration
and prescribing practitioner.

6.7.4. A description of the occurrence or refusal.

6.7.5. The date and time of notification of a licensed person

6.7.6. Actions recommended by the licensed person;

6.7.7. Actions taken by the authorized provider and

6.7.8. The date and time of notification of a nurse trainer.

6.8. Chartges in medicalion orders shad be documented on the medication
log by licensed persons or authorized providers.

A-1 Contractor trtltials:. ̂ .
AdministraUon of Medications in the Transitional Housing Program .
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6.9. The authorized provider shall report all changes in medication orders
to the nurse trainer.

6.10. The authorized provider shall note, in the medication log, any
medication withheld and the reason(s) the medication was withheld.

6.11. The requirements of 6.1 through 6.9 above shall not apply to
individuals who self^medicate

7. Storage of Medications.

7.1. All medications to be administered by an authorized provider shall be
kept in a locked container, cabinet or closet.

7.2. All controlled drugs to be administered by the authorized provider
shall be stored in a locked compartment within a locked container,
cabinet or closet.

8. Quality Review.

8.1. A registered nurse or licensed practical nurse shall, at least monthly,
review the following . for ail individuals whose medications are
administered by authorized providers:

8.1.1. Documentation that the provider administering the
medlcation(s) holds a current authorization;

6.1.2. Medication orders and PRN protocols;

8.1.3. Medication labels and medications listed on the medication log
to ensure that they match prescribing pracbtioner's orders;

8.1.4. Medication logs to ensure that documentation indicates:

8.1.4.1. That medication was administered as prescribed;

8.1.4.2. Refusal by the individual to take medication, if
applicable;

8.1.4.3. Any medication occurrences; and

8.1.4.4. The full signatures and credentials of all persons
who initial the log; and

8.1.5. Medication storage to ensure compliance with 'Storage of
Medication* section

8.2. Reviews pursuant to 8.1 above shall be documented, dated and
signed by the nurse and retained for at least 6 years by the
communi^ mental health program.

9. Deslariation of Nurse Trainers.

ExhiMA-1 ' ContractwInitiaH: .
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9.1. The director shall, upon request, grant designation as a nurse trainer
to nurses who:

9.1.1. Have a license as a registered nurse in the State of New
Hampshire that Is current and unencumbered;

9.1.2. Have 2 years of licensed nursing experience, at least one of
which has been as a registered nurse, v^thin the past 5 years;
ar>d

9.1.3. Have completed a 6 hour orientation program conducted by
the division of t>ehaviorai health.

9.2. The director shall, upon request, grant 45 day conditional designation
as a nurse trainer to nurses who futfili the requirements of 9.1.1 and
9.1.2, above but have not yet completed the orientation required by
9.1.3. above.

9.3. A nurse granted conditional designation shall not authorize or re
authorize providers to administer medications but may supervise
currently authorized providers.

10. Medication Quality Review.

10.1. The medical director shall review information submitted pursuant to
10.4, below.

10.2. A nurse trainer from the 'Community mental health provider* shall
annually submit a report to the program's director of quality assurance
that includes the following:

10.2.1. The program name;

10.2.2. The dates during which information was collected and the
number of individuals served;

10.2.3. The name, license number, and license expiration date of the
nurse trainer;

10.2.4. The date on which the nurse trainer received his or her
training arnj authorization as a trainer;

10.2.5. The number of hours of supervision provided by the nurse
trainer per month;

10.2.6. The number of providers trained and,number of authorized
providers retrained within the particular reporting period;

10.2.7. The. total number of providers authorized to administer
medication within CMHC programs as of the date of the report;

ExhibilA-1 Contractor Inttiab:
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10.2.6. The total number of medication occurrences listed by specific
medicationfs) involved, type, frequency, and the corrective
action taken;

10.2.9. The number of departmentHSSued 'medication Administration*
related certification deficiencies documented for the setting
pursuant to He-M 1002.13;

10.2.10. Any medication related waiver for the setting, if any;

10.2.11. A narrative summary of the factors which affected the
administration of n^edication; and

10.2.12. The signature of the nurse trainer completing the form and
the date on which the report is submitted.

10.3. The quality assurance director the 'Community, mental health
provider* shall report annually on the agenc/s performance in
medication administration to the division. The report shall summarize
the content of the nurse trainer's report.

10.4. The medical director shall review the reports submitted pursuant to (d)
above and recommerKl to the director that corrective action be taken

by those community residences that, as demonstrated by the reports,
have failed to comply with the provisions of this 'Medication
Administration* Exhibit A-1.

10.5. The recommendations shall identify areas of non-compliance and
suggest corrective action to be taken.

10.6. The director shall review all recommendations for corrective action

made pursuant to 10.4. above. For the "Community mental health
provider* for which corrective action has been suggested, the director
shall require such corrective action to be taken. Corrective action shall

be designed to result in an agency's compliance with the 'Medication
Administration' Exhibit A-1.

10.7. The 'Community mental health provider* that Is In receipt of a
requirement for corrective action shall, within 30 days of such receipt,
forward a corrective action plan to the medical director and begin
implementation of such plan.

11. Revocation.

11.1. Under the following circumstances, the director shall revoke the
designations of those nurse bainers and authorizations to administer
medications of those providers in 'Community mental health provider*
where corrective action has been required:

Exhibit A-^ Contractor Initiats;,
Administratioo of Modications In the Transitional Housing Program
Page 13 of 15 Date;



Now Hampsblro Department of Health and Human Services
TranstUonsi Housing Beds and Services

Exhibit A-1

Administration of Medications In the Transitional Housing Program

11.1.1. A 'Community mental health provider' fails to submit a
corrective action plan

11.1.2. A 'Community mental health provider' submits a corrective
action plan which fails to satisfy the criteria specified by the
medical director or his or her designee or

11.1.3. The "Community mental health provider* fails to implement a
coaective action plan.

11.2. Revocation shall only occur following the provision of 30 days' written
nobce. Such written notice shall state the reasons for the revocation

and inform the 'Community mental health provider* that It may appeal
the decision, if an appeal of the decision is filed, the revocation shall
be postponed pending final action by the director.

11.3. The division shall withdraw a notice of revocation if, within the notice
period, the 'Community mental health provider* complies wilh or, in
the judgment of the director or designee. has made progress toward
complying with the 'Medication Administration' Exhibit A-1.

12. Appeals

12.1. A request for appeal shall be submitted In writing to the director within
10 days following the date of the notification of revocation of
authorization of a provider to administer medication or designation of
a nurse trainer.

12.2. The director shall Immediately forward the request to the
administrative appeals unit so that an appeal proceeding can be
scheduled.

12.3. Appeals shall be conducted in accordance with He-C 200.

13. He-M 1202.13 Waivers.

13.1. A provider or "Community mental health provider* may request a
waiver of specific procedures outlined in this Appendix, in writing, from
the department.

13.2. A request for waiver shall include:

13.2.1. A specific reference to the section of the Appendix for which a
waiver is being sought;

13.2.2. A full explanation of why a waiver is necessary;

13.2.3. A full explanabon of alternative provisions or procedures
proposed by the "Community mental health provider* or
individual; . y-

ExWbltA-1 • Ctmtractof InWals: xy
Administration of Medications in the Transitional Housing ProgramAomtnisuauon oi meuicsuons HI 1MB I i0ii9iuui>a> r-is/yiaii< \/\\'
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Hew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Beds and ̂ rvlces

Exhibit A -1

Administration of Medications In the Transitional Housing Program

13.2.4. If the setting is certified, the date of certification:

13.2.5. Signature of the indlvidual(s) or legal guardian(s) indicating
agreement with the request; and

. 13.2,6. Signature of the 'Community mental health provider* executive
director or desi9r>6e recommending approval of ttie waiver.

13.3. No provision or procedure prescribed by statute shall be waived.

13.4. The director shall grant the waiver If he or she determines that the
alternative proposed meets the objective or intent of the rule and does
not negatively impact the health or safety of the lndivid"ual(s).

13.5. Upon receipt of approval of a waiver request, the 'Community mental
health provider*, the provider or individual's subsequent compliance
with the alternative provisions of procedures approved in the waiver
shall be considered compliance with the rule for which waiver was
sought.

13.6. Waivers shall be granted in writing for a specific duration not to
exceed one year.

13.7. A provider, a 'Community mental health provider" or individual may
request a renewal of a waiver from the departmertt. Such request
shall be made at least 90 days prior to the expiration of a current
waiver and shall not exceed one year.

Exhibit A.I Contractor Inhiah:^,^—
Admlfvlstratlon of Medicaltons in tho Tranaitlonal Housing Program \ \
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth ar>d Human Services
Treneltioral Housing Beds and Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is direcHy funded with Genera) Funds anticipated lo be availabie based
upon continued appropriation. This contract also authorizes the' Contractor to seek
reimbursement from Federal funding sources as specified herein, conditiorted upon
continued support of the program by the state and federal governments.

2. Access to supporting federal hjnding is dependent upon the Contractor meebng the
requirements in accordance v^th the U.S. Department of Heatth and Human
Services. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Medical Assistance Program,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #f) 93.778. Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) NH20144.

3. The State shall pay an advanced payment In the total amount of $80,300, in
accordance with Exhibit B-1 Advance Request. Capital Budget upon Governor and
Executive Council approval and receipt of an advance request invoice submitted by
the Contractor on Contractor letterhead that details all purchases to be completed
with the advancement of funds.

4. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on
Form P-37. Block 1.8. for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit
A Scope of Services.

5. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursemerit for services provided to individuals
pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

5.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals:

5.1.1. Through the DHHS Medicaid Fee for Service program in accordance
with the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule specified In. Exhibit B-4.

r

5.1.2. For other medical services not specified in Exhibit B-4. that the
Contractor provides to individuals served under this Agreement the
Contractor shaU be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement
with the applicable Managed Care Organization for such services.

5.2. For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance or payors.

5.3. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they
receive, and for operational costs contained in Exhibits B-2 and B-3 for which
the Contractor cannot otherv^se seek reimbursement from an insurance or
third'party payer, the Contractor will directly bill DHHS to access contract furxfs
provided through this Agreement.

6. The Contractor shall, on a monthly basis:

6.1. Document the expenses Incurred for the fuinilmenl of services referenced in
Paragraph 4. above.

6.2. Document the revenue received in response to the billing referenced in
Paragraph 5.1 and 5.2, above, on a monthly basis.

RfA-201»-OeH^TRANS
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Exhibit B

6.3. Submit documentation identified in Subparagraphs 6.1 and 6.2 on tbe
Departnftent-approved invoice template.

6.4. Identify tbe amount of reimbursement to be billed under tbis contract for the
applicabie month.

7. Services not covered by M^icaid or by other insurance that are eligible for payment
of contract funds shall be paid to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of OHHS
invoice receipt.

7.1. The Contractor shall itemize all expenses consistent with .the budget line item
number In accordance with the Exhibits B-1 through B-3 for the applicable
period.

7.2. The Contractor shall not seek payment of contract funds for services the
Contractor bills to Medicaid or other insurance payors.

8. All invoices submitted by the Contractor are subject to Department approval prior to
payment processing for services Identified Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

9. The Department reserves the right to withhold and/or reduce payments if the
Contractor Is not in compliance with rules, regulations, and laws cited in Exhibit A.
Scope of Services.

10. The Contractor shall submit invoices electronicdily to the attention of the Department
designee, whose contact information shall be provided upon the contract effective
date.

11.The Contractor may submit a final payment request to OHHS for reimbursement; in
no-event shall the final payment request be submitted later than sixty (60) days after
the Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice and accompanying documentation
may result.ln nonpaymenL

12. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate
at full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the
contract period.

13. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under ttiis Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of
noncompliance with any State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or If the said services, required reports, or other contractual
obligations contained in this Agreement, have not t>een completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions specified herein.

14. In the event the Department determines that the Contractor Is unnecessarily
delaying or denying acceptance of individuals referred by New Hampshire Hospital
to the Transitional Housing program contracted herein, or unnecessarily delaying
transition of such individuals Into or out of said program, the Department will notify
the Contractor In writing of its determination; the notification shall include the
Department's requested remedy. The Contractor shall have up to thirty (30) days to
comply with the Department's request or to othenArise reach a remedy that Is ^
mutually agreeable to the Department arxJ the Contractor. The Contractor's.falhjre

ftFA.»l«)eH<O.TRANS Eirtlil 0 Cort/aetof Wilaa
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N0«v Hampshire Department of Koatth and Human Servlcee
Transitional Hou8lr>g Bods and Services

Exhibit B

to comply with said remedy may deemed by the Department noncompliance >Mth the
obligations contained In this Agreement.

15. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37. a contract amendment limited to the
adjustment of amounts tetween budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, and
amendment of related budget exhibits, may be made by written agreement of both
parties through the Budget Office without further approval from Governor and
Executive Council, if needed and justified.

16. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used. In whole
' or In part, (or the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one

hundred and twenty (120> days of the end of the fiscal year.

17. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved services shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

RfA-20tSO8H^TRANS ExMWB Contractor Inttiati
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Exhibit B'1 Budget
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Capltal.Ravenue
Required

1 $5,600 Amount requested - Please see amount being
requevted for advance to ensure capital a^vltles
starts Immediately.

$60,300

SuDoHes

Eouloment

Furniture (client)

SuppUes/Office
furniture

Client supplies

8ut>contractefs/A{ire

Property
Reha tWAoqu isition

30.000

21.000

2.000

2.800

100.000

to computers % S1.000 eecn, $2,000 net^rk
scanner/printer, 3.000 for phones, 10 laptops Q
$1,500 each mobile internet hubs.$2,000 for software
cost set-up and addilionel IT Infrastructure set up.

$1,500 per cilerrt to set-up 14 rooms wfth required
furnishing.

Start-up supplies for program such as paper, toner,
pens, chairs, desks and other operational suppGes for
S^-up supplies for clients such us bed sheets.
pEtovrs, tm^ls end other client supplies for rooms - 14
X$200

Funds to be utilized to rehab current/existant location
and ertsura an areas are In accordance to
requirements for cilerrts. Also, use furrds as a down
payment for property ocquisHion if rteeded to
accommodate clients.

15.000

10,500

2.000

2.600

50,000

Advance to place large order with
supplier and begin infrastructure
set-up and IT implementation

Advance to purchase aD of the
fumiture to set-up ftst residents.

To purchase required items for
clients st8rtir>g in year 1.

Advance to complete rehab work
based on contract requirements

Advanced payments necestary to
avoid line of credit use and .
associated Interest These are
|Items in which payment Is needed
Immediately upon purchase/ hiring.
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Exhibit B-2 Budget
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Exhibit B-2 Budget
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Houslr»g Beds and Services

Exhibit &4 THS Authorized Medlcald Services

THS Authorized Medlcald Services
NaOOMl

(Ut* FraqTOwnHonC«tf*S«fvle«OujiMeitlofw
1 «v«M »»t «tyK20TCBFOMton taweiSuff

BMMer* L*w«t SUff

p BacTtqlen L«w«> Staff

7«am. PaycMaOtat. RM.
Maalan. Sac#*tor*

Raateratlva Paruai

Hetp&aitiBilen. Conitowow*
TfatnUiH Taam Fufl Pay

Tawn. PiychiatrUl. RN.
Maalan. Baeftatora

Aaaioraih^ PantoT
KeapttaHialton. Canttououa
raainsarJ Taam. Haw Day

'Taam. Paycnteirtot. Rn.
Maatara. eatfvator*

Tawn, PsycMatrtit. RN.

Msalan. DactoatM

Patftaton Laval Staff

eechalom Laval Staff

Raawaiiwa Partial

Heap»aft*atlor». FwtlOag

Raslaratfwa Partial
Na,pP.faa.>an HairOav

Suppertad Empleymani

to Maatara Laval CInldart

t2

13

PaycMalrtai

Maatara Laval CttntoJaft

Paycitlatrtat

Maatara Laval CIrtletan

IS Paycfiiatrlit

IrtfS^uat PayCAothaiapy 2^
30 mtoutaa

IftONidual Paychdharapy wf

mat) mgml 2^30 miAwtaa (aea
to raca

IndMdual Paycrtctharapy 45-

SO mItYutaa
irtONIdwtl Paycfvciltarapy W
mad momi 4^S0 mlnutaa faea
to f»ea

indMdual Paycftolltarapy 7V
PO miiHitaa
IrtdMdual Paychetrtarapy wf
maP momi 75-SO mtoutaa faca
10 faea

10 Maatara Laval ClMclari

17 PamMatrtot

ia

IP

20

21

22

23

24

20

27

Gretjp Payc)>etnarapy

PayOuatrtat
Maw Pattora Ootoa or Ovw
outpaoani Mart • EAM lO maxma
tacaiolaoa

Paycftiatrtai

Paychlatrtal

PaycMalrtat

PiycMairfat

PaycNalrtot

PaycMatrtat

Ptycniatrtai

PaycMairtai

PayeMatrial

V PatJani Oliaa orOUiai

Dutpauaw viaJl • EkM 20 rtor*jm»
taeaiefaca

Haw Pattam Oritoa or Outa*
outpoaam vtalt • CAM 30 mKrtoa
• tofabo

Naw PaOam Onoo or Otnor

ouvatfartl «ltil • EAM 49 rainuaaa
taoaiotoea

■ Pattam CAca 01 OOtar

ouipadam «ial • ESM SO mtowiaa
faeo lelaeo

EvatuadOA and maMpamora el
patiw awl may rot ro^Jf ffw
otaaartea ei a prtyaioarv riptc—y
9 mlnutoa t»ca lo faea

E«alvattOrt *r»0 marwparwam J
aaitara. ty^caty lOmtomaa raca
to faea

EvaMaOen arte manaoartwm o<

paiMm. lypteaOy iSmtouw* tooa
lolaea

EiaOwOort and fnarwpamaia d

pabara. lyptcaty 23 mtovtaa faea
to laca

Evaruatlon aoe rrwrwparriartt ot
padern fypieeay 40 mirexe* faca
to laea

H201P

K2001

H2oie

H2001

note

H2023

H2027

H2027-HQ

poeo4

poeos

poeop

PP201

PP202

PP203

PP204

gP203

PP211

PP212

1 avar^t par day

>. 1 pal eatanpac montfv

v'l:

vH 1 avani par Pay

iW."

>»-P:

0P213

PQ214

M219

1 atmrM par Pay

1 av«m par Pay

1 avtoPt pai pay

iSmtouta unM

1S mtoula unP

IS mtowla wrtP

1 avarti par tlay

1 avartt par pay

1 avanl par pay

■> lavantparPay

19 mtouia unti

1 • POxja avani par day

1 avant par tlay

1 avant pa* Pay

1 avartl par pay

1 avani par Pay

1 avaffl oar pay

1 avanl par day

1 avant par Pay

1 avant par pay

1 avanl pa* Pay

1 avani par day
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ExMMIC '

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors ObOgaUons; The Contractor covenants and agrees that an funds received by the Corrtractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to etigibie
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foDovrs:

1. CompUanco with Eederel and State Laws; if the Corltractor Is permitted to determtr>e the eVgibinty
of individuals such eUglbllity determination shall be made in accordance.with eppOcabte federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility detefmlnotlons shab be mode on forms provided by
the Department for that pu-pose and shall be made and remade at such times as ere prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the detennlnatlon forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shao maintain a data file on each redpierU of services hereunder. which file shall include all ■
Information necessary to support an efglbmty determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fin out
an application form and that each applicant or re>applicant shall be Irtfonmed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees (hat it Is 8 breach of this Contract to accept or
make a p^ynr>er^t. gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Worir detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and'eny sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
deterrr^ed that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any klr^d were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Si^-Contractor. i

6. Rotroactivo Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the conbary contained in the Contract or in any
other documenL contract or urtderstandirxg. U is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wQl be made'hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Indlvlduat prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made (or expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the mdivtdudi applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is ellglbia for such services.

7. CondiUcms of Purchase: Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary conlairied in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at e rate which reimburses the Corttractor In excess of the Cqntractora costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and rreceisary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ir>eligible Individuals or other tNrd party
tunders for such service. If. at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items ol expense other than such costs, or" has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible ir^jvlduais
or ofter third party funders. the Department may elect to: •' .
7.t. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In vrhich event new retes shaD be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

ExNbnC-Sp*dstPrvxblors CflnTrtctcr Uiiaato .
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excesa payment by the Contractor In \Mhlch event failure to make
Such repayment sheO constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determkie the ̂ ^ty of Individuats for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such senrices at
any time durtng the period of retention of records eslabCshed herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Malntenancoof Records: in addition to the eligibaity records specffled above, the Contractor
covenants erwj agrees to nnelntaln the following recomt during the Contract Period:
6.t. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents snd other data evidencing artd reflecting aD costs

end other expenses Incuned by the Contractor in the perfcrmenca.of the ContracL artd aD
iTKome received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordarKe with accountmg procedures and practices which sufftciendy and
property reflect ell such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the DepartmenL and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records. ar>d original evidence of costs such as
purchase requlsltioru. and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, vatuatbra of
iivkind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2.' Statistical Records: Statistical. enrollmenL attendance or vIsH records for each recipient of
services durlrvg the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eGgiblCly (inciudlng all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regardlr>g the provision of servi^s and all invoices submit!^ to the Departmerrt to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate ar>d as prescribed by the Department regutations. the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipieni of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit en annual audit to the Department 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
ProUt OrganlzaUons" end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organiaallons.
Programs. ActivKies and Furrctiorts. issued by the US General Accourrling OfTice (GAG standards) as
they pertain to ftnandal compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health end Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have access to aO reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addilion to and not in any way in iimitallon of obligations of the Contract. il b
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, aO payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or vmtch have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
b connection with the performance of Ihe services and the Contract than be confidenlial and shall not
be disefosed by the Contmctor. provided however, thai pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use ar>d disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public ofToats requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly coimecied to Ihe admblstratlon of (he services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information corverrting a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohlblted except on writlen consent of the recipienL his
attorney or guardian.

ExNbd C - SperUi ProWPom . Cortrtoor tnKlxis
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NotwHhatandlng anything to the contrary contained herein the covenant® and conditions contained in
the Paragraph Shan survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

1 ̂ Reports: Fbcaf and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the foDowing reports at the foflowing
times if requested by the Department.
11. V Interim Financial Reports: Written inierim financial reports containing a detailed descnpbon of

aQ costo and non-aUowable er^nses Incurred'by the Contractor to Ihe date of the report and
containing such other mforrnation es shoii be deemed satisfactory by the Deportment to
Justify the rate of payment hercunber. Such Fif>Bncial Report# sh«P be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11,2. Final Report: A final report shaO be submWed within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract The FIruM Report shall be In e form satisfactory to the Department and shafl
contain a summary statemert of progress toward goals and ol^eetlves slated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Comptatloo of Sorvlcos: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
majdmian number of units provided for m the Contract and upon payment of the price fimKation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be pcrtormed after the end of the term of tWs Contract and/or
survive the lermlnolJon of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Finat Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses daimed by Ihe Contractor as
cosb hereunder the Department shaft retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of stxh
expenses as are disaUovwd or to reefer such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: AD documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared •
during v resuftirig from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Slate
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were evaftabie or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Hearth and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Ccpyrtght Ownerahlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaft have prior approval from OHHS before prlnDng. production,
distribution or use. The DHHS wUl retain copyright ownership for any and oft original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocob or guidelines,
pesters, Of reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any malertab produced urvJer the contract wllhout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. operation of Facllitloe: Compliance with Laws and Reguistiona; In the operation of any fadlUles
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply wflh ell laws, orders end regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pureuant to taws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor wlih respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any gcwemmcntal licerise or
permit shaft be required for the (deration of the said facility or the p^rmance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and wiO at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permH In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenant* and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shaft
comply with at) rules, orders, regulations, end requirement* of the State Office of the Fire Marshal onO
the locat fire protection ager^cy, and shall be In conformance wth local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulation*.'

16. Equal Employment Opportunity PUn (EEOP): ,The Contractor wlll provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office lor Civfl Right*, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and hss 50 or
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moft employocs. tt wiU mainlain a current EEOP on file and aubmit en EEOP Certlflcolioo Form to the
OCR. certifying that to EEOP b on file. For recipienta receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
wim fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wCI provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organliatlons. Indian Trtbos, and medical end educational InstiluUona are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to sut)mll a certification form to the OCR to claim the ejccmplion.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http-Jhwvw.oip.usdoi/about/oa/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English ProflcloncytLEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited EngDsh Proficiency, end resulfng agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the beib of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
campfiance with t»>e Omnibus Crime Coneol and Safe Streets Act of 1966 and TWe VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1384. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure thai LEP persons have
meanir>gful access to to programs.

18. Pilot Program for enhancement of Conlnictor Employoo WWstlablower Protoctlona: The
foOowing shall'appty to all contracts that exceed the silm^lfted Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. S150.000)

COHTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REOmREMEHT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WwSTLEBLOwER Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) Thb contract and employees wording on this contract will be subject to the whisttoblower rlghb
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whblleblower protections established at
41 u.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the fJallonal Defense Authortialion Act for Fbcal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform to employees in writing. In the predominant lan'guage of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 u.S.C. 4712. as described,In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of thb clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acqubltion threshold.

10. Subcontractore: OHMS recogniics that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors wHh
greater expertise to perform certain health care sendees or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functlon(s). Prior to
•subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subconUactor's ability lo perform the delegated
funclion(s). Thb b accomplished through a written agreement thai sp^es activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides tor revoking the delegatloo or imposing sanctions B
the subcontractor's performance b not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as Che Contractor and the Contractor b responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function lo a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foltowing:
I9.t. Evahiale the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

ttie function /

19.2. Have a wrinen ogrtement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reportJng
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation vrill be managed if the subcontractor's
performance b not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basb

pMStlelS Dau\Q
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19.4. ProvWe to DHHS an annual schedule Identitying an subcontractofs, delegated functions and
rwponslbllitics. and when the subconiractof'a performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shali. at Its discretloo, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Ccrtraclor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As trsod In the Controcl. the foflowlng terms shell have the following meanlf>gs;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Irtdirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
aOoMrabie and reimbursable In accordance «<th cost and occounling principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, nrles and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Oepartfftent of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Conlmclor Manual which b
entlDed •Flrxanclal Manegement GuWePnes" end which contains the regulations governing the flnandal
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive furwfs. ^

PROPOSAL If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
requlfed by the Department and contaWng a description of the Services to bo provided to eligible
individvab by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract btkJ settlrtg forth
the total cost and sources of revenue ftx each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor b to provide to eligible individuab hereunder, shall mean that
period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit 8 of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amer^ded or revised from the lime to-time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Senhces containing a compilalion of afl regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdmlnbUative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the ̂ jrpose of implementing Slate of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereurvder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Coniractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract wiD not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GFMERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subpsragraph 4 of the General Provisions of iNs contract. CondrtJonal Nature of Agfeement. Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision'of this Agreement to'ihe contrary. aQ obligations of the State
hereunde'r. Including wtthout limllallon. the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
Including any subsequent changes to the epproprtatlon or avaOabliity of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive ection that reduces, ellmlnotes. or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Servkes provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part In no event'shell the
Slate be UaWe for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available furtds. In
the event of a reduction, temrtlnation or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State Shan have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify serv'ces under this AgreemenJ
immediately upon giving the Coniractor nobce of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the
Acc6unt(s) Wcnllfied in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavaOable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination. Is amended by adding the
fcOowing language;

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole disaction of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice thai the Sute b exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not timlled to. Identifying the present and future needs of cDents
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Coniractor shall fully cooperate wilh the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transttioo Plan including, but not limited lo..8ny Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transibon Plan
end shall provide ongoing communication end revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event thai services under Ihe Agreement, including but not limited to clients receivlrrg
services under ihe Agreement are transltioned to having servkes delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shcn provide a process for
uninterrupied delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall cstabBsh a rrrethod of notifying cDcnis and other affected Individuals
about the transifion. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to
the continued avallabDity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Cortractof IdenUftod In Soction i .3 of the Ganaral Provisioos agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectkm 5151-51$0 of the Orug^ree WoAplace Act of 19M (Pub. L 100-690. THIe V. SuWrtte 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seg.). end further agrees to have the Cor^tractor's repfesematlve, as Identified in Sectiorw
1.11 erd 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foBowirrg Certiftcation:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN WOIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT Of EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is reqiJred by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Freo
Wortiplace Ad of 19M (Pub.L. 100-690. Trtte V. SubtrtJo O; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulatioos were amerKJod and published as Part 11 of the May^25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and reqube certification by grantees (arid by Werence, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). priof to award, that they wiD mainuin a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference. sut>-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a Sbte
may eled to rrtalte one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in Deu of certiflcales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reUance is pt^ed when the agency awards the grant Folse
certficatlon or vioiatk>n of the certification shaD be grounds for suspension of paymer^ts. suspension or
termination of grants, or govemJT>crTt wide susperxsion or debarment. Contractor usirxg this form should
send H to: .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or win continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispenslrxg, possession or use of a controUed substance is prohibtted In the grantee's
workplace end specifying the actions lhat will be taken against employees for violation of such
proMbHion;

1.2. EstabDshJng an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.-2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties lhat may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the x^rkplace: >
1.3. Making H a requirement that each employee to be engaged inlhe performanceo! the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifying the employee In the stalemenl required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoymerrt urxtter the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

slaluia occurring in the workplace no later lhan five calendar days after-such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing; within ten calendar days afler receiving notice under
subparagrajjh 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such convictJon.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position frtie. to every grant
officer on whose grant acth^ the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EtfkbilO-C«ftauUoAf«ovelnoOrugFrM ContncttrlrhUh
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has designated a central point for the recelfH of such notices. Nohce shaO Include the
identjftcotion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subpare^eph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so corwicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

terminatkyt. consistent with the requirements of the Reh^lhaDon Ad of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such emptoyee to participate sslbfactonty in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabifitatlon program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agerKy,

1.7. Making a good fallh.effon to continue to maintsin a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of wcdc done in
connection with the specific gra^

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each tocalron)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identirted here.

Contractor Name; ̂ CuOcor

\okihy _
Date Name. — r—

Title:

2
A

■  {
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CERTIFICATIOH REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General ProvUions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Pubtic Law 101*121. Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictiona on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1362. end further agrees to l^eve the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
ar>d 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follovrfrtg Ceitification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicete applicBble program covared):
Temporary AsslstarKO to Needy Famies under Tibe IV*A
'Child Support Entorcemenl Program ur^er Title tV-O
'Social Services Block Grant Progran* under Title XX
'DAedicaid Program under Titte XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*ChQd Care Development Block Grent under Tide IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

t. No Federal appropriated funds have been peid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for inftuencir>g or attempting to Inftuerwe en officer or employee of any agency, a Memt>ef
of Cor>gress, an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of e Member of Congress in
connection wtth the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arrd by specific mention
subgrarUee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt>er of Congress In connection \M1h this
Federal coritract. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (er>d by specrfic mentjon sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigr^ed shall complete end sulvnll Startdard Form LLL. (Oisciosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance vnth its Instnxlions. attached ar>d identified as Standard Exhibit E-t.)

3. The undersigned shaD require that the language of this certification be Irvcluded irt the award
documerq for sub-awards at all tiers Oncluding subcontracts, sub-grants, ar>d contracts under grams,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-reciplems shaD certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Tide 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails.to file the. required
certtflcalion shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $1001000 for
each such faiture.

Contractor Name:. V|ctA,^0 ̂

Date Name.
Title:

u
A
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply, with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presidenl. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 resar^ng DebarmenI, -
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, es Identified tn Sections 1.11 arxl 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foOowtng
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By sigr^ng and submitting this proposal (contrsci). the prospective primary partlcipent Is providing the

certl11catk>n set Oul betow.

2. The inabUity of a person to provide the ceitihcation required below will not necessarily resuR in denial
of participabon In thb covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective parlieipant shaO submit an
expianation of why it cannot provide the certiflcatiOA. The certification or explanation vmII be
corrsJdered in connection wtlh the NH Department of Health artd Human Services' (OHHS)
detenminatton whether to enter Into this transaction. However, fatlure of the prospective primary
partJcipani to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partidpallon in
this transaction.

I

3. The certificalion In this clause is a material representation of fact upon wtdch reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered en erroneous cetiri^on. In eddilion to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this bansaction for cause or defauR.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS ager>cy to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primery participant learns
that its certification vras erroneous when subrnWed or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. ]

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* "debarred.* "suspended,* 'ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction.' "participant.' "person.* 'primary covered bansaction," "principal.* "proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used in this dause. have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached defmitioru.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (conbact) thai, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shaD no! knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
bansact'ion with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from pariiclpatlon In this covered bansaction, unleu authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by sut>mltting this proposal that rt will Include ttie
,  clause tWed "Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension. InetlglblBty end Voluntary Excfusion •

Ijjwer Tier Covered Transactions,' pmvided by OHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and In aii solicitations for tower tier covered transactions.

6. A partitipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered bansaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by vritlch It determines the eligibility of Ks principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certificabon required by this clause. The knovriedge and

iyF > C«ri(<ic*Sen Ocbanntnf. Suiperttlon C«rtra0er MUjH ^
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information of a participant b not required to exceed that which is normaOy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

to. Except for traruaclions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instnrctiorta. tf o participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligibte. or voIuntarQy excluded from participation In this transaction, h
addition to other remedies available to the Federal povemmerd. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauh.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective prtmory participant certifies to the best of its kn»Medge end belief, that It end its

prlncipais:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmertt. declared ineligible, or

voluntartiy excluded from covered transact!^ by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period precedtrtg this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered agairtst them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection vrith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performtrtg a pubQc (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public trartsaction: violation of Federal or Stole antitrust
statutes or commission of embez^ment, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making falsa statements, or receiving stolen property;.

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (iXb)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
bansactions (Federal. Slate or local) termlrtated tor cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an ex^Hanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It end its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant a unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shaH attach an exptanatlon to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant hirlher agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wili
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Reganling Debarmenl, Suspension, Irteligibility, and
Vdumary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transacllons.* without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and In an solicitatioru for lower tier covered transactions. •

Contractor Name: HOjOCPd' XriC-

^
Date Name; _

at
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CERTIFICATION OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONOtSCRlMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OP FAITH-flASEO ORQAHI2ATION8 AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identrfied in Section 1.3 of the General Proviaions e9fee» by signature of the Contractor's
representsiive as identlfled in SecBons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiftcatlon:

Contractor wei compfy. and vMl requ're any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any appticaMe
federal nondlscriminatlon requlremenb. which may Inciude:

- the Omn'tK/s Crime Control ond Sofa Streets Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discrtminatlng. either in employment practices or in
the deBvery of aervices or bcrrefhs, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ar^ sex. The Ad
requires certain recipients to'produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the JuvenDe Justice Delirrquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the cIvQ rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Reorients of federal fundir>g under this
statute are prohibited from discrtminatlng. either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefib. on the basis of race, color, religion. rtationaJ oitgln, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. wtiJch prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discrtmlnaling on the basis of race, cotor. or national origin in any program or acttvity);

> the RehabllUallon Act of 1973 <29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohlbils recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the .delivery of
services or benefrts. in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Oisabiilties Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabiUUes in employment. State and local
gqvemmenl services, public accommodations. commerciaJ facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1663,1685^6). which prohibits
dischmlhation on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 610647). which prohibits dischminatlon or> the
basis of age in programs or activKies receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlmmatlon; Equal Empioyment Op'portur^, Polities
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, whkh provide fundamental principles and poricy-maklng
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulaliofrs - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizatiorrs); ar^ Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The NaUortal Defense Authorizabon
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub; L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblovrer Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and corrtracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed wtren the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

ExhbilC
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In ihe even! a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State admlnistratrve agerKy mlAes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion. natlonaJ origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a.copy of the fB>ding to the Office for CWJ Rights, to
the appficabte contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of HeaSh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Wentlfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by ilgnatyre of the Contractor's
representative as IdenUfled in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 ol the General Provistons. to execute the foflowing
certification:

I. By slgninQ and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
hdicated above.

Contractor Name:

Vo\3\l 11-
Date

Psps2o<2 dm

EtfAAG
Contrsctor trlUato.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONWENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubCc Law 103-227. Part.C • Envirofvnental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Acl). requires that smoking not be permlned In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by on entity and used routinely or regularty lor the provision of health, day care, educabon.
or Gbrary'seivices to chSdren under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or iocai governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to chOdren's aervices provided in private residences, facilities funded soieiy by
Medicare or Medluld fimds. and portions ol facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatmerd. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civii monetary perwlty of up to'
81000 per day end/or the imposition of on administrative compfiance order on the responsible entity. ^

The Contractor Identrfted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
represervtative as (dentiltad in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUowtng
certification:

1. By signing and submiRing this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with aO epplicabJe provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: ^ HoO\LD I*>C.

Dale ' Name;

H « Ccfttfcsflen ftcovding Contractor WtliJs
6m*on(nef6al Tobacco Smeiia
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement ̂agrees to
compty with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Irtdivldually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 af>d 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health ir^formation under this Agreennent and 'Covered
Entity" shaU mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human.Services.

(1) E>efinitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the nr>eaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Oesionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreaatton' shall have the samemeaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic end Clinical Health
Ad. TiUeXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1,& 2 of the American Recovery arxj Reinvestment Ad of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Ad of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1. 'Indivtdual* shall have the same meaning as the term'individuar In 45 CFR Section 180.103
and shall ir>ctude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance wKh 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

' j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Pfoteded Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Sedion 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. . r y

EjUVSUI Corrtraaw trUab 1 ̂
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I. 'ReQulred bv Lev/ shall have the same meaning as the term Vequired by law* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. *Secfetafv* shall mean the Secrotaiy of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her desi9r>ee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Infofmailon at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Umtf»curnd Protected HaaHh Information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a t6Chnok)gy standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadabte. or Irtdecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that b accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. * Other Definitions - All terms no! otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buslr>e3B Aasoclate Use and Disclosure of Protocted Hoallh Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disdose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agrecmerit. Further. Business Associate, including but not limiled to aQ
its directors. ofTicers, employees and agents, shaD not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner thai would constitute a violation of the Privacy and.Security Rule.

b. BusinessAssoclatemay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by taw, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Assocble b permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business /Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially arid
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for (he purpose for which H was
disclosed to (he third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach NoUfication
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the b.asis thatK Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

fli/
3/20H ExNbill Coftnav InMab \
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disctmures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shati abide by any additional security safeguards.

(J) Obllaallons ar>d Actlvltlee of Buslrtess Aeeociate.

a. The Busirtess Associate shall r>otify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or erry security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health informatx>n of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediatefy perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, includirtg the
types of Identifiers and (he likelihood of re-ldentlfication;

o The unauthorized person usc^ the protected health Information or to wixxn the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to (he protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shell complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the

, Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ell of its internal policies end procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for .
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Hs business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shaO be corrsidered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving.PHt

V20I4 Contnaai Infttahk
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pursuant to this Agreement. wHh rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Infonnation.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of e written request from Covered Entity,
Business As^late shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreerrtenls. policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure

^  of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Busir>e$s Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wrthln ten (10) business days of receiving a wrtlten request from Covered Entity.
Business /^sooate shall provide access to PHt in a D^ignated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 154.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate iany such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days ofrecelving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make avail^le
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibilrty of responding to forwarded raquests. However, If forwarding the
Indrvidual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shaQ instead respond to the individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of lerrnination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as speciHed by Covered Entity, ell PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the dispositbn of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such'PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction InfeasiWe, for so long as Business

y20t4 EMUM Cam/iom bVttah X
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or an PHI, the Business Associate shaD certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obrittatlofta of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any ch8f>ge$ or limitationfs) in its ,
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to IndivkJuals In accordance with 45 CFR .Section
164.520. to the extent ttut such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

t

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes th. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Sectipn 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covert Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such resthctiDn may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shaD report the
violalion to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reautalorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined.herein,
shati have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, anWhded
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. ' Amendmeni Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply wHh the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicaC^e federal and state law.

c. Data ̂ nershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to compty with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. y
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SeQreQ8ttor>. If any term or conditiori of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(9) or circumstance is held tavalld. such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms end conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destnjction of PHI, extensions of the protections of (he Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense ar>d indemnification provisions of section (3) e.and Paragraph 13 of the
8tdr>dard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Serwces WQV\ f ■
Name of the.O0niractor.The State

Signature of Authorized Representative SIgnatum of AuthoruedT^presentative

Narrte of Aulhorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

I''/'3i/i'7
Date

WWaVvj/l.
Name of ̂ thorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representallve

Dale
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CERTtftCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFPATAICOMPUANCE

The Federal Fundmg Accountebaity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 orKl awarded on or after October t, 2010, to report on
data retated to executive compensation ar>d associated flrst*tier sut>-grahts of $25,000 or more. If the
irtldal award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportlr>g Subaward or>d Executive Compensation informatton), the
Oepartmerrt of Health Br>d Human Services (DHHS) must report the fdtowtng information for any
' ftuboward or controct award subject to the FFATA reportlr>g requiremer^ts:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

y Funding agency
4. NAIC5 code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source ' ,
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the furxling action
7. Location of the entity
B. Princtpie place of p^ormance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

lO.t. More than 80% of armual gross revenues are from the Federal government, artd those
revenues ere greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to (he SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
(he award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Put>fic Law 109-282 ar^ Pubfic Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Ex^Uve Compensation Information}, and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Ger^ral Provisions
execute (he following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to (he NH
Department of Health and Human Services end to comply with el) applicabte provisions of the Federal
Financial Account8t>I]ity end Trartsparency Act.

Contractor Name: Uoftbor S^'rc-.

Date
4
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Now HampsWrv Oopartmont of Hoatth and Human Sarvlcoa
Exhibtt J

FORMA

As the Contractor-identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions. I certify (hat the responses to the
below Osted questions are loie and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, cfld your business or organization
receive (1) tiO percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal.contracts. subcontracts,
loans, gra^s. sub-grants, artd/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $2S.000.600 or more in anrujal
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, aubgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

z:NO ves

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to 92 above is YES. pleese answer the foOowing;

3. Does the puttiic have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through period'ic reports filed under sectbn I3(o)or 1S(d)of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (tS U.S.C.78m(a). 76o{d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1988?

NO .YES

If the (mswer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO, please answer the following;

4. The nemes end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your iHJSiness or
organization are as foliovrs:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Etfil&S J - CartfUctfon R»gvtftno federal funding Centraclor Inidab
AccoumabGry And Tnnspamncy Act (FFATA) CompOanoa
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS INFORWATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

Confidentia} Infonnation: In addition to Paragraph 09 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Oepatment's Conridentiel Intormatlort includes any end all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Oepartme/it of Health end Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services • of vN^ticfi coOeclion. discloture. protection, and
disposition b governed by state or federal lav^ or regulation. This information Includes, but b not Pmlted to
Persor\ai Health Information (PHI). Personally Identifiable Information (Pil). Federal Tax information (FTI),
Sodal Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensrtrve and confidential
Information.

The vendor will maintain proper security rantrols to protect Department confiderttiat information collected,
processed, managed, an^or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectatiorts include:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information Cfecycie. where app&cable. (from creation, trsnsfonnation. use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that cdtect. transmli. or
store Department confidential information where appllcoble.

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidentisJ data stored on portable media, e.g.. laptops. USB
drives, as weD as when transmitted over put>lic networks fiXe the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryptlofl.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabiSties are in ptace to detect potential security events that can
Impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for cor^tractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for Its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and Incident response process. The vendor win contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Departmenfs contract menager. end addHional emaD
addresses provided in thb section, of a eonfdential information tveech, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1.'Breach' shaD have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident* shaD have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards end Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications vriQ be sent to the following email addresses:'

2.6.1.1. OHHSChleflnformationOfhcefieMhhs.rth.QQv

2.6.1.2. DHHSInfQrmBtiQnSggjrilvOfficeflmhhs.nh.QOV

2.7. tf the vendor wQI maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its suthcontractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or ̂ tracl
termination; and wn obtain written certiflcallon forany State of New Hampshire data destroyed by (he
vendor or any subcontractors as a pan of ongoing, emergency, end or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
urvecoverable via a secure wipe program In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure

Emoxi K •> OKHS inTormttloft SaaxOy R«qv!rwn«Ri» Conosctoi irttaa,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

deietton, or otherWse physical^ ddstroying the media (for example. degeu»iftg). The vendor wiO
document and cedlfy In wrtting at time of the data destrucfion. and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written ceniflcatlon win irKtude all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been property destroyed and validated. Where appGcaUe, regulatory and profesBlona) standards for
retentior> requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.8. tf the vendor wiO be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the servlees for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor w(!} maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring comptianee to securt^ requirements that at a
mirrimum match those for the vendor. includir>g breach r^odftcatton requirements.

S. The vendor win work with the Oepertmeni to sign and comply with aO applicable State of New Hampshire end
Depstment system access and authorization policies snd procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use ogreements as part of obtaining end maintaining access (o any Department sysiemfs). Agreentents vrfD
tw completed end signed by the vendor and any applicabie sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. H the Depaitment determines the vendor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendor wID
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreerheni (BAA) with the
Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department al Rs request to complele a survey. The purpose of the survey Is to
enable the Department and vendor to morutor for any changes in risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may

over the Ufa of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed onnuaDy. or an altemale Ume
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department nnay request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Dep^meht and the veridor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowtr>gly or unkncnvingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department. •
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